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NOTICE
SHORT NOTICE FOR THE 15™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will
be held on Tuesday, 19thSeptember, 2023 at 02:30 P.M, through Video Conferencing ("VC") to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

L

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including the Cash Flow 5tatement
and Statement of Change in Equity) of the Company for the year ended 315t March, 2023 together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Independent Auditors as also the Comments of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

To take note of the appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the Company appointed by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Statutory Auditor for the financial year 2023-24 and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT members be and hereby take note of the appointment of Statutory Auditor of the
Company for the financial year 2023-24, by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and authorize
the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration including out-of-pocket expenses based on a
recommendation of the Audit Committee.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3,

To cansider appeintment of Shri P. U, K. Reddy, IRSME as Part-time Chairman and If thought fit, to
pass with or without maodification(s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of Shri B. U. K. Reddy, IRSME as Part-time Chairman on the Board of the Company
from 17.03.2023 till he holds the post of General Manager, Metro Railways, Kolkata or further orders,
whichever is earlier.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”

To consider appointment of Shri H. N. laiswal. IRSE as Managing Director of the Company as an
additional charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of Shri H. N. Jaiswal. IRSE as Managing Director of the Company as an additional
charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway with effect from the date of assumption of charge
till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until superannuation of the officer or until
further order, whichewver is the earliest.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and Incidental thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”

5. To consider appaointment of Shri Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan. IRSE as Director (Project & Planning) of the
Company as an additional charge in addition to his own as CE{O&M)/Metro Railway and if thought
fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of Shri Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan. IRSE as Director (Project & Planning) of the Company
as an additional charge in addition to his own as CE(O&M)/Metro Railway with effect from the date
of assumption of charge till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until further order,
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whichever is earlier.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”

Bb. To consider appointment of Shri Sanjeet, loint Secretary & Financial Adviser, Ministry of Housing and
Urban Affairs (MoHUA), Government of India as Part-time Government Director on the Board of
Directors of the Company in lieu of Shri Shyam Sunder Dubey, former Joint Secretary & Financial
Advizer, MoHUA, Government of India till he holds the office of loint Secretary & Financial Adviser,
MoHUA ar further orders, whichever is earlier and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of Shri Sanjeet, Joint Secretary & Financial Adviser, Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs (MoHUA), Government of India as Part-time Government Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company w.e.f. 01.05.2023 in lieu of Shri Shyam Sunder Dubey, former Joint Secretary &
Financial Adviser, MoHUA, Government of India till he holds the office of Joint Secretary & Financial
Adviser, MoHUA or further orders, whichever is earlier,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto
to ghve effect to this resolution.”

7. To consider appointment of Shri V. K. Srivastava, IRSE as Managing Director of the Company as an
additional charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway w.e.f. 01.06.2023 and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modification(s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of V. K. Srivastava. IRSE as Managing Director of the Company as an additional
charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway w.e.f. 01.06.2023 till appointment of a regular
incumbent to the post or until superannuation of the officer or until further order, whichever is the
earliest.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”

8. Toconsider appointment of Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar, IRSEE as Director (RS&T) of the Company as
an additional charge in addition to his own as PCEE/Metro Railway w.e.f. 01.06.2023 and if thought
fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions,if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar. |IRSEE as Director (RSET) of the Company as an
additional charge in addition to his own as PCEE/Metro Railway w.ef. 01.06.2023 till appointment of
a regular incumbent to the post or until superannuation of the officer or until further order, whichever
is the earliest.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Kolkata Metro Rail Carporation Ltd.

Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Mohua Datta Gupta
19th September, 2023 Company Secretary




MNates:

General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28.12.2022 & General Circular No 11/2022 dated 28.12.2022 MCA
has extended the time period for holding of AGM / EGM or passing of Ordinary/ Special Resolution
through "Video Conferencing” till 30th September 2023. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and MCA Circulars, the 15th AGM of the Company is being held through
VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, generally a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint 3 proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself. The proxy need not be 3
member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM.

The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the item of special
business is annexed and forms part of the notice.

The meeting is being held by shorter notice.
Since the AGM is held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

Members attending the AGM through VC/0AVM shall be counted for the purpase of reckoning the
guorum under Section 103 of the Act.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of the items of special business set out in the Notice convening the 15th
Annual General Meeting to be held on 19th September, 2023.

SPECIAL BUSIMNESS ITEM
Item Ne. 3

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) vide letter No. 2012/Proj/KMRCL/21/4/PL dated
30th January, 2014 approved the nomination of General Manager. Metro Railway, Kolkata as Part-time
Chairman on the Board of Directors of KMRCL with immediate effect, till further order.

Accordingly, General Manager. Metro Railway, Kolkata is designated as Part-time Chairman on the Board
of Directors of the Company. Shri P. U. K. Reddy, IRSME had assumed the additional charge of the General
Manager, Metro Railway, Kolkata w.e.f. 17.03.2023 in terms of Railway Board's Order No. E(O)I1I-2023/PM/37
dated 17.03.2023.

By virtue of Government of india, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) letter No. 2012/Proj/KMRCL/21/4/PL
dated 30th January, 2014 5hri P. UK. Reddy, IRSME had been nominated as Part-time Chairman on the
Board of Directors of the Company.

The ardinary resolution set out under itermn no. 3 of the Notice is intended for the purpose.

Shri Reddy may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution. No other Director, Key Managerial
Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Copy of the aforesaid letters of Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) are available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting.

Item No. 4

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) videOrder No. 2018/E(O)1/40/17 dated
17.02.2023conveyed appointment of Shri H. N. Jaiswal. IRSE as Managing Director of the Company as an
additional charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway with effect from the date of assumption
of charge till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until superannuation of the officer or until
further order, whichever is the earliest.

Shri H. N. Jaiswal assumed charge from 18.02.2023.
The ordinary resolution set out under item no. 4 of the Motice is intended for the purpose.

Shri Jaiswal may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution, No other Director, Key
Managearial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Copy of the aforesaid letter of Ministry of Rallways (Railway Board) is available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting,

item No. 5

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Rallway Board) vide Order No. 2019/E(0)I1/40/14 dated 17.02,2023
conveyed appointment of Shri Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan. IRSE as Director (Project & Planning) of the Company
as an additional charge in addition to his own as CE{O&M)/Metro Railway with effect from the date of
assumption of charge till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until further order, whichever
is earlier,

Shri Ahsan assumed charge from 20.02,2023.

The ordinary resolution set out under item no. 5 of the Notice is intended for the purpose,Shri Ahsan may
be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution. No other Director, Key Managerial Personnel
or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resclution.




Copy of the aforesaid letter of Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) is available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting.

Item No.6

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) vide Order No. 2022/PL/57/10 dated 01.05.2023
conveyed appointment of Shri Sanjeet, loint Secretary & Financial Adviser, Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs [MoHUA), Government of India as Part-time Government Director on the Board of Directors of the
Company w.e.f. 01.05.2023 in lieu of Shri Shyam Sunder Dubey, former Joint Secretary & Financial Adviser,
MoHUA, Government of India till he holds the office of Joint Secretary & Financial Adviser, MoHUA ar
further orders, whichever is earlier.

The ardinary resolution set out under item no. 6 of the Notice is intended for the purpose. Shri Sanjeet
may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution. No other Director, Key Managerial Personne|
or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Copy of the aforesaid letter of Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) is available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting.

Item No.7

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) vide Order No. 2018/E(O)11/40/17 dated
01.06.2023conveyed appointment of Shri V. K. Srivastava. IRSE as Managing Director of the Company as
an additional charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway w.e.f. 01.06.2023 till appointment of 3
regular incumbent to the past or until superannuation of the officer or until further order, whichever is
the earliest.

The ordinary resolution set out under item no. 7 of the Motice is intended for the purpose Shrij Srivastavamay
be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution. No other Director, Key Managerial Personnel
or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Copy of the aforesaid letter of Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) is available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting.

Item No.8

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) videOrder No, 2018/E{0)11/40/31 dated
01.06.2023conveyed appointment of Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar. IRSEE as Director (RS&T) of the Company
as an additional charge in addition to his own as PCEE/Metro Railway w.e.f. 01.06.2023 till appointment
of a regular incumbent to the post or until superannuation of the officer or until further orders, whichever
is the earliest.

The erdinary resolution set out under item no. 8 of the Motice is intended for the purpose Shri Majumdar
may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution. No ather Director, Key Managerial Personne|
or thelr relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Copy of the aforesaid letter of Ministry of Railways {Railway Board) is available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Lid.

5d/-
Place : Kolkata Mohua Datta Gupta
19th September, 2023 Company Secretary
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REPOCRT OF THE BOARD OQF DIRECTOQRS

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is pleased to present its 15th Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023, Report of the Statutory Auditors and
Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India.

Financial Highlights

During the year under report, the Company continued to be engaged in implementing the 'East West Metro
Corridor' Project - a rail based mass rapid transit system connecting Salt Lake Sector ' in the east to Howrah
Maidan in the west covering a distance of 16.55 kilometres - out of which 5.74 kilometres is elevated
portion and 10.81 kilometres underground corridor.

Profit after Tax as per 'Statement of Profit and Loss' forming part of the financial statements for the year
ended 31st March,2023 amounting to Rs.72,72,040/- has been adjusted against 'Reserves & Surplus’ under
the head 'Other Equity’ in the Balance Sheet on that date.

The Company had no subsidiary; associate or joint venture company during the year under report.
Status of the Project

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd. ['KMRCL') was formed in July"2008 as a joint venture company of
Government of India and Government of West Bengal with equal (50:50) equity participation for exscution
of EAST WEST METRO Corridor In Kolkata. Later, as stated in earlier Reports, Government of India had
decided on 23rd August, 2012 that the 'East West Metro Project’ be transferred to Ministry of Railways
{hereafter '"MoR'} and executed as a Central Sector Project. As per the decision, MoR will hold 74% equity
of the Company and Ministry of Urban Development balance 26%. All shares held in the Company by
Government of West Bengal ('GoWB') were thereafter transferred to MoR. Ministry of Urban Development
has since been renamed as Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (hereafter 'MoHUA').

Government of India alse decided that the Company as the Project Implementation Unit would continue
to function till the completion of execution of the aforesaid Project. However, Government of India will
hold all the shares in the Company and after completion of the Project would run the same along with
Marth South Corrider under a unified control, The Project has been planned to be completed in phases,

It was elucidated in earlier reports that the Project had faced numerous land acquisition, rehabilitation
related hindrances and realignment issues. All the issues are now resolved although challenges in execution
still persist which are detailed in this Report.

Hon'ble Minister for Railways had announced (in August 2015) that the Project will be executed as per
realigned route proposed by GoWB and all costs in this regard will be borne by Government of India.

Work in Howrah Maidan to Sealdah Section of the Project which was stalled since December 2012 due to
alignment-related indecision had resumed in September 2015.

The Project has been planned to be completed in phases. Phase-1A of the project [5.30 Km]from Salt Lake
Sector V to Salt Lake Stadium stretch in elevated viaduct covering 6 elevated stations has been commissioned
since 14-02-2020 and Phase-1B upto the 1st underground station at Phoolbagan [1.67 Km] with train
reversal from Sealdah cross-over has been commissioned since 05-10-2020. Phase IC for 2.33 Km from
Phoolbagan to Sealdah was opened for the traffic on 14.07.2022 by operating one of the lines [East Bound
Line] in Sealdah Station. As mandated the revenue services is undertaken by Metro Railway, Kolkata who
will be in charge of operation & maintenance of the system,.

The connection of the corridor with Sealdah Station was a major landmark as Sealdah has a major terminal

13
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station of Eastern Railway having passenger footfall of approximately 12 lakhs per day which includes
suburban & mall express passengers. The operation in other line [West Bound Line] has not started as the
Tunnel Boring Machine launching shaft in West Bound Line has not been closed to execute the balance
critical works in Sealdah- Esplanade section,

Prior to Bowbazar incident an 31.08.2019, the tunnelling work was planned to be completed in December,
2019 which finally was completed in May, 2021 but still the bridging gap of 38 mtrs. in retrieval shaft at
Bowbazar, where twa TBMs have been retrieved from, yet to be closed fully and back filled. The closure
of the retrieval shaft is in progress and till now16 m out of 38 m has been closed. After complete closure
only the backfilling will start, Considering the impact of COVID'19 pandemic {15t& 2nd wave], the completion
of remaining portion of the project in Phase-1l comprising of rest 4 underground stations over a route
length of 7.25 kilometres was June, 2022 subject to construction related eventualities. Subsequently, due
to water mixed soil ingress in retrieval shaft area on 11.05.2022 where TBM has been retrieved and water
Ingress Incident on 14.10.2022 for construction of one Cross passage (CP2) and its impact on completion
time line, the target for commissioning of Phase-1l has been delayed. The target for commissioning of the
truncated service from Howrah Maidan to Esplanade for a route length of 4.8 Km has been fixed on
December 2023 and full commissioning of Phase-ll has been fixed by June 2024, which is again subject
to containment of the technical challenges being faced in execution of the balance critical works between
Esplanade & Sealdah.

The Project cost has increased due to additional expenditure involved In implementation of the Project
due to re-alignment of the route, price escalation due to additional time, change in market dynamics in
the Metro sector and due to delay in execution and fluctuation of Indian currency in international market,
etc. The Company submitted a revised project cost amounting to Rs. 8996.96 crore to MoR in year 2015-
16. After review by a committee appointed by Prime Minister's Office, the same is pruned down to Rs.
8574.98 crore (against sanctioned cost of Rs. 4874.58 crore) which has been approved vide Railway Board's
order dated 22-10-2020. The sanctioned Revised Cost Estimate had following basis:-

(i) The price level for revised cost estimate was December, 2017,
(i} The Price Variation paid upto December, 2017 was in-built in the RCE and projected PVC upto December,
2020 was captured.

{iiify The project completion was taken as June, 2021,
Main Reasons for Delay in construction:

B  Realignment issue : Realignment of route done in Aug'2015 which increased project length from 14.67
Km to 16.55 Km due to traffic blockade in Mahakaran Station area and R&R issues at Central Station.

m  Water ingress incident at Bowbazar : Following three incidents of water ingress happened in Bowbazar
area which caused serious impact on over ground structures, public safety and impact on the project
completion.

B \Water ingress causing failure of TBM on 31.08.2019 at Bowbazar: Severe ingress of water mixed
with soil inside the Tunnel Boring Machine whan the TBM was passing below dense buijlt-up
|locality at Bowbazar [West Bound- TEM 1] which resulted considerable surface settlement and
endangered some buildings in the influence zone of the tunnel.

B COVID'2019

®  Water ingress in Retrieval shaft at Bowbazar during construction of Base slab on 11.05.2022. The
location of ingress is below the Esplanade Side circular tunnel at the junction point of circular
tunnel and box tunnel.

B Water ingress during construction of Cross Passage (CP-2, 5.5m long) at Bowbazar on 14,10.20232.
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Due to the reasons mentioned above, there is time over run of about three years with respect to what was
projected in sanctioned revised cost estimate.The revised cost estimate (RCE-2) has increased due to time
over run due to price variation, increase in Taxes, Difference in cost of State and Central wages, variation,
change in scope of work, prolongation of Project Management Consultancy [PMC) & fluctuation of Indian
currency in international market etc. The Company has submitted a revised Project cost amounting to Rs.
10,442.41 crore to MoR in Aug'2022. The RCE is still under consideration of MoHUA and MoR.

Major achievements during 2022-2023 and after March, 2023
Phase-I (Salt Lake Sector-V to Sealdah - 9.30 Km) :

Earlier, Phase-1A of the project [5.30 Kmlfrom 5alt Lake Sector V to Salt Lake Stadium stretch in elevated
viaduct covering 6 elevated stations has been commissioned since 14-02-2020 and Phase-1B upto the 1st
underground station at Phoolbagan [1.67 Km] with train reversal from Sealdah cross-over has been
commissioned since 05-02-2020.

The Phase-1C of 2.33 Km length from Phoolbagan to Sealdah was inspected by Commissioner of Railway
Safety on 16.3.2022 & 17.03.2022 and Authorisation for opening was received on 24.03.2022. The section
between Saladah to Phoolbagan (2.33 Km) has been commissioned since 14.07.2022 after compliance of
the stipulations given in the Authorisation, Due to commissioning of this stretch, the per day ridership
between Sector-V and Sealdah Metro station has been increased manifolds, Earlier daily ridership was
2,500-3,000 passengers; now daily ridership Is between 30,000-35,000 passengers

Phase- Il { From Sealdah to Howrah Maidan - 7.25 KM)
®  Underground Corridor civil works:

B The tunnelling part of underground corridor comprises of twin tunnels being implemented by
"Tunnel Boring' method using precast concrete segmental tunnel liners, There are 4 [underground
stations in Phase-ll which are being executed by 'cut & cover’ method using diaphragm walls as
retaining system.

®  The East Bound Tunnel from Esplanade to Sealdah was completed in October, 2020 and the same
Tunnel Baring Machine was refurbished and relaunched in west bound tunnel to complete the
balance 796 m tunnel from Sealdah to Bowbazar. This work was started in lanuary, 2021 and it
was completed in May, 2021 which marks the completion of entire mechanized tunneling by
TBM for this project.

®  The summary of tunnelling activity in Phase-|l are :

Contract _Stretr.h Tunneﬁ "'I:unn.eiiné Iengtﬁ Tunnei-fng mmﬁ-!.etea %
Package [Metra) (Metra) Completion
UG/ Esplanade to East Bound 4852 48532 100
Sealdah West Bound 4892 4854* 99.22
UG/1 | Howrah Maidan | East Bound | 7,600 7600 100
to Esplanade West Bound 7600 7600 100

*Only 38m length is balance in which retrieval shaft werk is in progress to connect West Bound Circular
tunnel at BowBazar Area where water ingress was happened in TBM in Aug'2019. 27 m length of Cast In
Situ Box Tunnel has been completed and balance stretch of 2.45 Km in West Bound Tunnel will be completed
after completion of Track Work and other system works in West Bound Tunnel.

15
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®  Structural works of balance 4 UG Stations are complete. System works, Entry structure &
architectural finishing works in all 4 UG Stations in Phase-|l are substantially completed except
Esplanade station, which is targeted to be completed by November 2023,

B The intermediate emergency evacuation-cum-ventilation shaft at Strand Road (In between
Howrah and Mahakaran station) along with the Adit connections including system works has
been completed.

®  The vertical shaft for intermediate emergency evacuation-cum-ventilation shaft except ancillary
building at Raja Subodh Mullick Square has been completed. The horizontal &Vertical adits
connection with the east and west bound tunnels by NATM tunneling was temporarily stopped
after water ingress incident at CP 2 on 14.10.2022 to avoid any safety hazard for Public. The
balance work is planned to be done through special technique of Ground Freezing method for
ground improvement to avoid water ingress incident like CP2. This scheme has been adopted
purely on safety of public & surrounding residential & commercial buildings.

Track work

Entire Head Hardened Rails for ballast-less track for Phase-|l have been procured from abroad. The
work of track linking from Howrah Maidan to Sealdah in east bound track and upto Esplanade in west
bound track has been completed. Part of the Track work in west Bound Tunnel between Sealdah and
Bowbazar for approx 330m is also completed. Balance length of 2.15 Km is still left for execution in
Woest Bound Tunnel from Sealdah to Esplanade.

Rolling Stock

The tender for supply, manufacturing and testing of 14 rakes, each of & car formation, was awarded
to BEML Ltd.in 2015-16 at a total cost of INR 899.91 crore. Thus, cost per car without taxes works out
to be IMR 9.38 crore. All the 14 rakes are delivered, The additional 3 rakes i.e. 15, 16 and 17 have been
awarded to BEML Ltd. Additional 02 rake will be arrived between March'2024-May'2024

Power supply

Power supply work for entire corridor is entrusted with Siemens Ltd. Pawer supply work has been
completed between Howrah Maidan to Esplanade Section Including all four underground station. The
power supply work is held up in tunnel section between Esplanade and Sealdah due to no access is
available at present.

Escalators and elevators

All lifts & escalator has been installed in Phase-| section | Sector-V to Sealdah] except one no. escalator
at Sealdah Station. Lifts and elevators in Phase-|| has been manufactured and delivered at all
underground stations of Phase-1l. The work of 1ift & escalators have been substantially completed in
Phase-Il work..

Tunnel Ventilation System ('TVS')

TVS shall provide a means to control smoke flow and ensure sale evacuation of passengers in case
of fire as well as maintain an acceptable environment in the tunnel and station track way. The work
of TVS for entire corridor has been awarded to M/s. Voltas Ltd,

TVS works Sealdah is completed for Phase-|C operation. Waork of TVS is also completed in Howarh
Maidan and Is in progress in Phase-ll.



B  Signalling, Telecom and Automatic Fare Collection (AFC) works

The installation of both indoor and ocutdoor signaling equipment for Communication Based Train
Control (CBTC) system Is completed in Howrah Maidan to Esplanade Metro Station. The work for
testing of Phase -1lA section is in progress by H5TS. AFC work has been awarded to M/s. indra Sistemas
SA, Spain and that work is completed in Sealdah Station and is in progress in Phase-ll with considerable
progress in Howrah Maidan. The PSD/PSG works in HWMM, Mahakaran and HWHM have been
completed and this is under progress.

B E&M Works in Underground Section

The work of EEM system including fire fighting has been completed for Phase-| work and commissioned.
Manufacturing and installation of E&M work done by Voltas Ltd. [UMPESL] in Phase-1l has been
substantially completed between section from Howrah Maidan to Esplanade and expected to be
completed by Nov'2023.

®  Environmental Control System ('ECS') works

The work of ECS system for Phase-1l underground stations has been awarded to M/s. Sterling &Wilson
Ltd and the work of Sealdah Station for Phase-IC operation has been completed. Substantial progress
of manufacturing work for Phase-ll has been achieved and installation and expected to be completed
by Nov'2023

®  Platform Screen Doors (P5Ds)/Platform Screen Gates (P5Gs)

PED is a system of motorised sliding doors that provide controlled access to the trains and protect the
platform edge. The PSD system constitutes a full height/half height screen-work load bearing structure
installed using civil inter-face at platform and ceiling level. PSDs will restrict suicide cases at platform
apart from substantial saving of electrical energy due to reduced volume of air conditioning. Besides,
aesthetic view of the platform will also be enhanced.

P50 work for & underground stations and PSG {half-height platform screen gatesjwork for 6 elevated
stations has been awarded to M/s. CRRC. The work of Phase-|l has been substantially completed. At
present integration with Rolling stock & S&T is in progress and expected to be completed by Nov'2023
after integrated testing and commissioning.

Incidence of water ingress at Bowbazar TBM (Tunnel Boring Machine) Retrieval Shaft on 11/12.05.2022,
A. The initial Incident{ Bow Bazar Tunnel water ingress incident on 31.08.2019):

Twao Tunnel Bering Machines [TBM] launched [In Jan & Feb'2013] from Esplanade to execute twin bore
tunnels of 5.8 m internal dia and were to breakthrough at Sealdah west side. [2.45 KM]. The West Bound
tunnel TBM was leading. This was the last drive planned for the TBM Tunnelling in the entire project.Till
31.08.2019, West Bound tunnel from Esplanade to Sealdah was completed for 1654 m and only 804 m left
out to reach Sealdah. On 31.08.2019, at Bowbazar there was severe ingress of water inside the Tunnel
Boring Machine [West Bound- TBM-1].

This water was mixed with sand/soil particles which resulted in considerable ground loss resulting surface
settlement and endangered some buildings in the influence zane of the tunnel. Overall, 73 buildings were
evacuated. 712 persons were accommodated in different hotels and about 12 persons arranged own
accommaodation. The Tunnel Boring Machine for East Bound tunnel [TBM-2] which was about 300m back
side from affected location was also stopped immediately.

Retrieval Shaft for the TBM Machines

1.  Residual tunnelling after the incident has been completed in May 2021 by one machine from point
of stoppage to Sealdah and relaunching it again from Sealdah and completing the tunnel in other line
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[West Bound]. Breakthrough of this machine was inside the common retrieval shaft from where both
the machines.

2. Retrieval of both the machines has been completed in March'2022 and permanent box construction
inside the retrieval shaft is In progress,
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B. Incident of Water Ingress on 11.05.2022 at BowBazar

in Bowbazar TBM retrieval shaft [ 38 m x 10 m Jwhere both TEMs have been retrieved, the preparation
for casting of balance 9m of base slab of box was In progress on 11/05/2022. Casting of 29m of the box
base slab with 1.8m high wall on either side has been completed. While excavation below the balance base
slab[9x10m] for doing plain concrete water ingress started at about 10AM on 11.05:2022. The location of
ingress is below the Esplanade Side circular tunnel at the junction point of circular tunnel and box
tunnel.initially water ingress was with sand/soil. Due to soil loss in the ground, over ground settlement
oceurred which resulted in cracks in some adjoining buildings at Durga Pithuri Lane, Sykrapara Lane and
Gour Dey Lane. Most of the buildings in the area are old structures and some of them have been marked
unsafe by Kolkata Municipal Corporation. Further settlement has stopped since morning of 13.05,2022.
5 bulldings were affected and 154 people were evacuated around mid-night as precautionary measures
and accommadated in different nearby hotels with fooding& lodging.

The balance Base Slab [9x10m)] has been completed on 05.03.2023 after applying specialised Grouting
methods and sequential Construction Techniques. After construction of base slab |, the 27m of the Tunnel
Box out of 2Bm is completed and invert of balance 11m is constructed. Construction of Overt of the balance
11m will be done after completion of Track Work as the access for part of Track work is to be done from
this portion of the Retrieval Shaft.

C. Incident of Water Ingress for Construction of CP2 on 14.10,2022 at BowBazar

Cross Passage work was going on at CP-2 location , which is at a distance of about 128m from Bowbazar
Retrieval Shaft towards Sealdah under UG2 Contract Works. The Grouting followed by the excavation for
heading portion of the Cross Passage ; Rib Fixing and Temporary Lining was completed by 24th September
2022, During the Durga Puja holidays , the Cross Passage was closed with SandBags filled in the void space
and the face was sealed. From 13th October 2022 onwards , the excavation work for benching started,after
satisfactory probe drilling results. Till 3.00am of 14th October the site was stable with no sign of water



ingress. While trimming the last 200mm to profile in the invert, suddenly ingress of water & silt started
heavily at around 3.45 am and rapidly became uncontrolled. Gush of water with silt flooded the West
Bound Tunnel also upto some height. Surface settlement and development of cracks in some of the adjacent
Buildings was reported. Evacuation of residents started from 5.320 am on 14th October 2022. 12 buildings
were affected and 192 people were evacuated around early morning as precautionary measures and
accommodated in different nearby hotels with fooding& lodging.

Immediate measures taken

(i}  Filling of the affected area where the water is coming from by Cement bags and putting Steel Bulk
head in place. PU Grouting was applied to arrest the water ingress but it was not controlled.

(i) Shotcrete was applled with an additional layer of Plate on the face of CP2 and ultimately the water
was fully arrested around 12.30pm on 15th October 2022

Rehabilitation efforts of the Company

The demaolished bulldings shall be reconstructed and the repairable buildings shall be structurally repaired
and structural health thereof will be verified by experts. As the out stay of the shifted residents in these
two categories of buildings is considerable, furnished residential flats have been arranged for them by the
construction company.

EFFECTS OF BOWBAZAR INCIDENTS AT A GLANCE
Category Particulars 1st 2nd 3rd Total
Incident Incident Incident
31.08.2019 | 11.05.2022 (14.10.2022
. Affected Buildings 72 5 12 93
Buildings  Buildings Demolished 23 2 0 25
Buildings repaired 31 4 11 46
Buildings under observations 18 3 1 22
People evacuated from Buildings 710 154 192 1056
People shifted to Hotel 533 154 192 1039
People re-instated after repair 412 55 173 640
People rehabilitated at 298 g9 19 416
Feople ‘ alternative accom,(Flats)
Compensation made to families 202 _ 0 | 27 | 229
| (One time)
Mo. of Flats | Rented ) provided 69 32 1 102
Shops affected Bl 21 30 132
Shop owners compensated | one P 16 28 121
Shops ing )
Shops repaired & rehabilitated 0 12 30 42
Alternative Shops / rented shops 38 2 0 40
provided I
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Cost & Time over-run

The contract has been awarded on 'Design and Build' basis and lump sum cost. Therefore, there should
not be any impact on the Company due to this incident as this is within contractual obligation. However,
the contract is covered under 'Contractors All Risk Policy’ of full contractual amount of Rs.1279 crore as
well as a Third Party Liability Insurance Policy. This eventual sum being borne by the agency for recovery
process and restoration of damages shall, therefore, be partly recovered from the insurances.ITD ITD Cem
I has gone for arbitration in connection with Bow Bazar Tunnel water ingress incident. The AT award has
been given in favour of ITD-ITD Cem IV. However, the company will challenge the said award under section
34 of Arbitration & Conciliation Act'1996 in Hon'bl;e high Court.

Timeline for completing the balance section from Howrah Maidan to Sealdah (Phase-l1):-

SN | Section Length Target Constraints
1 | Commissioning of section 4.80 Km | Dec'2023 Completing of follawing Critical
between Howrah Maidan - works in Sealdah - Esplanade
Esplanade Section [2.45 Km] has an impact
(Truncated service)** on Commissioning of the section.
e Retrofitting of damage tunnel lining
2 | Commissioning of balance 245 Kkm | June'2024 & its connection with cast in sity
section between Esplanade- RCC box
Sealdah Section e Construction of Cross passage-5B.
® Construction of horizontal &
vertical adit of Intermediate
Ventilation shaft.
® Epress arrangement at Bowbazar

** Al civil works, MEP, Power Supply & S&T works of underground stations & tunnel section between
Howrah Maidan and Esplanade (Including) is substantially complete.

Constraints for the balance critical work between Sealdah and Esplanade :

Completing Critical works in Sealdah - Esplanade [2.45 Km] has an impact on Commissioning of Phase-l|
Sealdah - Howrah Maidan of 7.25 KM. For executing the balance critical works having technical challenges,
the company has engaged Foreign Expert for providing technical guidance to complete the balance critical
works between Sealdah and Esplanade tunnel section for the following critical works:

1. Construction of One cross passages CP 5B connecting east bound and west bound tunnels ,

2. Construction of Egress Arrangement at Bowbazar Retrieval Shaft location is under progress by
eliminating three Cross passages (CP1, CP2 & CP3).

3. Construction of IV shaft at Subodh Mallick Sguare with individual connections of ventilation adits to
both the tunnels ;

4.  Completion of the box tunnel of 28 mtrs. length inside the retrieval shaft and closure of the retrieval
shaft.

5. Retrofitting of Tunnel Section at Retrieval shaft at Bowbazar in West Bound Tunnel ,
6. Closure of cross passage (CP2)

The work is in progress in all above locations except sl.no.1,

Resettlement and Rehabilitation

The Company has a well-defined resettlement and rehabilitation policy for the welfare of Project affected
perzons whose number was estimated at 677 along the original alignment. However, this figure has
significantly reduced as there will be no requirement of rehabilitation at new Mahakaran and Esplanade
station areas on revised alignment. Presently there is no bottleneck related to rehabilitation issues in this
Project.



REPORT OF THE BOARD CGF DIRECTORS

Major rehabilitation of the Project affected persons have been done in following |locations:
®  Shree Market complex (comprising 129 shops) in Howrah Maidan area
e  Shifting 7 nos. commercial shops in front of erstwhile Bangabasi theatre in Howrah Maidan area

®  Shifting 30 nos. temporary shops at Phoolbagan out of which 18 have been permanently shifted back
to erstwhile location

o Rehabilitation of 63 nos, KMC sweepears’ guarters at Swabhumi by permanent rehabilitation flats
o  Rehabilitating 80 families in Duttabad settlement by permanent rehabilitation flats.
Environmental issues

A project of the size of 'East-West Metro' passing through the most densely populated areas of Kolkata is
having huge environmental challenges. The Company factored this challenge in its planning since inception
of the Project.

Both the original Project as well as revised proposal was cleared from environmental criteria by West Bengal
Pollution Control Board as well as Environment Department of GoWB. The Company is strictly implementing
the Environmental Management Plan as indicated in the ElA study report.

The stations are being executed complying norms of Indian Green Building Council as far as practicable.
The Depot is designed as green depot with silver rating of LEED.

The 'East-West Metro' Project values preservation of the environment and minimising adverse impact on
the greenery. About 1,335 trees have been removed for execution of the Project. All these trees have been
identified with the representative of the local municipality which owned these trees and 6,900 treas have
been planted in replacement at a total cost of Rs. 45.61 lakh.

International recognition

Considering significant Impacts in making people's life better, the'East-West Metro' Project has been selected
as one of the best 200 projects worldwide by Institution of Civil Enginsering, UK (a renowned global
engineering forum).This is considered to be a remarkable feat.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings & outgo

The Company has initiated various energy conservation measures at the design stage to ensure optimal
use and also selecting appropriate technology for various systems. However, the detailed measures are
as under:

(A} Conservation of energy -
{i} the stepstaken or impact on conservation of energy:
m LED-type lighting has been envisaged in the stations and in train coaches.

® Provision of Platform Screen Doors in underground stations, which would reduce air conditioning
reduirement substantially and thereby reduce consumption of non-traction energy.

m Rolling Stock planned to be procured for the Project envisages regenerative braking - so that
power is generated at the time of braking, which would be consumed by other powering trains
running In the system.

® Elevated station architecture kept in such a way to use natural lights in day time to the extent
possible. Use of polycarbonate sheets on elevated stations has been given a fillip to reduce
carbon footprint.

m High COP-type airconditioning units have been envisaged for underground stations along with
energy management system so as to optimise use of chillers, cooling towers, pumps, etc.

{ii} The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:

Large banks of solar cells shall be provided at the Maintenance Depot to generate energy for
internal consumption. Depot layout has been kept in such a way so as to use natural lights to
the extent possible.

KMR
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{iii} The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:
This will be quantified at an appropriate stage of the Project.
(B} Technology absorption -
{i} The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The mandate of the Company is to implement the Project. Efforts shall be made in procurement
stage to explore the possibility of technology absorption.

{ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

The benefits derived shall be detalled at appropriate stage In future,
Improved Opportunities for Economic Development

This project will provide easy access to existing commercial and institutional areas, as well as encouraging
similar development above the stations and along the corridor through management of growth in the farm
of Transit Oriented Development. The Project is an effort to mitigate ever growing transportation demand
in Kolkata and its surrounding and it will substantially reduce traffic congestion and environmental pollution
in Kolkata. This line shall also have interchange facilities with upcoming Joka Esplanade Metro Line at
Esplanade as perrevised alignment. Interchange facilities will be also provided at Sealdah and Howrah
Stations with Eastern Railway as well as major bus terminal at Esplanade. The completion of the new East
West Line will promote regional economic growth and improve urban environment by mitigating traffic
congestion and air pollution.

Benefits of East West Metro Project:

Kolkata East West Metro Project itself is a modern, safe, eco-friendly mass transportation system which
will eradicate the vehicular pollution, traffic congestion and road accidents in the city of Kolkata and
surrounding urban areas to a great extent. it will boost up the mass transport scenario of the region
providing a fast train's river communication for the twin cities of Howrah and Kolkata. It is estimated that
about 1 million people will use this system daily in year 2035. Proper Environmental Impact Assessment
[EIA] was done for the project at the inception stage and compliance against the statutory environmental
norms has been religlously implemented,

Major environmental and social impacts would occur during project implementation (e.g. involuntary
resettlement, poverty reduction, impacts an the natural environment).

Congestion Mitigation - Taking the existing trips to the city core (Mahakaran and Central) from the major
transport hubs (Sealdah, Howrah) and residential area (Salt Lake City and future Rajarhat Mew Town).

Safety and Security - Provision of platform screen doors and state of the art signaling system for the
pESSENZErS,

Improved Air Quality and reducing sound pollutions - reducing bus trips and catering to Increased trip
demand as well as providing a better transport system for people to switch over from cars and taxis.

Improved Quality of Life - adding to the quality of life through pleasant and seamless journey experiencs
with near 100% time efficiency, reducing stress, air pollution and noise and traffic nuisance, Even the depot
for train stabling and maintenance will be design and built fellowing the principles of eco-friendly and
sustainable design.

Financial outlay

The revised budgeted allocation of Ministry of Railways (MoR) for the Company for 2022-23 was
T 1100.00 crore. Duringthe year under report, MoR released T300.00 crore as Pass Through Assistance.

Share Capital
The authorised share capital of the Company for the time being is ¥ 3758.62 crore.
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As on 31st March, 2023, the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital remained at Rs. 3758.62 crore, Equity
holding of Ministry of Rallways (MoR) (including shares transferred by Government of West Bengal) in the
Company was ¥ 2781.37 crore {74%) while that of Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs was $977.24 crore
(2654).

Depaosits

During the year under report, the Company did not invite deposits from public under Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars of loans, investments and guarantee during the year under review
The Company has not
a) given any loan to any person or other body corporate

b) given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any other body corporate
or person; and

£) acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate,
as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Company
The Company had no subsidiary, associate or joint venture company during the year under repaort.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company constituted by the Board comprised of the following Directors during
2022-23:

Composition till 10.07.2022

1. Smt Anju Warrior [Non-executive Independent) :  Chairperson
2. Shri Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke [Non-executive) : Member

3.  Shri Jaideep (Non-executive) 1 Member
Composition after 10.07.2022

1. Shri Nagsen Mareshwar Dhoke (Non-executive) : Chairman

2. Shrilsideep (Non-executive) : Member

3. Shri Dhananjaya Singh (Non-executive) 1 Member

The Audit Committee during the financial year 2022-23 constituted with Smt. Anju Warrior (as Chairperson),
Shri N. M. Dhoke (member) and Shri Jaideep (member). Smt. Anju Warrior has ceased to be a Member of
the Committee in July, 2022 pursuant to the expiry of her tenure as an Independent Director of the Company
and Shri Dhananjaya Singh, Director has been appointed as a Member of the Committee.

During financial year ended 31.03.2023, the Committee met 4 (four) times - on 19.05.2022, 08.08.2022,
29.11.2022 and 29.03.2023.

Internal Auditors

KGRS & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been appointed Internal Auditors of the Company for 2022-23.
The Audit Commitiee has reviewed functioning of the Internal Auditors and their periodic reports.

Statutory Auditors

Comptraller and Auditar General of India have appointed Raj Kumar Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Kolkata - 700001 as Statutory Auditors of the Company under Section 139 read with Section 129 of the
Companles Act, 2013 for the financlal year 2022-23.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES
ALCT, 2013 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2023.

Comments of the Comptrolier and Auditor General of India on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2023 under section 143(8){b} of the Companies Act, 2013 are also annexed.

CAG has highlighted certain significant matters as stated therein for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related audit report. Explanations thereto are given as under:

A, 1, Comments on Financial Position
Balance Sheet
Mon - Current Assets
Other Financial Assets (Note -7; T230.14 crores)

The following actions have been taken subseguent to the management reply submitted to CEAG on this ssue -

&  Detailed verification of the documents in support of the claim for FY 2018-19 to FY 2020-21 has also been
completed,

® A lstter to this effect was also sent to the office of Chief Sacretary, GeWB fram the Chairman of KMRCL, wha
happens to be the General Managear of KMRCL, on 12.01.2022,

®  Again, 2 meeting of MD and Director (Finance) with Finance Secretary, Govt, of West Bengal took place in the
month of July-2022, where it was sald that the Govt. of WB would reimburse the SG5T recelvables in instalments.

®  Thisis to mention here that in all these meetings, Govt. of WB never denied dbout reimburserment to be made,

®  The draft state support agreement is yet to be finalised due to sorne differences in non-fare revenue sharing.
However, itis pointed out that the reimbursement of VAT was made in 2014, i.e, after taking over of the company
by Minlstry of Rallways.

Henee, the outstanding ameount is shown under 'Receivables’,

Moreover, the 'CAPEX' figure for the project consists of the CWIP and 'Other Financial Assets', hence, in real term
there is not understatement of 'CAPEX' with respect to the fund received for the Project.

This is also to mention here that in the currant financial year, Chairman/KMRCL wrote another letter to the Addl
Chief Secretary, Finance Department, Govt, of WB on 13-04-23 for expediting reimbursement of 5G5T,

2, Non - Current Assets- Capital Work in Progress
Pre-operative expenditure (pending allocation) (Note - 6) T 253.51 crores

{a) The East-West Mstro Corridar Project, Kolkata is being constructed by the Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limitad
in a single phase with the length of the entire project being 16.55 Km. The terminalogy of Phase-1A, Phase-18
etc, being used by KMRCL denotes the internal demarcation of route KM being constructed and this is entirely
for ease of monitoring of the various construction targets/milestones.

This project is part financed by loan from JICA and part financed jeintly by Ministry of Railways and Ministry of Housing
and Urban Affairs by providing fund in the form of Equity and sub-debt,

In relation to the observation, thisto mention hera that -

All the major contracts are financed from JICA loan and they are meant for full stretch of E-W Metro. Bifurcations
and finalisation of relevant loan amounts utifised for the construction of the stretch under operation at this stage is
not possible.
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In consideration of above, the borrowing cost (s being capitalized as CWIP tlll the completion of the entire project
and there is no deviation to the provision of Ind AS 23,

(b}  KMRCL formed as a $PV is entrusted with the construction of the East-West Metro Corridor Project and Metro
Railway is entrusted with the Operation and Maintenance of the completed project along with the North-South
Corridor under a unified control.

KMRCL is constructing the project in a single phase although a part of the project has already been commissioned.
However, valuation of the assets related to the commissioned portion is not possible due to the following reasen -

I.  Though commercial operations have already been started from Salt Lake SectorV to Sealdah, most of the major
contracts awarded are for the entire stretch and cannot be segregated.

ii.  Many of the assets created (primarily Rolling Stocks, Electrical and 5&T assets are meant for the entire projects
and yaluation of the same is possible only after completion and commissioning of the entire project.

Howrever, as advised by CEAG, the company will transfer the amounts related to the completed contracts of the
commissioned section, from COWIP to PP&E w.e.f the FY 2023-24, at cost.

3. Other Non- Current Assets (Note -8; T 87.94 crares)
Agreed,

Since, the contract liability for the Rolling-Stock contract is almost over, the ledger will be recast during FY 2023-24
and the "Advance to Contractor’ will be moved to ‘"CWIP'.

4. Capital Work in Progress (Note - 5 & 6, ¥ 8055.90 crores)

T13.32 crore , which was incurred for phase-l commercial operation from February, 2020 to March, 2020 has been
claimed for payment sgainst energy bills, from Metro Railway by GGM{Electrical] vide his lettar
Mo KMRC/ELECT/ARZBUDGET/ Vol II/7558 dated 26.04.2023,

But till date no payment has bean received against this ¥ 13,32 crore.Hence, this expenditure has been disclosed as
CWIP{power supply) and conseqguently there is no overstatement of CWIP or understatement of Other Mon-Current
Assets [Advance to Government body for utility services).

Once the payment |5 realised, CWVIP will be reduced to that extent.

All claims have been raised to Metro Railway and they have already paid T6.46 crore in FY 2022-23. |n addition, they
are reimbursing tractlon electricity charges amounting to approximately $0.20 crore.

Therefore, as suggested by CRAG, this amount will be transferred to other nen-current assets from CWIP in FY 2023-
24,

5. Capital Work in Progress
Pre-operative expenditure {pending allocation) [Note - 6, ¥ 253.51 crores)

T 3.85 crore is expenses relating to CGST for consultancy fees paid to GC. This should have been debited under
consultancy fee, instead of other administrative expenses.

This will be cormpllzd to whilz closing the accounts for FY 2023-24.
E. Capital Work in Progress

Pre-operative expenditure Expenses (Note - 6, 7 498.63 crores)
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Az per the CAAA ledger total Interest for FY 2022-23 |s ¥37.00 crores for all the sight loan Ds.

Interest is calculated twice, once on 20.04.2022 and then on 20.10.2022 for Loan 1Ds 263,2634, 152,192A, 207 and
207A.

For Loan |Ds 295 and 295A Interest has been charged only once in the CAAA ledger on 20.04.2022 during the year
2022-23.

The difference of $3.09 crore pertains to interest charged on 20.04.2023 for Loan 10 295 & 2954 which is not to be
considered for FY 2022-23 as that falls in FY 2023-24,

Hence, there has been no understatement of borrowing cost with corresponding JICA Loan repayrment by Ministry
of Finance.

B. Comments on Disclosure
Comments on Notes to Financial statements
Significant Accounting policies (Note 2.1)

KMRCL formed as a SPY s entrusted with the construction of the East-West Metro Corridor Project and Metro Rallway
is entrusted with the Operation and Maintenance of the completed project along with the North-South Corridor
under a unified control.

The project is meant to be constructed in a single phase for the 1855 km, stretch slthough a part of the project has
already been commissioned to generate Revenue.

However, valuation of the assets and charging the same to Metro Rallway's 'Block Account’ can only be dene anly
after completion of the entire project since many a works leading to completion and suteessful commissioning of
the complete route are interrelatad,

Hence, the spirit of the letter issued by MoR in January'2018 should be given cognizance and Management feels that
ng rmisleading information has been conveyed to the stakeholders of the company.

Secretarial Audit Report

In compliance of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnal)
Rules, 2014, the Board appointed D, Raut & Assoclates, Company Secretaries to undertake such audit for the financial
year 2022-23.

Copy of the Report given by them dated §9/2023 is also annexed,
Board of Directors
The strength of the Board for the time being is 10 (ten) Directars out of a maximum 15 (fifteen).

The Board recards its sincers appreciation of the valusble services rendered by Shri Arun Arora, Shri C. N. Jha, Shri
M. C. Karmall, Shri Shyam Sunder Dubey, Shri Rajesh Kumar Sinha and Smt. Anju Warrior during their assotiation with
the Company as Directors,

in compliance of Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Rule 4 of the Campanies {Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required Lo have at least two "independent director" as
defined by Section 2(47) of the Act on the Board for the time being. The Company had only 1 {one) Independent
Diraector, Smi. Anju Warrior. However with the expiry of the tenure of Smt. Anju Warrior, Independent Director on
10.07.2022 there is no indzpendent director in the Board of Directors of the Camparny. Reguest has been made to
the Rallway Board, Ministry of Rallways for appointment of Independent director.
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Government of India, Ministry of Railways [Railway Board) vide letter No. 2012/Proj/KMRCL/214/PL dated
30th January, 2014 approved the nomination of General Manager. Metro railway, Kolkata as Part-time
Chairman on the Board of Directors of KMRCL with immediate effect, till further order.

Accordingly, General Manager. Metro Railway, Kolkata is designated as Part-time Chairman on the Board
of Directors of the Company. Shri P.UL.K, Reddy, IRSME has assumed the charge of General Manager, Metro
Rallway, Kolkata w.e.f. 17.03.2022 vide Raflway Board's Order No. E{O)II1/-2023/PM /37 dated 17.03.2023,

By virtue of Gavernment of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) letter No. 2012/Proj/KMRCL/21/4/PL
dated 30th January, 2014 Shri P. U. K. Reddy, IRSME had been nominated as Part-time Chairman on the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Shri H. N, Jaiswal. IRSE has been appointed as the Managing Director of the Company as an additional
charge in addition to his own as PCE/Metro Railway with effect from the date of assumption of charge i.e.
18.02.2023 tll appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until his superannuation or until further
order, whichever is the earliest vide Railway Board's Order No. 2018/E(O)I1/40/17 dated 17.02.2023,

Shri Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan. IRSE has been appointed as Director (Project & Planning) of the Company as
an additional charge in addition to his own as CE(O&M)/Metro Railway with effect from the date of
assumption of charge f.e. 20.02.2023 till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until further
order, whichever is earlier vide Railway Board's Order No. 2019/E(O)I1/40/14 dated 17.02.2023.

Shri Sanjeet, Joint Secretary & Financial Adviser, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (MoRHUA), Government
of Indla was appointed as Part-time Government Director on the Board of Directors of the Company in lieu
of Shri Shyam Sunder Dubey, former Joint Secretary & Financial Adviser, MoHUA, Government of India till
he holds the office of loint Secretary & Financial Adviser, MoHUA or further orders, whichever is earlier
w.e.f. 01.05.2023 vide Railway Board's Order MNo. 2022/PL/57/10 dated 01.05.2023.

Shiri V. K. Srivastava. IRSE was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company as an additional charge
In addition ta his own as PCE/Metro Railway w.e.f 01.06.2023 vide Railway Board's Qrder No. 2018/E(O)1M0/17
dated 01.06.2023 till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until his super annuation or until
further order, whichever is earliest.

Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar. IRSEE was appointed as the Director (RS&T) of the Company as an additional
charge in addition to his own as PCEE/Metro Railway w.e.f. 01.06.2023 vide Railway Board's Order No.
2018/E(O)1/40/31 dated 01.06.2023 till appointment of a regular incumbent to the post or until his super
annuation or until further order, whichever is earliest,

In compliance of Section 152{2) of the Act, resolutions for confirming appointments of Shri P.U.K. Reddy,
Shri H. M. Jaiswal, Shri Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan, Shri Sanjeet, Shri V. K. Srivastava and Shri Asim Kumar
Majumdar will be proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued a Notification dated 5th June, 2015. In terms
of the same, the provisions of Section 152{6) and 152(7) of the Act shall not apply to Government companies
in which the entire paid-up share capital is held inter alia by the Central Government, In view of the same,
no Director of the Company is required to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Number of meetings of the Board

During the financial year ended 31.03.2023, the Board of Directors of the Company met 5 (five} times on
19.05,2022, 08.08.2022, 30,08.2022, 29.11.2022 and 10.02.2023.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

In compliance of Section 134(3)(c) and Section 13445) of the Act, the Board of Directors states that in
relation to the annual accounts for the financial year 2022-23;

1)  the applicable accounting standards had been followed in the preparation thereof and there are no
material departures;

2} such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial statements were selected and
applied consistently and judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent had been made
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3)

4
5)

6)

50 as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial year
and of the income and expenditure during that period;

proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adeqguate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the accounts had been prepared on a 'going concern' basis;

proper and adeguate systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively;

All applicable Secretarial Standards were complied with.

Extract of the Annual Return

Extract of the Annual Return in the prescribed form as provided under Section 92(3) of the Act is annexed
(Annexure-l).

Contracts or arrangements with related parties

The Campany isa Central Public Sector Enterprise under administrative control of Ministry of Railways.
Pursuant to Paragraphs 25 & 26 of "Ind AS 24/, entities over which the same government has control or
joint control of, or significant influence, then the reporting entity and other entities shall be regarded as
related parties. The Company has availed the exemption available for government-related entities and have
made limited disclosures in the financial statements.

The entities with which the Company had significant transactions during the year include (but not limited
to) Ministry of Railways and BEML Ltd.

(Rs./crore)
Nature of transaction | Fortheyearended
31st March, | 31st March,

2023 . 2022
Government entities
Funds received from Ministry of Railways 300.00 200.00
Funds received from Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs - 634.53
Other entities
{a) for shifting of utilities & capital works
Kolkata Municipal Corporation 0.02 0.05
West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd, - 14.22
{b) for others
BEML Ltd. 102.97 2B.59
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. 0.08 0.10
Total : 403.07 977.49

Detalls of transactions with 'key managerial personnel' during the year are given in Note 33 of the financial
statements.

Accordingly, the requirement for disclosure of related party transactions in terms of clause (h) of Section
134(3) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in ‘Form AQC-2' is not
applicable,
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Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

The Board of Directors confirms that there are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year i.e. 31st March, 2023
({ta which the financial statements relate) and the date of this Report.

Employees

The Company during financial year 2022-23 had no employee whether regular, on deputation or contractual
who was in recelpt of remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5{2) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Development and implementation of a risk management policy

The Company is currently implementing the 'East West Metro Corridor’ Project. Government of India has
decided that the Company as the Project Implementation Unit would continue to function till the completion
of execution of Project. After completion of the Project, Government of India would run the same along
with North South Corridor under a unified control.

Ministry of Railways has advised that after completion of the 'East West Metro Corridor', O&M thereof
would be done by Metro Railway, Kolkata.

Having regard to the above, formulating a risk management policy specific to operations of rail-based mass
rapid transport system will be considered at an appropriate time in future. To cover financial risks, adeguate
internal control measures have been put in place lincluding internal audit done by an external firm of
chartered accountants, in addition to regular audit by the Independant Auditor as well as supplementary
audit by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG]].

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is in the project implementation stage. In the financial year 2022-23 the Company is not
required to make contribution under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
regarding Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR).

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act read with applicable rules made thereunder
the Company has a duly constituted CSR Cammittes,

Memorandum of Understanding

In respect of Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for the year 2022-23, since the Company is executing
a single project of construction and does not generate any revenue, the Department of Public Enterprises
has directed that the Ministry of Railways may continue with an internal MoU mechanism with the Company
till it is not operational and will subsequently get covered by the new Mol guidelines.

Report on Corporate Governance

The Company believes in adopting the best corporate governance practices. As required by the "Guidelines
on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises” issued by Department of Public Enterprises,
Government of India, 2 report on Corporate Governance is annexed as Annexure-ll. The same forms a part
of this Report.

Report on Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysic Report, as stipulated forms part of the Annual Report and s also
annexed as Annexure-1ll.

Significant and material orders passed by Regulators or Courts

There is no significant or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal impacting the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Safety and wellbeing of women
The Company has in place an anti-sexual harassment policy, An ‘Internal Complaints Committee' under the
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Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has also
been set up. All employees {including contractual) are covered under this policy. Details of complaints are
as under:

I, Number of complaints filed during the financial year - Nil

ii. MNumber of complaints disposed of during the financial year - Nil

fi. MNumber of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year - Nil
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Annexure-|
EXTRACT FROM ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023
[Purssant ta Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administratian) Rules, 2014]
Registration and other details :
{ij CIN + Us0100WEBZ00BGE0I127338
{ii) Registration Date i Sth July, 2008
{iii) Mame of the Company : Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited
{ivl Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public company/limited by shares
{v} Address of the Registered Offlce and : 'KEMRCL Bhavan', HREC Offlce Compound,
contact details Munshi Premehand Sarani,

Kolkata - 700021,
Tel: (033) 2213-4345
Fax: (033) 2213-4380

{vi) ‘Whether listed company : Mo

(vil) Narme, address and contact detalls of 1 Not Applicable
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Principal Business Activities of the Company :

All the business actlvitles contributing 10% or more of the total turnover:

Mame and ¢ riptich of main

produc

Company in Project execution stage M.A. M.A,

Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies : Nl

Shareholding pattern {eguity share capital break-up a5 percentage of total equity) :
Category-wise shareholding : Indlan Promoters

Central Government (President of India) :

No of shares held at the baginning of the year |

Demat ¢ Wil

Phiysical : 375,86,20,000
% of total shares ¢ 100%

Mo of shares held at the end of the year :

Demat ¢ NIl

Physical : 375,86,20,000
% of total shares : 100%

% change during the year : o D%
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters

Sharsholder's Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of
name
MNa, af o of shiarss | Mo, of ; e af 5 s | % of change
thares shares 2 ‘ shares y ‘ I share-
the holding
company COmpany to total during the
year
1 President of indiz
[a/c. Ministry of
Bailways) |278,13,79,200 74.00 ] 278,13,79,200 74,00 [t 0
2 Fresident of india

{a/e. Ministry of
Housing & Urban

Aifairs) | 97.72,40,000)  26.00 0 97,7240,000|  26.00 0 0

3 Mominess of
President of India 800 Q i} 300 0 1] 0
Total: |375,86,20,000 10000 Mil 3758620000 100 M| Nl

(i} Changes in Promoters' sharehaolding

Sharehalding 2t the beginning of Curmulativ
the year
Mo, of shan % of tofal shares Mo. of sharas % of total shares
of the Company of the Company
1 | Atthe beginning of the year 475,86,20,000 100 375,86, 20,000 100
s Mate-wise increasedecrease - - - -

in Promoters’ shareholding
during the year

spacifying the reasons

for increasef decrease 0 - L

At the end of tha year 375,86,20,000 100 375,56,.20,000 100

(iv] Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareho/ding at the beginning of

the Ir,-'r:ar ¥
Far each of the Top 10 Ma. of % of total shares % of total shares
Shareholders shares of the Company of the Company
i It Shri I% K. Mishra 100 0.0001 | 100 . 0.0001
2. Shri Sandeep Jain 100 00001 100 0.0001
3, Shri Sudeep Shrivastav 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
4 =ri Ajeet Srivastava 100 03,0001 100 0.0001
K. Shri Dhananjaya Singh 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
6 Shri Rajesh Kumar Jain 100 0.eoo1 100 00001
1. Shri Ashish Singh 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
8 Shri laideep 100 0.0001 100 0.0001

{all the above shareholders are nominees of the President of india a/c Ministry of Railways) & Ministry of
Housing and Urban Affairs.
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v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnal [KMP)

Shareholding at baginning Cumulative Shareholding at
Managerial Personnel of the year (01.04.2022)

No. of shares

L shri Jaideep 160 0.0001 | 100 | 0.0001

Note: Shri Jaideap Is a Director of the Company. Mo other KMP held any shares during the year.
W, Indebtedness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/faccrued but not due for payment:

Secured Loans Lnseeuirned Deposits Total indebe

excluding

deposits (%) %) (%
Indebtednass at the baginning
| of the financial year
(i} Principal Amount - 35,70,17.34 303 - A5,70,17 34,303
I (i) Interest dise but not paid - - - -
I (i) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
i Total (i +ii +iii) ' - | 35,70,17,34,303 | - |35,70,17,34,303
| Change in Indebtedness during
i the financial year

|- Addition : 3,08,857,78 : 3,88,857.78
l - Reduction - - - -
. Net Change ' = ' 3.98857.78 | = ' 3.98857.78
I Indebtedness at the end of the '

i financial year

) Principal Amaunt : 3,61,52,279.94 : 3,61,52,279.94

[fif) Interest due but not paid 4 = =

|

iiii'i:n Interest accrued but not due - < i

;Tﬂtﬂ' (i i+ i) - 3,61,52,279.94 . 3,61,52,279.94

Yl Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Gross salary -

{a] salary per provisions contained in Section 17{1) of Income-tax Act, 1961 ¢ ¥2,30,63,180
{b} wvalue of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961 . (]
{c] profits in leu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income-tax Act, 1961 v Mil
Stock Option C Ml
Sweat equity c Ml
Commission - as % of profit v Mil
Others .
Total . ¥32,30,63,180
Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013 v Motapplicable
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Compounding

Penalty

Penalty

A, COMPANY
Penalty

Punishment

B. DIRECTORS

Punishment

Compounding

Section of the

Companies At

il
il
il

il
il
il

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Punishment

Compounding

Ml
il
il
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Brief

description

M4,
MLA,
M.A,
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N.A.
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imposed

ERL, |

Court]

Appeal
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Annexure-I|

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance :

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is almed at:

la) Enhancing long-term stakeholder value and its own wealth generating capacity through
& assisting top managemeant in taking sound business declsions;
o prudent financial management,

(b)  Achieving transparency and professionalisim inall its decisions and activities.

(e}  Adhering to the disclosure compliances.

{d) Achieving excellence in Corporate Governance by-
e conforming to the prevalent guidelines on Corporate Governance and excelling in, wherever possible;
e reviewing periodically the existing systems and controls for further improvements;
® setting high ethical standards in conduct of business;
& complying with laws and regulations;
® strategic guidance and effective monitoring by the Board.

Board of Directors :

Compaosition:

The Company is a 'Government company' within the meaning of Sectlon 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013, At present
the entire paid-up share capital is held by the President of India through Ministry of Railways (Administrative Ministry]
and Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs. In terrms of Article 124(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board of Directors shall consist of the following Directors :

(i} Directors nominated by the President of India through Ministry of Rallways & Ministry of Urban Affairs;
(i) Managing Director;

tifi} Whole-time Directors/Functional Director(s);

{iv} Directar(s) nominated by the debenture halders;

v} Independent Director{s).

In terms of Article 124(b}, the President of India has the right by notice in writing addressed to the Company, to
neminate persens on the Board of the Company including its Chairman.

In terms of Article 125, strength of the Beard shall not be less than three or more than fifteen directors, Government
of Indla has not yet advised the strength of the Board,

As on 31.03.2023, the nuraber of Directors on the Board of the Company was 9 (ning), including 3 (three) functional
Directors viz., Managing Director; Director (Finance), Director (RS&T) and Director |Project) & Planning), 1 {one)
Director nominated by the Government of West Bengal, 3 (three) Directors nominated by Ministry of Railways and
2 (twa) Directors nominated by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs.
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Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2023 5 as under ;

sl.Ne. Mame of Director Category of Directorship

01 | ShriP.UK Reddy | Chairman

0z, | Shr H. N, Jaiswal MManaging Director

03. | Shri Angshuran Sarkar Director (Finance) & Director (RS&T)

04. | ShriSyed Md Jamil Ahsan Director (Projects & Planning)
_ﬂE_ | 511r| Jaiﬁeeﬁ__m | - Momines Dir\éc‘mr ......

06. | Shri Magen Moreshwar Dhoke Nominee Director

o7, Shri Dhananjaya Singh MNomines Director

g, | O, Saumitra Mohan, 1AS Mominee Director

Board meetings

MMeetings of the Board are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of Chairman.
Structured agenda notes and other papers backed by comprehensive background information are circulated
to the Board members seven days prior to the meeting for facilitating meaningful discussions at the
meetings unless the meeting is called by a short notice. Where it is not found practical or otherwise to
attach or send the relevant background information as part of the agenda notes/papers, the same are
tabled at the meeting,

Meetings and attendance

During the financial year ended 31.03,2023, the Board of Directors of the Company met 5 (five) times —
on 19,05.2022, 08.08.2022, 30.08.2022, 29.11.2022 and 10.02,2023.

Attendance of Directors at Board meetings and at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) are as under:-

Name of Dircctors MNo. of meetings Attendance at the last

attended AGM held on 29.11.2022

Shri Arun Arora 5 Yes
Shri C.N. Jha 4 Yes
5hri Nar=sh Chandra Karmali 5 Yes
shri Angshuman Sarkar 4 Yes
shri Jaldeep 5 Yes
Shri Shyar Sunder Dubey 1 M.A.
Shri Magsen Moreshwar Dhokey 5 Yes
Shri Rajesh Kurmar Sinha 8] M.A
Smit. Anju Warrior 1 MN.A.
Shri Dhananjaya Singh 2 Yes
5hri Binod Kumar 2 No
Shri UK. Reddy : N.A.
Shri H.M. Jaiswal ' - M.A
~ Shri Syed Md, JTamil' Ahsan - NA

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board meeting were recorded and entered in the minute book, signed by the
Chalrman.



Audit Committeee:

The Audit Committee during the financial year 2022-23 constituted with Smt. Anju Warrior (as Chairperson],
Shri M. M. Dhoke (member) and Shri Jaldeep (member). Smt, Anju Warrior has ceased to be a member of the
Committee in July 2022 pursuant to the expiry of her tenure as an Independent Direcor of the Company and Shri
Dhananjaya Singh, Director has been appointed as a member of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as
Secretary of the Committee. The representative of the Auditors are also invited to the meetings of the Commitiee,
The Committes invites any Officer of the Company in the meeting, whenover it is required,
Terms of referance of the Audit Committae (as approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 27.08.2009)
are as under:

1. Discussions with the Auditors periodically about the Internal control systern and the scope of audit including

cheeryations of the auditors;

2. Review of annual financial statements before submission to the Board of Directors:

3. Ensuring compliance of internal contral systems:

4. Investigations into any of the afore-stated matters or as may be referred to by the Board; and
5. Review of Management Information Systerns, ete.

The role assigned to Audit Committee in terms of paragraph 4.2 of the "Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises” issued by Government of Indiz, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Department of Public Enterprises in May, 2010 is also being followed

The Comimittes acts as a link between the Managemeant, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors
and assesses the financial reporting system. The Audit Committee has been constituted only with nen-functional
Directors.

During financial year ended 31.03.2023, the Committee met 4 (five) times - on 19.05.2022; 08.08.2022, 29.11.2022
and 29.03.2023.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In compliance of Section 178{1) of the Companies Act, 20013, a "Mominzation and Remuneration Committee" has been
canstituted,

The Nomination & Remuneration had been reconstituted before the date of this report comprising of the following
Directors:

1. Smt. Anju Warrior (Non-official Independent Director) - Chairperson
2.. Shri Magsen Mareshwar Dhoke (Mon-official Director) - Member
3. Shri laideep (Non-official Director) - Member
4. Shri Naresh Chandra Karmali - Member

Smit. Anju Warrlor & Shri Naresh Chandra Karmall had ceased to be Directors and Members of the Committe wef,
10.07.2022 and 11.02.2023 rospectively.

Non official Independent Directors are entitled to remuneration by way of sitting fee at the rate of ¥ 20,000/ for
attending each Board Meeting and ¥ 15,000/- for attending each Committee mesting.

The functional Directors are appointed by the President of India through the Ministry of Railways. Functional Directors
{except those who are on Additional Charge} are on deputation from Ministry of Rallways in the pay scale of the
parent cadre plus admissible allowances.

Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has laid down the "Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior
Management" for maintaining standards and ensuring compliance with fegal requirements. it is displayed on the
wiehsite of the Company.

Annual General Maetings:

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as follows:

2021-22 29.11.2022 ' Thraugh vides conference None

at 15:30 hours

2020-21 27.11.2021 Through video conferance None
at12:30hours |

2019-20 18.12.2020 Through video conference Mone
at 16:30 hours
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Annual General Meeting for the financial vear 2022-23 will Be held at on 115.19.2023 at 15.30 Hours through video
conference.

Disclosures:

i} Materially signifizant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company
at large - there is no such transaction. However, the disclosure required under Indian Accounting Standard AS
24 has been incorporated in 'Motes to the Financial Statements’,

if} Detalls of non-compliance by the Company, penaltias, strictures imposed on the Company by any statutory
authority on any matter related to any guidelines issued by the Government, during the last three years - None.

i) Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committes- the
Company has adopted a 'Whistle Blower Policy'. Mo personnel of the Company have been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

iv] Details of compliance with the reguirements of the Guidelines - the Company has generally complied with the
requiraments of the Guidelines.

v} Detalls of Presidential Directives issued by the Central Government and thelr compliance during the year and
alse in the last three years - No Presidential Directive was received during the previous year

vi)  Hems of expenditure debited in the books of account, which are not for the purposes of business - there Is no
such item of expenditure during the year.

vli] Expenses incurred which are persanal in nature and incurred for the Board of Directors and Top Management-
Nene,

Means of Communication:

The shares issued by the Company are not listed on any Stock Exchange. Hence, quarterly results are not published

in newspapers. However, annual audited financial results are displayed on the website of the Company{www.kmrc.in),

Address for correspondence:

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Lid.

'"KMRCL Bhavan', HRBC Office Compound

Munshi Premchand Sarani, Kolkata - 700021,

Audit Qualifications:

There is no qualifications in the Independent Auditor's Report on financial statements of the Company for 2022-23,

Training of Board Members:

The Company is a special purpose vehicle for implementing the 'East-West Metro Corridor’ Project in Kolkata,As per

decision of the Union Cabinet {vide minutes of the meeting held on 23.08.2012), the Company is anly "Project

Implemeantation Unit" of the East-West Metro Corridor Project, Kolkata, 1t will continue to function 1l the completion

of the execution of the Project. However, all the shares of the Company will be held by Government of India, who

after completion of the Project would run the system alongwith existing North-South Corridor under a unified control,

Subseqguent to execution of the Project, the operation of the East-West Metre Corridor will be merged with those

of the Metro Railway, Kolkata. Hence, need to train Board members in the business model of the Company have not

baen felt till now.

Whistle Blower Palicy:

The Company has adopted a "Whistle Blower Policy', which is displayed on its website. Such Folicy provides a framework

to enable the employecs wishing to ralse a concern about serlous Irregularities within the Company without fear of

victimisation and covers protected disclosures by all categaries of employees.

Compliance Certificate:

This report duly complies with the requirements of "Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector

Enterprises”. Certificate obtained from a practicing Cormpany Secretary regarding compliance of the aforesaid Guidelines

on Corparate Governance has been annexed to this Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Kollkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

Place: Kolkata P.U.K. Reddy
Diate: 19th September, 2023 Chairman



MANAGEMENT DISCUSS|ION AND ANALYSI|S REPORT

Annexure-ll|
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Urbanization is the present day world trend generated through opportunities associated with the cities. More and
more people are moving In from rural to urban localities. It is projected that In 2030, about 4.9 billion people (60%
of the global population) will live In urban areas. Futuristic deslgn of cities, therefore, aims to accommodate large
populations while creating high guality of urban life sustainable to the society. Megacities in today's world, therefore,
require a transportation system that has baslc attributes of sustainability - etficlent, affordable, accessible and
environment fricndly. Mass Repid Transit System (MRTS) has boen found 1o be ideal transport solution in this regard,
as evidenced by the increasing number of cities opting for the same both in India and other countries.

The Company has been formed to implement the 'East West Metra Corridor' connecting Salt Lake Sector V in the east
ta Howrah Maidan in the west. Government of Indla {'Gol') has declded that the Company will be the Project
Implementation Unit and continue to function till the completion of execution of the Project. However, all shares of
the Company will be held by Gol, who after completion of the Project would run the system along with North-South
Corridor under a unified control.

Vision, Mission and Objective
Vision:

To emerge as the most efficlent implementation unit for rall-based urban transport infrastructure with sound financial
and technological base adopting global project implementation standards and practices for efficient completion of
the projects with utmost care towards gquality, safety and satisfaction of the users in an environment of synergy
between public service and soclo-economic sustainability.

Mission:

To implement the 'East-West Metro Carridor' MRTS Project in the urban conglomeration of Kolkata city and its
urbanised surroundings of Howrah and Salt Lake to meet the ever-growing demand of mass mobility In this region,

Objective:

1. Toestablish the 'East West Metro' as a state-of-the-art urban passenger Mass Transit System, providing affordabtle,
hassle-free, safe and pollution-free conveyance to oty life.

2, To promote and facilitate Metro ridership as a part of integrated traffic rationalisation plan and comprehensive
mobility plan for Kolkata city and its urbanised surroundings of Howrah and Salt Lake.

3. To mobilise the required resources for project implementation in order to achieve financial soundness and
sustainability.

4. To execute the Project with least cost escalation with proper improvisation skills to harmonise available financial
and technological resourcas In order to achieve optimum time targets.

5. Tomaintain a cost effective organisational set up and implement proper training and value addition programs
of best standards for generating a motivated and result orfented Project team.

6. To maintain highest standards of guality and safety during execution of the Project.
Difficulties faced in Project execution

Project implementation (as envisaged in Dotailed Project Report) has been affected due to external factors like non-
availability of land as well as realignment issue. There has also been time as well as cost overruns. The Project is being
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implermented in two phases viz, Phase-| from Salt Lake Sector V to Phoolbagan and Phase-ll from Phoolbagan to
Howrah Maidan.

The entire Phase-| has been commissioned now in two steps © Bhase-1A from Salt Lake Sector-\ Station to Salt Lake
Stadium Station sinee 14.02.2020 and from Salt Lake Stadium Station to Phool bagan since 05.10,2020. The
implementation of Phase-| was affected due to non-availability of land at Duttabad and Swabhumi as well as Depot
at Central Park which affected construction of elevated viaduct on a 365-metre and 120-metre stretches, respectively.
The project affected persons of Swabhumi wera rehabilitated in 2013 and those of Duttabad in 2015 and the
construction work proceeded only thereafter, The land issues in Depot was also resolved only in 2013,

In Phase-ll, due to non-availability of land for construction of proposed Central and Mahakaran stations, Government
of West Bengal had proposed realignment of the route. This {executing the Project as per realigned route) has lead
to its extension by 1.878 kilometres, involving additional time and cost. Ministry of Rallways accepted the realignment
proposal in August 2005 and the stalemate in Phase-ll which was continued since 2012 was over. Work on this section
resumed in Septermber 2015.

Incidence of water ingress at Bowbazar TBM (Tunnel Boring Maching) Retrieval Shaft on 31st August, 2019 and again
on 11th& 1Zth May, 2022 posed hindrance to the progress of the Project.

Crucial clearances had also to be obtained from the Archaeological Survey of India (as certain protected monuments
are |ocated in the vicinity of the route) and defence authorities {since one of the stations will be under land owned
by the Army) in 2017,

Opportunities

Az the Project is being executed as per revised alignment, it is expected that there will be significantly higher passanger
traffic through proposed Esplanade station (inter-change station of 'East-West' and 'North-South’ Metra lines). The
Joka-BBD Bag Metro line will also terminate at Esplanade. & bus hub is located in Esplanade close to the proposed
station, Besideos, it is also proximate to the central business district of Kolkata. Lipon completion, the Project will also
provide inter-nodal connectivity with two busy surface rall stations at Howrah and Sealdah, connection to ferry, bus
and tram. Perhaps no other mass transit system in the contemporary weorld links so many diverse modes of
transportation.

Having regard to the population density of Kolkata city and adjaining areas, the potential demand for ridership of
the 'East-West Metro' line is considered fo be a unique feature.

Considering all these peaple-centric values and the opportunities invalved in this Praject, the coveted Institution of
Civil Engineering of United Kingdom has on the occasion of their bi-centenary listed the Project as one of the two
hundred projects in the world having significant impacts in making people's llves better. The project was also featured
in world tunnel congress held In Doha in 2008, These international accolades have boosted morale of the Project
team to a new height.

The 'East-West Metra' has been conceived in such a manner that there will be potential for connection to Netsji
Subhas Chandra Bose internaticnal Airport from Salt Lake Sector-\' Simifarly, on the western end, the line can be
extended to Santragachhl or Ramralatala,

Howrah and Sealdah stations being among the busiest rail stations in the world will generate huge commuter traffic
along the Metro line connecting these stations both during maoming and evening rush hours, The "East-West Metro'
line will provide significant benefits ta the commuters within central business district of Kolkata and out to New Town,
Salt Lake and Rajarhat in the east, as well a5 to residents of Howrah city and surrounding areas in the western fringe.
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Threats

In order to ensure delivery of the Project as per revised time schedule and cost, coordinated efforts are required
among the various stakeholders viz. Ministry of Railways; Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs; Ministry of Finance;
Government of West Bengal; lapan Internationz| Cooperation Agency; etc, However, even the coordinated efforts
may not be adequate to ensure that the Project gets executed on time and cost due to Involvement of so many
external factors and market dynamics in such a complex project bio-sphere,

Obtalning necessary permission for closure of roads and fly aver for construction as well as relocation of differant
utilities (mostly under-ground) falling within the revised alignment poses a threat of time overrun as identification
of the same, obtaining permission as well as implementation in 2 densely populated city like Kolkata involves
multifarious stake-holders and Is extremely timea consuming.

Further the repeated incidences of water Ing:ﬂ's in the tunnel also affected the Project's progress,
Internal Controls

A strong internal control framewaork is an essential pre-reguisite to provide a reasonable assurance that in pursuit
of the organisation's mission, the general ohjectives of executing the Project are ethically, economically and effectively
achieved. In this context, the internal control systems of the Company are considered adequate and commensurate
with its size.

Future outlook

The Company intends to establish the 'Kolkata East West Metro' a5 a state-of-the-art urban passenger MRTS providing
affordable, hassle-free, safe and pollution-free mode of conveyance to city life. With the completion in view, the
Company is cotnmitted to ensure the guality as well as safety in implementation of the Project. This Company will
generate & world class technological data base and know how in planning and implementation of such 2 remarkable
metro project which can be utilized by the project stakeholders for future projects in the horizon,
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2A-Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Commerce House,

D' RAUT & ASSOCLATES Gth Floor, Room Mo, #A, Kolkala-700 013

COMPANY SECRETARIES Ph. No., 033-22253585
E-mall : cedreuti@gmall.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The Members
Kelkata Metro Rail Corporation Lid,
CIN: U0 00WB200BGOIN 27338

WWe have examined the compliance of Corporate Governance by Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2023 as stipulated in the "Guidelines
on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises 2010" issued by the Govemment of India,
Ministry of Heawvy Industries and Public Enterprises, Department of Public Enterprises and annexures
mentioned there under (hereinafter referred to as 'the Guidelines').

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the condilions of corporate govermance as stipulated In the Guidelines. It s neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial siatements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the stipulations of the guidelines except that:

1) The Company does not have the minimum number of Independent Directors and a Woman Director
in terms of the provisions of Section 148(8) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

For the above reason the Constitution of the Committees and the separate meetings of the Independent
Directors of the Company has also not been complied with.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Companynor
the efficiency of the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For D. Raut Assoclates
Company Secretaries
C5S Debendra Raut

Proprietor
Place: Kolkata ACS: 16626; CP No. 5232
Dated: 06.09.2023 UDIN: AD16626E000956785



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

D. RAUT & ASSOCIATES 24-Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Commerce House,

8th Floor, Room No. 7A, Kolkata-700 013

COMPANY: SECRETARIES Ph. No. 033-22259585
E-mail : cedrauti@gmall.com

Form Mo. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
(CIN : Ue0100WB2Z008E01127338)

'"KMRCL Bhavan', HRBC Office Compaound
Munshi Premchand Sarani

Kollata - 700 021,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices byKolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limitedihereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial
Audit was conducted In @ manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Basad on our varification of the Company's books, papers, minutas books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and autherised
represantatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in aur opinion, the Company has during
the audit period covering the financtal year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made herginafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023according to the provisions of:

(}  The Companizs Act, 2013 {"the Act") snd the rules made thereunder;

(it} The Company is not a fisted cormpany. Hence, Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules
made thareunder are not applicable to it;

(iii} The Company is not a listed company. Hence, the Depositories Act, 1995 and the Regulations and bye-laws
framed thereunder are not applicable to it;

(W) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1399 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the axtent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings are not applicable
to the Company;

(v} The Company is not a listed company, Hence, the fallowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') are not applicable to it:-

2} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1922,

e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capltal and Disclosure Reguirerments) Regulations, 2009
(Mot applicable to the Company during the audit period);

d]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1939,

g]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (1ssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (not applicable
to the Company during the audit period);

f}  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1233
regarding the Companies Act, 2003 and dealing with client;
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g}  The Securitias and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2002 (not applicable as the
Cempany has not delisted/proposed to delist its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial year
under review); and

h]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Mot applicable as the
Company has not bought back/proposed to buy back its securities during the financial year under review).

(wi] The Company (a Central Government Public Sector Enterprise under the Ministry of Rallways) is engaged in
Implementing the rail-based "Fast West Metro Corridar’ Project In Kolkata, As Identified by the Management
the following specific laws are applicable to it In addition to general laws:

a. Laws related to Labour and Workmen;

b. Provident fund;

c.  Provision of basic safety & health provisions at worksites under various laws;
d.  Environmental laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

{i}]  Secretarial Standards with regard to the meetings of Board of Directors {55-1) and General Meeting (55-2) issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India {ICSI).

(i} The Company is not required to entar into any listing agreemeant with any Stock Exchange(s) with respect to the
securities (shares) Issued by it as itis an dnlisted Public Company,

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulatians,
Guidelines, etc. mentioned above, except the following observation:

1.  The Company does not have the minimum number of Independent Directors and 8 Woman Director in terms
of the provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013,

For the above reason the constitution of the committeas and the separate meetings of the Independent Directors
of the Company has also not been complied with,

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, except the Independent Directors and Woman Director as mentionad above, The changes in composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the pericd under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adeguate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and abtaining further information and darifications
an the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decislan is carried through while the dissenting members' views (if any) are captured and recorded as part
of the minutes,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to manitor and ensure compliance with applicable |aws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period;

1. Since the net worth of the Company is more than Rs, 500 crores CSR s applicable te the Company. Further the
rmanagement has represented that the Company is not required to make any contribution to CSR fund as the profit
calculated under section 198 is negative.

For D. Raut & Associates
Company Secretaries
Debendra Raut
Proprietor
ACS No- 16626
Place: Kolkata C.P. No- 5232
Date; 08,09.23 UDIN: AD1G626E000955091

This report is to be read with the enclosed annexure,



To

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Annexure

The Members
KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Dur Secretarial Audit Report is to be read along with this letter.

Management's Responsibility:

1I

It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to maintain the Secretarial records and
to devise proper systems to ensure compliance of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure
that the systems are adequate and operate effectively. The compliance of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
the Management.,

Responsibility of Secretarial Auditor

2.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records, We believe that the processes
and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management's representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer:

1.

This report is solely intended for forming an opinion on the compliances made by the Company under
the Companies Act, 2013 or SEBI (LODR) (a2pplicable only for Listed entities) and is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

The Lability of the lssuer of the Audit Repart s limited to the Professional Fee that he has received
for this assignment.

KMRC

45



45

Note : This page has been kept biank intentionally



ET AR | AL A1) |8 REPFU KMHC

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT
Railwny Production Units and Metro Railway
NKG Building (5™ Floor), 14, Strand Road
Kolkata — 700 001.

R

Ne. RPU & MREKMRCL/2023-24/790 Date: 31.08.2023
To

The Managing Director,

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited,

KMRCL Bhawan,

Kolkata - 700 021.

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditer General of India under section 143(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Sir,

Please find enclosed herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the annual accounts of Kolkata
Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Yours faithfully,
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF KOLKATA
METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023.

The preparation of financial statements of Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31
March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting frame work prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company, The statutory auditor appointed by the
Comptrolier and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 3rd July 2023,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under
section 143(6)(a) of the Act on the financial statements of Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2023, This supplementary audit has been carried out independenUy without access
tothe working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors
and company perscnnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records, Based on my
supplementary audit. | would fike to highlight the following significant matters under section 143({6)(b) of
the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better
understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report;
A. Comments on Financial Position

Balance Sheet Assets

Non-Current Assets

Other Financial Assets (Note - 7: ¥230.14 crore)

1. The above includes T 186.75 crore receivable from the Government of West Bengal (GoWB) on account
of State Goods and Service Tax (SG5T), pending processing of the claims by GoWB. As GoWB stepped
out of the project in 2012 and thereafter no new/revised Memaorandum of Understanding (Moll)
have been signed in this regard, the reimbursement of 5G5T by GoWB appeared doubtful, Therefore,
disclosing the above in Other Financial Assets instead of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) was not
proper. This has resulted in overstatement of Other Financial Assets by ¥ 186.75 crore and
understatement of CWIP by the same amount.

Non - Current Assets - Capital Work in Progress
Pre-operative expenditure (pending allocation) (Note - 6) T 253.51 crore

2. a) The Company completed and entrusted (February 2020} elevated portion of the East West Metro
Corridor project to Metro Railway, Kolkata for commercial operation. However, the mianagement
continued to capitalise the borrowing cost for the year and disclosed the same under Capital
Work In Progress in violation of the provisions of paragraph 24 of Ind AS 23,

In view of non-recognition of assets in the books of accounts, the financial implication invalved
for the deviation of Ind AS-23 could not be quantified during supplementary audit for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

b) The Company did not recognise and categorise the assets related to the elevated portion of East
West Metro Corridor Project in the books of accounts and also failed to comply with Paragraph
55 of Ind AS 16.

Other Non-Current Assets (Nates-8 T 87.94 crore)

3. The above includes an amount of ¥ 19.58 crore, being capital advance paid to M/s BEML Limited and
shown as mobilisation advance. As per the terms of contract, the said amount given to the contractor
as 2 'non-recoverable mobilization advance'. Therefore, the same should have been booked under
'‘Capital Work in Progress' instead of 'Capital Advance' to the contractor.

This has resulted in overstatement of 'Other Non-Current Assets' by ¥ 19,58 crore and understatement
of 'Capital Work in Progress' by the same extent.

Capital Work in Progress (Note -5 & 6 T 8055.90 crore)

4, The above includes anamount of T13.32 crore which was incurred towards electricity charges in
Phase -| commercial operation done by Metro Railway, Kolkata. The said amount was capitalised in
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the books of accounts under the head of 'Power Supply Expenses' relating to regular operation and
maintenance should have been shown as 'Receivable from Metro Railway' instead of capitalising in
the books of accounts.

This has resulted in overstatement of 'Capital Work in Progress' (power supply) and understatement
of 'Other Non-Current assets' to an extent of ¥13.32 crore.

Capital Work in Progress
Pre-operative expenditure (pending allocation) (Note - 6: ¥ 253.51 crore)

5. The above includes an amount of T15.53 crore, being 'other administrative expenses' for the year
2022-23. During the financial year, an amount of ¥ 3.65 crore, Central Goods and Service Tax (CGST)
- Consultancy fee - 'Capital Work in Progress' was debited to "other administrative expenses' instead
of 'consultancy fee'.

This has resufted in overstatement of 'Other Administrative Expenses’ by ¥ 3.65 erore and understatement
of 'Consultancy Fee 'Capital Work in Progress' by the same extent.

Capital Work in Progress

Pre-operative expenditure - Expenses (Notes - 6 T 498.63 crore)

6. The above includes an amount of ¥ 37.00 crore, being 'interest’ on loan from Japan International Co-
operation Agency (JICA) during the year 2022-23, However, the Interast charged during the year should
have been T 40.09 crore as per borrowing cost accounted by the Controller of Aid Accounts and Audit
(CAAA).

Thus, there was understatement of borrowing cost, with a corresponding understatement of JICA
loan repayment by Ministry of Finance along with interest to an extent of ¥ 3.09 crore.

B. Comments on Accounting Policy
Notes to financial statements Accounting policies (Note 2.1)

A referance is invited to Accounting Policy (Mete 2.1) in which it is stated that ' a policy has been adopted
by the management of the organisation in accordance to the guidance of Ministry of Railways to transfer
the assets from Capital-Worl-in Progress to Fixed Assets on full completion of the project and not on phase
wise completion. Hence in spite of commencement of commercial operation of a part of the project, the
whole of the amount is being shown under CWIP and there has been no transfer of any newly created
asset to Fixed Asset'.

However, the Ministry of Railways communication (2018) only stated that 'after completion of execution
of the project, Metro Railway, Kolkata would run the East West Metro Corridor along with the North-South
Corridor under a unified control'. The Ministry of Railways communication did not specify any accounting
treatment or any accounting instruction to transfer the assets from Capital-Work-in-Progress to Fixed Assets
on full completion of the praoject.

Further, Ind AS 16 provides that cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment shall be recognised as
an asset if the cost of the item can be measured reliably and it is probable that future econemic benefit
will flow to the entity.

Thus, the above policy adopted by the Company was neither in accordance with the directions of the
Ministry of Railways nor commensurate with the provisions of Ind AS 16,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Yours faithfully,

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 31 August 2023
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AUDITORS' R EPOR

Raj Kumar Kothari & Co. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office | 32, Ezra Street. 4th Floor, Suite # 403, Kolkata-7F00:0017
Phore : 22350677 / 98310 79963

Website © warw.rikoo.oom

E-mail : ca.rkothari@gmail.com | reothari@rkkeo.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Staterment of Changas in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial staternents, including & summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinsfrer refarred to as “the |ndAS Financial Statements”).

Im our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid IndAS
financlal statemeants give the Information required by the Companias Act, 2013 {The 'Act') in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS"), and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2023, and
its profit, total comprehansive income, changes in equity and its cash flows far the year ended on that date,

Basis for Dpinion

We eonducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilitizs under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to aur audit of the IndAS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceordance with these requirerments
and the Code of Ethics. We beliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinian.

Key Audit Matters

Reporting of key audit matters as per 54 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted

company,

Emphasis of Matter

([} We draw the attention to Note No. 7 of the IndAS fimancial statements wherein T186.76 crores receivable from
Government of West Bengal (GoWE) towards State Goods & Service Tax (SGST) and T41.38 crores towards VAT

in terms of Memorandum of Understanding (Moll} signed by the Company and GoWB has been recognized as
accounts recelvable, which has not yet been reimbursed by the Gowa,

(i) We draw attention to Note Mo. 26 of the IndAS financial statements wherein the value of 38.5 acres of land
receivad from Government of West Bengal (GoWB) on "permissive possession basis" for setting up depot at
Central Park, Salt Lake is not accounted forin the books of accounts of the Company. Reference s further invited
to Mate No. 26 of the IndAS financial statements wherein the GoWB has demanded 2 3368.73 crores as charges
for perinissive possession of the sald land.

(ili} We draw attention to Note No. 32 of the IndAS financial statements wherein the Chief Secretary, Government
of West Bengal had |ssued @ letter dated 06.11.2012 mentioning that GoWB has funded a sum of T48 crores
towards Land Acguisition for East-West Meatro Carrider Project, The Company has taken up and pursued the
matter with Government of West Bengal for details of T 48 crores so claimed to be funded to the Company, as
na such records are available in the records of the company. Reconciliation and resolution of the matter is still
pending.

(iv) We draw attention to Mote No. 8.1.2, 25 & 29 of the IndAS Financial Statermnents w.r.t. pending litigation cases
& contingent liabilities.

v} We draw attention to Note No. 5.4 & B wherein Capital Work in Progress includes expenses incurred in relation
to operations and maintenance of elevated portion of the project whose commercial operation has been entrusted
to Metro Railway, Kolkata for commercial aperations from February, 2020 and income in relation to the same
is recognised by Metro Railway,

Cur opinion Is not modified In respect of these matters.
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Information Other than the IndAS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comiprises of the
information included in the Annual report, but dees not include the IndAS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon,

Our qualified oplnlon on the IndAS financlal statements does not cover the other infarmiation and we dao not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the IndAS financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other information
and, in doing 5o, consider whether the other information [s materially inconsistant with the IndAS financial statements
ar our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that thare is 8 material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the IndAS Financial Statements

The Cormpany's Board of Directars is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act") with respect to the preparation of these IndAS financial statements that give 2 true and fair view of the
financlal position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes In equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and ather irregularities; sefection and application of appropriate accounting policias; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financlal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAS financial staterments that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the IndAS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Campany's abilivg
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, s applicable, matters related to going concern and using the: going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

The  Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the: Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Respansibilitias for the Audit of the IndAS Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IndAS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is nat a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect'a material rnisstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
conzidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expeciad to influence the economic
docisions of users taken on the basis of these IndAS financizl statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exerdise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

& |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IndAS financial statements, whether due to fraud
of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and abtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinicn. The risk of not detecting 3 material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the internal control.

&  Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the creumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial controls with reference to
IndAS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertalnty exlsts we are required to draw attentlon in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
IndAS financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadegquate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Howeyer, future events or conditions
may cause the Company 10 cease to continue &5 a goiNg COncermn.
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® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IndAS finandal statements induding the disclosures,
and whether the IndAS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events In a mannear that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstaternents in the IndAS financial staterments that, individually or in aggrepate,
rakes it probabla that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the IndAS financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
IndAS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scopeand timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requiremnents regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, refated safeguards,
Other Matters

1. The financial statements of the cormpany for the year ended March 31st, 2022 were audited by another auditor
whose report dated 08-08-2022 expressed a qualified opinion. The qualifications have been considered by the
management prospectively and given effect.

2. There Is non compliance on part of the Company w.r.t. the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 concerning
appointrment of directors. As per the related provisions and corresponding thresholds in place, the Company
should have atleast 1 Woman Director and 2 Independent Directors. Smit Warrior was appointed as an Independent
Director and was also the Woman Director on the Board of Directors. Post completion of her tenure on 10.07.2022
and subsequent requirement, vacancy has not been filled up, The cormpany does not have any Independent
Director as on date. As per management reply, such vacancy can only be filled up by the Government and they
have Intimated and requested for the same through multiple letters to the Railway Board.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. s required by the Companies (Suditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Grder") issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "B", a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the regquirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
pald by the Company to its directors during the vear Is in accerdance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

3. Asreguired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

I} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
balief were necessary for the purpase of our audit.

i} In ouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books,

iii} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the Statement of
Changes In Equity and the Statemeant of Cash Flows dealt with by this Repart are in agreement with the books
of account.

Iv} In aur opinion, the aforesaid IndAS flnancial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) rules, 2014, as amended,

y} The Company being a Government Company, the provisions of Section 164{2) of the Companies Act is not
applicable pursuant to the Gazette Notification No. GSR 829(E) dated 21.10.2003 issued by the Government of
Indiz,

vi] With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separalte Report in "Annexura A",
Our raport expresses an unmuodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
Internal finandal controls.

vii} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the bast of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
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The Cormpany has disclosed the impact of pending ltigations en its financial position in its IndAS financial
staternents - Refer Note 25 & 39 to the IndAS financial statemeants.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derlvative contracts for which there were any
rnaterial foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educatien and Protection Fund

by the Company,

{I} The management has representad that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, ne funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from barrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Campany to or in any other personis) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities {"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any puarantee security or the llke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Comipany from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entitles {"Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or atherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any rmanner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultirnate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

{iil) Based on such audit procedures as we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that the representations made by the management as stated in (i} and {Ii)
herein above, contain any rmaterial misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year therefore, compliance with the provisions

of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 s not applicable,

Praviso ta Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 far maintaining books of account using accounting

softwars which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect

from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

The Comptroller and Auditcr General of India has issued directions Indicating the areas to be examined In terms

af Section 143(5) of the Act, the compliance of which is set outin "Annexure €,

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 320166E

Wuyrthao

Raj Kumar Kothari
Fartner

Place: Kolkata Membeorship No.: 055208
Date: 03.07.2023 UDIM: 23055208BGWCEL4154



ANNEXURE - ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal financlal controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements of "KOLKATA METRO
RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED" {"the Company") as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
Financial Staternents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference Lo the IndAS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI'). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completenass of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS
financlal statermnents based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicakle to an sudit of Internal Financial Contrals and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal
financlal controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in 2ll material respects.

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
cantrols with reference to the IndAS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the IndAS financlial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financlal controls with refarence to the IndAS financlal statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the IndAS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belizve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the IndAS financial statements is a process designed to provide
reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IndAS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to the IndAS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that

I} pertaln ta the maintenance of recards that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(i} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of indAS finandial
statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of
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the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors af the company;
and

(i} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the IndAS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to the IndAS Financial Statements

Because af the inherant limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements;
including the possibility of coflusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatzments dus to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial contrals
with reference to the IndAS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to the IndAS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies ar procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls with reference to
the IndAS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial staterments
were operating effectively as at 31st March 2023, based on the internal control with reference to the IndAS financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidange Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to the IndAS financial statements issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla,

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 320166E

%

Raj Kumar Kothari
Partner
Place: Kollata Membership No.: 055208
Date; 03.07.2023 UDIN: 23055208BGWCELA154
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ANNEXURE - ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report of even

date
{1}

{2}

(b)

]

(A} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
examination of records we considered necessary, the Company is maintaining proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Eguipment.

(B) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
examination of records we considerad necessary, the Company does not have any Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, Para 3{i){a){B) of the Order is not applicable.

In our epinion and according Lo the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of
its property, plant and eguipment by which property, plant and equipment are verified In a phased
manner over & period of three years. However, property, plant and eguipment have not been physically
verified by the Management during the year, thus we cannot comment on any material discrepancies
noticed on such verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the title deeds of 2ll immovable properties (other than proparties
where the company is the lesses and the lease agreaments are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the IndAS financial statements are held in the name of the Company except the ones
mentioned below:

Description of the
Praperty

Gross Canrying Value
{in '003)

Held in the name of

Whather promoter,
director or their
relative or employes

Perod held - indicate
range, where
appropriate

Reason for not being
held in the name of
company

Lezsahald Land

1,57,305.52

Kalksts Fart Trust

Mo

o FAC 2012-13 till present

The Cornpaimy has taken
the land on aase for g
pericd of 3 years, The
Lompany is inthe
process of registering the
SHME N {15 SWh Name &1
nefarrad in Mote 22 to the
EndAS finantial
StAtEmEnts,

Building

4674173

Haoghly River Bridge
Lommissioners

Ho

Froam FY. 2008-09 tll present

The cwnesship of the
building wis not
transferred to KMACL
hecauge the building was
hade st the tima when
tha Siaie Government
wias 2 stake holder of the

arojec
The praject 1 on the
varge of camiletion and
the assat will be
Ralsy. ' & pered
il Nt
that h;lrh-u Faitway will
initiata furthar
cwmership, title eec. of
the buklding Refer Mote
23k the IncAS financial
stataments,

Freenald Land

T5,480,57

Gowernment of West
Esnpal

Wo

From R, 2006-09 t| presant

Mutation of 1458 g mits
oflard iz undar procass
and the mutation of 1733
50.mis aof land is pending
a5 the Esue |5 subjudice
and the casa is currantly
pending at Supreme
Court of indiz vide SLP
Mo (Civil) 36172 of 2013
a5 referrad (n Note
Mmoo the
[ndAs fingnciel
SEakEMEns,

H
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(i)

{iii)

{iv)

(v)

{vi)

{vii)

i

id) Inouropinion and according ta the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not revalued any class of its Property, Plant and
Equiprnent during the year. The Company does not have any Intangible Assets. The Company does
not have any Right of Use assets in the books of aceounts,

{2}  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on axamination
of records we considered necessary, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
{45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, Para 3{i){e} of the Order is not applicable.

{a}  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company does not have any inventary, Accordingly, Para
3(ii}{a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
from banksor financial Institutions on the basis of security of current assets, Accordingly, Para 3(il)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and cxplanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not made any investments. The Company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantoo or security or advances in the nature of loans,secured or
unsecured, to companics, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, Para 3{iii)
of the Order is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we consldered necessary, the Company has not given any loans/zuarantees/security to or an
behalf of any party or made any investment referred to In Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013,
The Company has not given any loan, guarantee or provided any security in connection with a loan to any
body corporate or any other persoh,

In our epinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considerad necessary, the Company has not acceptad deposits or armounts which are deemed
to be deposits during the year and therefore the directives issued by the Reserve Banl of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2012 and the rules
framed there under are not applicable to the Company. Mo order has been passed by Company Law Board
or Mational Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any othertribunal.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we cansidered necessary, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(2} Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employacs' state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable
to it with the appropriate authority.

There are no undisputed amount payable in respect of applicable statutory dues Including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tay, cess which were in arrears as at 31.03.2023 for a period of
mare than six months from the date they became payable.

{B)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records wa considered necessary, there are no dues of Incomie tax, Sales tax, Value Added Tax,
Service Tay, Custom duty, Excise duty or Goods and Services Tax (GST)which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute except as stated as below;

MName of the Nature of the Dues | Amount Period to which the Forum where
Statute (in "0DO) the amount relates dispute is pending
Finance Act, 19594 Service Tax 1,854.94 | kY, 2008-10 to 2012-13 Appellate Autharity

Commissioner Appeals (11),
Central Excise
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{ulil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based oh examination
of records we considerad necessary, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).Accordingly, Para 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable,

(ix}
{a)

(b)

fc)

(d)

(e)

(x)
{a)

(b)

{xi)

(b}

{c)

In cur epinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we consldered necessary, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Further, deferred payment liabilities
are not considered borrowings/dues to a lender and hence not commented upon,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considerad necessary, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for
which those were obtained,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, and on overall examinations of the Balance Sheet of the
Company,the Company has not ralsed any funds on short term basis. Accordingly, Para 3(ix)(d) of the
Order iz not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based an examination
of racords we considered necessary, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures. Accordingly, Para 3{ix){g) of the Order is not applicable.

In eur apinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us snd based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint wentures or
assoclate companies.Accordingly, Para 3(ix}{f) of the Order is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer {including debt instruments) during the year.Accordingly, Para 3{x){a) of
the Order is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records w2 considered necessary, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the
year.

In aur opinion and according te the information and explanations given ta us snd based on examination
of records we considered necessary, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
ar reported during the year. Accordingly, Para 3{xi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, no report under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Com panies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Gavernment, Accordingly, Para 3ixi)(E) of the Order is not applicable,

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, no whistle-blower complaint has been received by the Company
during the year. Accordingly, Para 3ixi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

[xil}) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary,the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, Para 3{xiijof the
Order isnot applicable,

{xiii) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considerad necessany, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and detalls of related party transactions have been disclosed In
the IndAS financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

()
(a)

In aur opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

O
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(b)

i

The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us during the
course of the audit.

{xv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not entered inte any non-cash transaction with
directors or persons cennected with him a5 specified under Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 Accordingly, Para 3{xv) of the Order is not applicablea,

{wevi)
fa)

(b]

(c)

(d)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books
and records, the Company is not reguired to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of india Act, 1934 as s Non-Banking Finance Company.Accordingly, Para 3(xvl)(a) of the Order are not
applicable.

In our epinten and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books
and records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities or any Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, Para 3{xvi)ib) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinicn and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books
and records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, Para 3(xvil(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us-and examination of books
and records, there is no Core Investment Company (CIC) in the group.

{xwii}ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial
year and In the immediately preceding financial year.

{wvdll) In our opinion and according to the Informatlon and explanations given to us and based on examinatian
of records we considered necessary, thers has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
However, statutory auditors during the year. However, statutory auditors are appointed periodically by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(xix) In our apinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books and
records we consider necessary, on the basls of the financlal ratlos, agelng and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of financlal liabllitles, other information accompanying the IndAS financial
statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and managament plans, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a perlod of one year from
the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this Is not an assurance as to the future viabllity of the
Compary. We Turther state that our reporting is based on the facts up ta the date of the audit report and
we give nefther any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date will be discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{aex)
2}  Inouropinion and according to the inforrmation and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary and as stated in Note 22(q) of the IndAS financial statements, the
Cornpany has not provided for any expenses based on expert opinion, copy of which has not been
provided to us.
(B)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, there are no ongoing projects untif the date of our report.
For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 320166E
@ﬂwﬁ}#'
Raj Kumar Kothari
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membearship No,: 055208
Date: 03.07.2023 UDIN: 23055208BGWCELS154



AUDITORS' EPOR

ANNEXURE - ‘C’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Repart on the Directions issued by the Comptreller and Auditor Generalof India under Sub-section 5 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Direction 1

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? IF yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions outside 1T system on the integrity of the accounts along with
the financial implications, if any, may be stated,

Our Comment

Im our opinion and accarding to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we cansidered necessary, the Company has appropriate systerm in place to process sl the accounting transactions
through IT system. However, transactions pending far due approval/checking/settlement are recarded in the books
of account only on finalisation of such claims, Agzregate of =il such transactions pending for finalisation are recorded
as 'Contingent Liabilities' as on the date of reporting and are disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

Impact on Financial Statements - As disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Staterments.
Direction 2

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waivarfwrite off of debts/loans/interest etc. made
by a lender to the company due to the company's inability to repay the laan? If yes, the financial impact inay be
stated, Whether such cases are properly accounted for?

Our Comment

In aur apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/Interest ete,
made by a lender to the company due to the company's nabllity to repay the loan have been made during the period
of audit.

Impact on Financial Statements - NIL
Direction 3

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Our Comment

In aur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has not received any funds for specific schemes from Central/State Government
or its agencies. However, budgetary support has been provided by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs and
Ministry of Railways for the implementation of metro project during the year under audit, The funds so received have
been utilised for the purpose of the project. The unutilised amounts are temporarily parked in Term Deposits and
the interest earned are ploughed back to the project.

Deviations - NIL

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ma, 320166E

Wnyoths

Raj Kumar Kothari
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership Mo.: 055208
Date: 03.07,.2023 UDIN: 23055208BGWCELA154
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KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

Particulars

ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
|aj  Froperty, Plant and Equipment
() Capital Work-in-Progress
(e} Financizl Assets
()] Other Financial Assets
[d)  Other Non-Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
fa}]  Financkl Assets
I} Cashand Cash Equivalents
til]  Bank Balance other than {i) abowve
(i)  Other Financial Assets
(B} Current Tax Assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQUITY
la}]  Equlty Shere Capital
(b)  Other Eguity
Total Equity
LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Liabilities
fa}  Financial liabifities
in Borrowings

(Il Other Flnancial Liabliities - Retention Maney 1412

(o) Provisions
(o) Other Mon-Current Liabilities
Total Mon-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
fa}  Financial Liabilities
(1] Barrawings

(i}  Other Financial Liabiities - Refention Maoney 17

(b)  Other Curent Liabtlities
Total Current Lisbilities
Total Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Accompanying Motes to the Financial Statements

Iryterms of our mport ttached

For Raj Kwmar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Account=nts
Firm Aeglstration Mo, @ 320166E

CA . K. Kothan

Fartrer

M. Mo, 1 055208

UDMN | 230553088 GMCELA]1S4

Piace : Bolkata
Dastd : rd July, 2023

Mote Mo, March 31, 2023
4 4,253,206,24
586 8,05,58,951 58
7 23,01,351.16
g £79,351.23
2,41,62,860.21

g 5,72,787.50
0 11,29,345.85
7 21,98,751.45
1 11,8706
39,12,755.76

8,80,75,615.97

12 3,75,86,200.00
13 7,287.38
3,75,93,487.38

14 4,8530,288.05
3,28,721.78

15 7.218.36
16 3.43,670.05
~ 4,92,09,899.25

17 §.86,678.065
2.79,960.87

12 1,05,590.47
12,72,229.34

_ 5,04,82,128.59

£,80,75,615.97
141

(Amount in ¥ thousands)

March 31, 2022

4,13,168.52
7,55,55,274.81

20,42,098.48
£,50,658.72
7,86,61,200.54

8,30,300.25
36,98,965.20
14,35 166,37
2,20346

"~ 5,956,544.29
 8,06,17,704.82

3,75,86,200.00
15.34
3,75,86,215.34

4,53,94,753.25
2,70,560.12
548844
1,62,974.90

" 4,58,33,776.10

8,84 54593
2,18,742.74
54,464.11

T 119775078
4,70,31,529.48

8,46,17,744.82

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

V. i Srivastsve
hiznaging Dinsciar
OFN . 102071753

Samik Bhatiacharym
Chisl Finemda Offloer
BAN - ARWPETEAIH

Angshuman Sackar
Diractor (Finanee]
DHM - DBRTAETI

Mohug Datta Gupta
Cappany Secretary
PAN : MEPGII24K
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KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended 31st March, 2023

Particulars Mote MNo.

INCOME

Revenue From Operations

Other Income 19
Total Income

EXPENSES
Other Expenses 20
Total Expenses

Profit Before Tax

Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit/{Loss) for the Period

Other Comprehensive Income;
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
Re-Measurement gains/{losses) on Gratuity Plan
Income Tax effect
Provision for Income Tas written back

15.1

MNet Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to Profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Earnings Per Equity Share ;
{1)
f2)
Accompanying Notes to tha Financial Statement

Bazic Earnings Per Share
Diluted
1-41

In tarers of aur repart atteched

Faor Raj Kumar Rothen & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regtsiration Mo, : 3HH6EE

CA R, K. Kothari

Partmar

M, Ma. : 055208

URIN: 230552 DERGWCEL41S4
Placa : Kalkata

Cated | 3rd July, 2023

March 31, 2023

8,074.70

E,074.70

290,72
290.72

7,483.98

-211.93

7,272.04

{Amaunt In ¥ thousands)
March 31, 2022

1,284.33
- 128433

71555
715.55

258,78

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

W I, Seivastava
Managing Director
DN 2 10207179

Samik Bhattacharyys
Chigf Financial Crfficar
PAN - AMWPBTOATH

Angshuman Sarkar
Director |Finance|
oM DIETBETI

Mohi tatta Gugits

Compary Secretany
PAN | MEPGII2AK

©
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KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{Amount in ¥ thousands)

Particulars

A,

mmo

P

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Met Incorne Before Tax & Extraordinary ltems
Adjustment for:

Other Comprehensive Income [Gratuity)
Depreciation & amortisation expenses

Faraign Exchange Fluctuations

Interest Income

Loss/{Profit) on Sale of Asset [ Investment
Operating profit before Working Caplial Changes
Change in Working Capital

Increase f(Decrease) in Lang Term Provisions
Increase f[Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase f[Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities
Decrease fincreasa) In Other Financlial Azsets
Decrease flIncrease) in Financial Assets
Decrease/(Increasa) in Finandal Lizbllities
Decrease/(Increase) In Current Tax Asssts

Met Cash Flow From Operation. ... (&)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of Capital WIP

Decrease f(Increasa) in Mon Current Assets

Met Cash flow From Investing Activities........ (B)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds From Issuance of Share Capital
Proceeds From Int. Free Subordinat debts
Proceeds From Long Term Borrowings

Proceeds From Short Term Borrowings

Ad|ustments of Gratulty Other comprehensive Income

Met Cash Flow From Financing Activities........ {{a]
Met increase in Cash & Cash Equlvalent (A + B + C)

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year

Cash & Cash Eguivalent at the end of the year

For the year ended

March 2023

7,483.98

7,483.88

1,730.92
11.126.31
1,80,685.16
-2,58,252 68
-7,73,584.98
1,19,379.20
-9,667.20

-7,22,088.72

-10,037.72
-50,03,676.77
.2,28,652.50

-52,42,406.99

27,38,809.22
3,96,725.58
2,132.12

-28,27,040.72

45,29,174.45

17,02,133.73

For the year ended

March 2022

558.78

-2,209.55
.32,595.25
-5,78,864.75
-2,78,675.16
-11,48,761,62
68,615.63
-543.48

-19,72,875.40

-3,520.34
57,83,848 87
2,10,428.98

-a23,76,940.23

61,24,600.00
970,926.55
33,08,477.85
-58,704.4D

1,03,45,534.08
27,95,718.45

17,33,456.00

45,29,174.45

Cash Flow Stataiment has been prepared under the indirect method a5 set out in the Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) -7
"Cash Flow Staterment” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Purchase of Fixed Assets includes movermnent of Capital Work In Progress during the year.
Cash and Cash Equivaients at the end of the year represents Cash and Bank Balances.
Previous year's flgures have been regrouped/reclzssified wherever applicable,

Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement

Ir terms af aur raport stteched

For Raj Kumar Rothar & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, : 3201656E

CA R K. Kothar|

Pertner

M Mo ; D55208

UM ¢ 230652088 GWCE L4154

Fiace ; Kolkata
Dated - 3rd July, 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

W, I Srivastna
Managing Mrector
D« A0RDTITY

Samik Bhatfacharyya
Chigf Financia: Officer
PAN : ShIWFETI4IH

Angshuman Sarkar
Director {Finance)
VN : 055TAET]

Wohua Datta Gupta
Campamy Secretary
FAN ; AIEPGIZ24K
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Statement of Changes in Equity
A.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

CUNTS 2022-23

(Arnount in ¥ thousands)

Farticulars

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period

Charges in eqguity share capital during the period
Fresh Allotment of Equity Shares
- For Cash
- For consideration other than cash

Balance at the end of the reporting period

Miarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3,75,86,200.00 1,40,30,000.00
3,75,86,200.00 1,40,30,000.00
- 6,124,600.00
- 1,74,31,600.00
3,75,86,200.00 -3,75,86,200.00

B.  OTHER EQUITY

{amount In ¥ thousands)

Reserve B Surplus
Partioulars Share Application | Retained Earnings Qther Total Equity
Money Panding Comprehensive | artibutabla to
Allotment Income | eguity hoiders
af the Company
Balances as on April 1, 2021 = = (777.52) {777.52)
Changes in equity share capital due to period errars - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reportng pericd - - {777.52) {777.52)
Profit/{Loss) for the year 558,78 234.08 70186
Transaction with Dwners in thelr Capacity As Owners
Issue of Equity Shares - - .
Share Application Money Received - - - -
Balance as at 31st Mareh 2022 - 558.78 [543.45) 15.34
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period ermory - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of tha current - 558.78 (543.45) 15.34
repartng period
Profit/(Loss) for the year 7.483.98 {211.93} 7,272.04
Transaction with Owners in their Capacity As Owners
Iszue of Equity Shares - - - -
Issue of equity shares other than cash - - - -
Share Application Money Received - - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 . 8,042.76 {755.38) 7,287.38
I trmis of ur repiort stiachad For and on behalf of Baard of Directors
For ftaj Kumar Kothari & Co,
Charterad Accountants WL 1. Srhmataun Angshuman Sarkar
Firm fAeglatration Mo, @ 3201668 Wanaging Diectar Direcior [Financs}
EAH b oAt DN : 10207175 ol ; (9676873
Partnar
M. Na. | 055208 Samik Bhattacharyys Miohua Datta Gupta
UDIN = 2305520885 WEELG 154 Chief Fimancial OHicer Comvpasy Secretary
Flace : Kafkats PAN : ANMWPBTRLIH PN : MEPGIIZ4K

Ceated @ 3rd July, 2023
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Motes to the Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Kelkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited [ The Cempany'), having CIN - UBDL00WB200BG0I27338 was incorporated
under the Companies Act, 1956 on 9th luly, 2008. It is a Government Company within the meaning of section
2(45) of the Companfes Act, 2013, erstwhile Section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company being 5PV
is engaged in the implementation of Kolkata East - West Metro Corridor Project in Kolkata, The company has
its registered office situated at Kolkata,

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
Accounting Policies

These financial staternents are prepared in accordance and In compliance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ird AS} notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with RBule 7 of Companies
(indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The accounting policies adopted
for preparation and presentation of financial statements have been consistently applied except for the changes
in accounting policy for amendments to the Standards issued by MCA effective for the current accounting
pericd and other rectification in accounting policies adopted in the previous financial yearThe presentation
of the financial statement is based on Ind AS Schedule [Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

A policy has been adopted by the management of the organization in accordance to the guidance of Ministry
of Rallways to transfer the assets from Capital-work-in-Progress to Fixed Assets on full completion of the
project and not on phase wise completion. Henece, in spite of commencemeant of comimercial operation of a
part of the project, the whole of the amount is being shown under CWIP and there has been no transfer of
any newly created asset to Flked Assets,

Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which iz also its functional currency.
Accounting Convention

The financial statemants have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, aceruzl and going concern except
for certain financial instruments that are measured st fair values at the end of each reporting period. Historical
Cost Is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given In exchange for goods and services, All
assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division || of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the
nature and the time betwaen acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
eguivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities,

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
Judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the zpplication of accounting.
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabllities,the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the reporting date of the financial staternents and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
period. Actual result could differ fram these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflocted in the financial
statements [n the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed |n the notes
to the financial statements.

In respect of works contracts, expenditure is booked as Capital Work In Progress on certification by the
engineers,

Significant Accounting Pollcies
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,

Interast incorne from a Financlal Asset is recognized when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flew
to the company and the amount of the income can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {contd.)

3.2

33

34

35

Income from Sale of Tender documents for the construction works are reduced from the expenses pending
capitalization.

Interest on advances realized from contractors is adjusted against the respective head of contracts stated in
Capital Work in Progress.

Interest earmed on Short Term Deposits with Bank |s not recognized as Income and reduced from the expenses
pending capitalization in Capital Work in Progress as it (s treated as Capital receipts. As per the decision of the
management interest income earnied on term deposit from temporary deployment of fund during the current
period has been adjusted with cost of Capital-Work-in-Progress.

Forgign Currencies

In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions In currencies other than the company's
functional currency {INR} are recognized at the exchangs rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting perod, monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date as provided by Ald Accounts and Audit Division. Non- monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for thair intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Employee Benafits
Provident Fund, Leave Encashment:

Cormpany's contribution to provident fund in respect of regular employees are accounted for on-acorual basis
and charged to Profit and Loss Account. The Company has no other obligation other than contribution payabie
to the fund.

In respect of Deputationists, employee benefits due to employees are paid to their respective
arganisations/employer from where they have been deputad based on the direction given by their organisations,
Leave Salary and Pension Contribution of deputed employees are also transferred to their respective organisations
as per their valuation.

Gratuity:
The Company provides for gratuity, Defined Benefit Retlrement Plan ('The Gratuity Plan') covering cligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumgp-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,

incapacitation or termination of ermployment, an amount based on the respective employea's salary and the
tenure of employment with the company.

Lizbilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by Actuarlal Valuation, performed by an Independent
Actuary, at each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net Interast),
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur,

Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and
is not reclassified to profit or loss account. Met Interest Is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit fiability or asset.

Taxation

Income Tax Expensa represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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Motes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

3.6

3.6.1

Current Tax

The Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. The Cornpany's current tax is calculated as
per applicable rate for the reporting period.

Current tax for current and prior periods, to the extent unpaid, is recognized as a liabllity. If the amount already
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods (assessment year-wise
and not cumulative), the excess shall be recognized as an assel.

Deferred Tax

Peferred tax expense or benefit is recagnized on timing differencas being the difference between taxable
incomes and accounting income that originate In one peried and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent period, Deferred Tax Assets are not recognized if there |5 probable chance that future taxable
prafit will be available in near future against which they can be realized.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment {including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc) held for administrative purposes,
are stated in the balance shect at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Cost of
acguisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses which are directly sttributable
for the construction or acquisition of such assets.

Tangible assats will be recognised when the entire project is ready for commercial operation and will be dealt
with as per the Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment after apportionment of pre-operative expenditure
and identifying ether tangible assets.

Leases

Ind As 116 states, a contact is, or contalns, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
anidentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.6.11 As a Lessee

3.7

L=ase of assets, where the company, a5 a lessee, has substantially assumed all the risks & benefits of ownership
of the leased asset &t the cammencement date shall rmeasure the right-of use asset (Rol)) at cost. Subsequeasntly,
following para 31 of Ind As 116, the asset is depreciated which is recognized as an expense in the Statement
of Capital Work in Progress on a straight line basis, over the lease term.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets under construction as on the reporting date of Balance Sheet are shown as Capital-Work-in-Progress.

Capital work in progress is considered to be in the nature of PPE under construction and the provisions of Ind
AS 16 Property, Plant & Equiprment will apply toit.

Construction expenditures, fees paid to consultants and all other costs |ess any income attributable to the
project along with pre-operative expenditure during construction are shown as Capital-Wark-in-Progress till
capitalisation, The same shall be allocated to the assets in the ratio of Assets Capitalised to the Total Capital-
Work- in-Progress. Recovery from contractors towards interest and others are adjusted against construction
expenditure pending capitalisation. As per Mol of the Company with GoWE all 5GST paid by the Cornpany
will be reimbursed by the State Govt, Hence, all SGST has been put under Non-Current Assets as SG5T Recelvable
with year wise break-up and corresponding reduction fram COWIP,

Year SG5T Amount
2017-18 2,10,019.98
2018-18 4,26,944.27
2018-20 4,59,627.33
2020-21 2.41,115.50
2021-22 2,71,481.28
2022-33 2,58,395.15
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Motes to the Financlal Statements {contd.)

3.8

3.9

3.10

111

Depreciation & Amortisation

The company depreciates Property, Plant and Equipment over their estimated useful lives using the \Written
down Walue method at the rates specified in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on the
assets purchased during the year is provided on the basis of put to use date.

The estimated useful lives of assets are a5 follows

Asset Useful Life (in years)
Building &0
Air Conditioning and Others 10
Computer Equipment 3
Motor Vehicle 8
Office Equipment 5
iT System & Networking 6

The management believes that the estimated lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assats are likely 1o be used. Estimates may change due to technologlcal development, change
in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation charges.

Freehold Land is not depreciated.
Leaschold Land is taken as an RolU which is to be amortised over the |ease period on a straight line basis.
Impairment of Tangible Assets (Property, Plant and Equipment)

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, Plant &
Equipment to determine whether there is any Indication that the assets has sufferad any impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to deternine the extent
of the impairment loss {If any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value
in use,

Borrowing Costs

Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs states that borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset forms part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense,

The company's Project [s specifically funded by Japan International Cooperative Agency (JICA) and Interest
Free Subordinate Debt from Government for the same. Since this borrowing is specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a gualifying asset, interest cost is eligible for capitalization less any income earned on the ternporary
Imvastment on those borrowing. Borrowings on account of subordinate debt,being Interest-free in nature, the
company has not assessed its fair value as on the date of Balance Sheet. However, Loan is to be serviced by
Ministry of Finance and it has been booked as Pass through Assistance (PTA).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the company will ba required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
tan be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Liabilitles are disclosed in the notes based on the
Judgment ef the management, Contingencies the likelthood of which Is remote are not disclesed In the Financial
Statements, Contingent Assets are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are
received or receivable,

u
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Motes to the Financial Statements (contd.)
3.12 Equity Instruments
3.12.1 Equity Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity shares anly,

3.13 Change in Accounting Policy

In the last financial year 2020-21, there was a change In accounting policy with a prospective effect, During
the FY 2020-21, the net of other comprehensive income was transferred to pre-operative expensss and
capitalised as capital work-in-progress, This was done to provide a reliable and more relevant information as
the company being an 5PV does not generate any revenue and has been established with the object of
construction of East-West Metro and not for its operation on completion of the project.

However, in compliance to the cbservation made by the CRAG of India, while preparing the Annual Accounts
forthe FY 2022-23, Profit & Loss Account has been prepared for the FY 2022-23, comprising the transactions

not directly attributable to the project.
4.0 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Mote No
Met Block 41
Add: Addition made during the vear
legs: Deletion made during tha year
Less: Total Depreciation during the year
Met Block

March 31, 2023

{Ameunt In T thousands)

March 31, 2022
4,21,780.39
3,533.91
-13.56
1213221

4,13,168.52
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Motes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

4.1.1 LEASE HOLD LAND

[t

Following are the changes in the carrying value of the Leasehold Land for the year ended 31st March 2023:

{Arnount in ¥ thousands)

Particulars Leasehold Land Total
Gross Carrying value as of April 1, 2022 1,97.396.52 1.97.396.52
Addition - -
Deletion/Disposals/adjustements
Gross Carrying value as of March 31, 2023 1,97,396.52 1,97,396.52
Accumulated depreclation as of April 1, 2022 56,527.86 56,527.86
Depreciation and Amortisation for the year 6,579.88 B,579.88
Accumulated Depreciation on Deletion/
Diposal/Adjustments - -
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2022 63,107.75 63,107.75
Net Carrying value as on March 31, 2023 1,34,288.77 1,34,288.77

Following are the changes in the carrying value of the Leasehold Land for the year ended 31st March 2022:

Particulars Leasehold Land Total
Gross Carrying value as of April 1, 2021 1,97,396.52 1,97,396.52
Addition - -
Deletion/Disposals/Adjustements - -
Gross Carrying value as of March 31, 2021 1,97,396.52 1,97,296.52
Aceumulated depreciation 85 of April 1, 2021 49,947,938 49,047,938
Depreciation for the year B,573 88 6,579.8
Accumulated Depreciation on Deletion/Dipasal/
Adjustments - - -
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2022 56,527.86 56,527.8B6
Net Carrying value as on March 31, 2022 1,40,368.66 1,40,268.66

41.2 Freehold Land includes T 3.00 crores paid to Calcutta State Transport Corporation towards cost of land at 10,
Lu Su Sarani, Kolkata for construction of Building for rehabiliation of project affected people of Mahakaran
and Central Station.

4.1.3 The value of land does not include the cost of an area of 38.5 acres of plot given by Government of West
Bengal to Kolkata Metro Rall Corporation Limited on permissive possession basis at Salt Lake as only right to
use has been given

4.1.4 There were no impalirment of assets during the year,

4.1.5 The treatment of lease rental for leasehold land is in compliance with the requirments of Para-21 of Ind AS-
116 where as a lessee KMRCL has followed amortisation of the initial lease payment in straight line methaod,
sinca inception of the lease uniformly over the lease period.

74



ANMNUAL REPORT 2022 23

Motes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

5.0 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

{Amount in T thousands)
Mote No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expenditure Directly Related to CWIP

Civil Construction Expenditure
Elevated Viaduct 31.41,00438 31,38,523.86
Station Building and Design 31,01,174.70 30,858,554 58
Underground Tunnelling- UG-1 21,03,04977.19 1,97, 72,913.85
Underground Tunnelling- UG-2 1,53,57,380.99 1,88.34,035 53
Central Park Depot 17,39,666.76 i?,15.410.15
Track works 21,51.208.41 198941045
Tunnel Ventilation System 9,50,178.65 7,56,754.33
Underground Environmental Control System 11,55,506.22 771, 726,56
Underground E&M 70,08,517.41 16,86,543.85
UFD-Ultrasonic Flaw Detector 276 86 276,86
UFWL-Under Floor Wheel Lathe 75,303.69 ?4,539.54
Power Supply 34.17,263.96 33,84.581.08
Signalling & Communication 31,71,197.10 23.32,413.39
Rolling Stock 99.46,965.93 a0,70,867.49
Automatic Fare Collection System 2,20337.58 2,39,141.71
Automatic Smart Card Recharpe Machine 6,168.83 2,216.95
Lifts & Escalators 6,36,895.85 3.32.492.72
Platform Screen Doorf Platform Screen Guard 4,89 63985 4,230,527 87
Independent Safety Assessment 20,276.10 19.498.93
Depot Store Machine 3,40,019.57 2,35,716.98
Manpower Supply for Operation & Maintenance B5,447.47 92,226.97
Scanner 29,857.18 1764574
Advance to Metro Rallway - 65,690.12
Other Anciliary Works 26,315.60 30,312.96

Consultancy Fees

Genera| Consuftants £3,05,958.19 49,16,631.92
Prime Consultants 1,71,375,53 1,7 137553
Others 70,906.76 5014002
~ 7,80,22,830.62 ~ 7,32,11,279.08
Pre - Dperative Expenditure Pending Allocation 6 _mig:ﬁjﬁgﬁ uu?ﬁlﬁgﬂﬁ
8,05,58,951.58 7,55,55,274.81

5.1  Interest earned an Mebilisation Advance and Retention Maney, realised from Contractars have been adjusted against Capital
Expenditure of the respective cost centres during the year,

5.2 As per clause 10.4 of the MOU dated 27.10.2008 between Govt of India (501}, Govt. of West Bengal {SOWE) and Kolkata
Metro Rail Corporation Limited |KMRCL) , GOWE will either exempt or reimburse to KMRCL all local taxes, duties and levies
incurred for the Implamantation of the project. Accordingly, taxes reimbursed / reimbursable by GOWE (VAT amounting
to T 78.26 crores) is reduced from the cost of respective Assets under Construction.

53 Post Implementation of G5T from 01st July 2017 a claim of Rs.160,92 Crores has been preferred to GOWE towards
reimbursement of SG5T { State Goods & Service Tax) upto the period March 2022, Claim of Rs, 2100 Crores has been
submitted pertaining to FY. 2022-23 out of the total claim of s, 25.84, Pending processing of the claim by GOWE the claimed
amount have been adjusted dgainst the cost of respective Assets undar Construction and kept separately as Non- Current
Cther Financial Assets. Year Wise Break Up of the SG5T Clalm Receivable is ;- FY-3017-18 - Re20.00 Cr, FY- 2018-19 -
R3.42.69 Cr, FY- 2019-20 - A5.45.96 Cr & FY 20-21 - Rs. 24.11 Cr, FY 21-22- Rs. 27.14 Cr, FY 22-23 - Rs. 25.84 Cr.

5.4  Capital Work in Progress includes expenses incurred in relation to eperations and maintenance of elevated portion of the

project whose commerclal operation has been entrustad to Metro Railway, Kolkata for commereial operations from February,
2020 and income in refation the same is recognised by Metro Raitway.
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KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{Amount in T thousands)

6.0 PRE-OPERATIVE EXPENDITURE (PENDING ALLOCATION)

6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4

Mats N Bsat3ta-22  fAddition/Deletion fsab 31523 Addition/Deletion
during the year during the year
2043 2011
EXPENSE
Borrowing Cost 5.1 56,26,955.92 2,70,001,70 33,56,354.22 3,05,075.26
Employes Benefit Payment 1 7,80,259 87, Li1391.67 6,68,938.15 1,08,34L77
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1,33,362.79 11,640.92 1,21,72187 12,132.72
Bank Charges 15,351.02 346,03 15,004.59 L4067
Advertisement Expenses 4736131 Loaayy 46,271.54 43543
Exchange Fluctuation Cost -7,00,720:30 -2,32,334.73 -5,1B30452-  -31.84.512.02
Letai & Professional Charges T8 A66.96 20,963.96 5750301 19.620:62
Other Administrative Expensss 712 B,03,314.04 1,55,313.04 ,48,001.00 1,20,002.64
Incame Tax for Earlier Years 2.01,572.27 - 2,01,97237 152.78
Reimbursemant to Matro Balliay 50,000,00 50, 000,00 = =
49 85,314.83 4,88,382.31 449787252  -15,28,320.58
INCOME
Interest on Term Deposit 5.3 240497500 2,84 705,76 1,10,219.33 95,721.56
Others 648102 144857 503245 751
Fent Recoveny from TTAR KRIY 6.3 31500 180134 301007 1,574.51
Rent fram Mablle Coverage 123472 157,68 1,352.40 1,033.68
Earnest Money Furfelture 480,00 < 480,00 =
Sgle of Tender Documents 12,533.98 56.90 12477.08 110.20
Interest on IT fefund 18,758.00 - 1B, 358,00 .
Interest on Security Deposit 4090.15 532 64 3,107.47 873.74
Less ; Income generated under operation - 4,51,193.67 2,97, 217.08 21,53,976.72 09.326.20
et Pre Operative Expenses transferred ta CWIP 25,45 110,496 1,91,125.23 234399573 (16,27,646.78)
Borrowing Costs during the yesr ended incledes Mate o, Mareh 31,3023 March3d, 2022
Imterest Expense JICA 3,770,000 70 30507526
Total 3.70,001.70 3,05,075.26

Interest Income has been adjusted 5o as to take anly the actual Interest Received and Accreed Interest on 58| Sweep Account
for the FY.2022-23, All Interest accrued on Investments which have been prematured have been adjusted to include only
Interest Recieved,

Rent Recovered from Contractar without any Formal Agreement ar contract with them.

Since, CAMA 5 making payment on behalf of KMRCL, difference in exchange rate fluctuation is not available with the
management. Forelgn exchange fluctuation expense of Rs. 23,23,34 779 is recorded considering the RBI closing rate as on
31.03.23 an the net payable amount in JPY. {FY. 2021-22, |t was Rs. 2,15,456,12,019).
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T.0

T4

7.2

8.0

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.2

8.3

(Amountin ¥ thousands)

OTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS Flate No. Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022
Non=Current
Un-Secured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 7.1 19.661.22 18.864.72
Yat Recelvable from GOWE 52 413,843 63 4,12,843.69
SGST Recelvable from GOWE 53 18,67,564.41 16,09,169.26
Other Recelvables 281.84 220,82
Total 23,01,351.16 20,42,098.48
Current
Un-5ecured, Considerad Good

Interest Recelvables agzinst Security Deposis - -
Other Advances

Other Advances/Prepaid 322.70 2B5.62

Fixed Deposit {includes Accrued Interest) 7.2 215842866 14,24,900.75
Tatal 21,98,751.35 14,25,166.37
Total Loans and Advances 45,00,102.51 34,67,264.85

Security Deposits represent Depasits given 1o Public Utilty Sarvices like Electricity and carried at historical cost. |t also
contains Deposit given to Eolkata Port Trust for using additional 375 sq. mt.of land for Yent Shaft purpose.
Fixed Deposit of T 5,74 Crore has been pledged with High Court for a case against 8 contratcor (ITD TR Cem V) for
reimbursement of PBG and car insurance due to delay in waork.

[Amount in ¥ thousands)

OTHER ASSETS
Mote Na Mareh 31, 2023 hzrch 31, 2022
MNON CURRENT
Secured, Consideraed good
Capital Advances
Advances to Contractors E.1 3,24,706,29 1,60,814.43
Advances to Government Bodies for Utllity Sarvices B.2 1,885,147 .82 1,10,086.03
Advance pald for Land Acgulsition 8.3 3.30177.77 33017777
Total Capital Advances 2,44,031.88 6,01,088.29
Advances other than Capital Advances
Balances with Revenue Authorities
Income Tax 24 35,249.78 49 50087
Service Tax B9.56 65.56
35,319.34 49,570.43
TOTAL 879,351 6,50,659
Advances to Contractors March 31, 2023 harch 31, 2022
Mooilisation Advance 2,96,573.10 1,60,814.49
TOTAL 2,96,573.10 1,60,814.49

tobilisation advences given as per terms of contract are fully secured by way of Financial Bank Gurantees received from
the Contractors.

Cther advance to contractors also include $2,81,33,183 a3 the VAT amount paid te M/s Simplex Infrastructure Limited
(M/=SIL) to be reimbursed by GoWE as per MOU which was subsequently refused by GoWB without stating any reason.
Henee, Mfs SIL was asked to give the amount back. However, 2 legal dispule aroze and at present an appeal against
arbitration award In favour of M/s SIL is pending before Calocutta High Court. In the said appeal, this amount is also
included as receivable fram M/s SIL The last hearing took place on 16.03.2022 and the jssue is yet 1o be settled.
Capital Advances made towards Utility Services s fully secured as the money has been paid to Government Agencies
sych as Eastern Rallway etc. and the advances will be adjusted In due course as and when work is completed,
Advances paid for Land Acguisition represents adhoc payment to LAC, West Bengal for acquisition of Land at different
|ocations for the project and pessession for those lands are yet to be handed over to KMRCL The Company vide Letter
oit. 13.10.2017 have raquested to GOWB for refund of an amount of ¥ 2523.77 Lakhs for change in alignment of East-
West Metro, land no more reguired, The matter is pending for settlement,

m
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

84  Income Tax Refundable Assessment Year Wise : Details of Assessment year Income Tax Refunds and Income Tax pald
{Ameunt in T thousands)

on Dispute are as under :

Assessment Year Income Tax Refundable Income Tax Paid Total
under Dispute
AY 2013-14 18,640.79 - 18,640.79
AY 2014-15 16,558.57 45.43 16,608.55
Total 35,200.36 49.43 35,249.78
241 Order ufs 250 has already been passed in CIT (A) for ALY, 2013-14 & 2014-15, and refund for the same is pending.
9.0 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {Amountin T thousands)
Mote No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance with Banks
Ir Current Account 5,72, 787.90 8,30,309:25
TOTAL 5,72,787.890 8,30,309.25
10.0 OTHER BAMK BALANCES
Note Mo. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit {Maturity not more than 12 months) 11,02,772.29 36,76,441.28
Interest scerued an above 26,573.56 2242393
Total 11,29,345.85 _ 36,98,865.20

10.1 Deposits includes Deposit of ¥ 1 lacs pledged with a Bank towards issuance of Bank Gurantee to Department of

Telecommunicatians,

10.2 Fixed deposit Includes T .94 crores of interest which belongs to 2 period prior te the sarllest period presentsd which has

been adjusted prospectively in the present financial year,

11.0 CURRENT TAX ASSETS
Mote No.
Tax Asset
Tax Deducted at Source
Total

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
11,870.66 2.203.45
—M' -—m
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MNotes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

12.0 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

12.1 Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

Authorized Share capital

Equity Share Capital
3,75,86,20,000 {37,58,62,000)
Equity Shares of T10/- 2ach

Issued, Subscried and Fully Paid Up
4,75,86,20,000 [37,58,62,000)
Equity Shares of T10/- each

m
©

NUAL REPORT 2022-23 KMRC
{Amaount in ¥ thousands)

Note No, March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
3,75,86,200.00 3,75,56,200.00
3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of T10 per share, Each holder of equity share |s antitled
to one vote per share, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any
of the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares hald by the respective sharsholders.

12.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

12.3 Detalled of Shareholders helding more than five percent Eguity Shares (5%)

124

125

Particulars Ag at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

A. Eguity Share Capital Mo, of Shares Amount T No. of Shares Amount$
Balance at the beginning
of the reporting period 3,75.86,20,000 3,75.86,200.00 1,40,30,00,000 1,40,30,000.00
Changes in equity share
capital during the period -
Fresh Allotment of Equity
Shares
- For Cash - £1,24,60,000 61,24,600.00
= For consideration other than cash 1,74.31,60,000 1,74,31,600.00
Balance at the end of the
reporting period 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,20,000 |  3,75,86,200.00

Mame of Shareholder’s As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
MNo. of Shares % held Mo, of Shares % held

President of India through

Ministry of Rallways 2,78,13,79,200 74008 2.78,13,79,200 74.00%

President of india through

tinistry of Housing & Urban &ffairs 97,72.40,000 26.00% 97, 72.40,000 26.00%
Detalls of Proamoters holding

Mame of Promoters At the beginning of the year At the end of the year | % Change during the year

Mo, of Shares % hald Mo, of Shares | % held

President of india through

Ministry of Railways 2,78,13,79,200 | 74.00% | 2,78,13,79,200 | 74.00% 0.00%

President of indla (Ministry

of Urban Development) 97,72,40,000 | 26.00% 57,72,40,000 | 26.00% 0.00%

Mominees of President of India 200 0,009 BO0 D.00% 0, 00%

For the period of 5 years immediately preceeding the date of Balance Sheet Reporting Date

(a) Agggrgate number and class of shares alletted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash MIL

(b) Agaregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares MIL

) Aggregete number and class of shares bought back

MIL
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Motes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

13.0 OTHER EQUITY

131

13.3

B|

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Closing Balance (Total A)

Reserves and Surplus

Surplus :

Opening Balance

Hedd : During the year

Less | Transfer ta CWIP*

Closing Balance (Total B)

Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance

From Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation
nat of Incomes Tax

Closing Bafance (Total C)

Balance at the end of the year (A+B+C)

ACCOUNTS 2022~

MNote No
13.2

131

(Amount In T thausands)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
558,78 .
748398 55878
8,042.76 G5B.78
-543.45 =ITlal
-£1193 34.08
-755.38 543 45
7,287.38 15.34

The company has transferred (for 20-21 Rs. 217,82,05,388/-, for 19-20 T 236,92,20,200/- and for earlier years
¥.15,10,14,813/-) 10 Capital Work In Progress (CWIP) which were earlier booked In Profit and Loss Account. As per the
management opinion, since KMRCL iz a 3PV, all the expenses incurred are related to CWIP hence income/expenses booked
earller 25 revenue now transferred to CWIP,

Share Application Maney Pending Allotment
The Share Application Money does not include any Share Premium

Reconciliation of Changes in Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Balance at the beginning of the reporting periad
Add : Fresh Share Application Money Received
Less : Shares Alloted during the year

Balance at the end of reporting pariod

MNote No

{Amount in ¥ thousands)

As at 31st March,

2023

As at 31t March,

2022
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14.0 BORROWINGS :
tamount in ¥ thousands)

Nate Na March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

MNON CURRENT
Unsecured

14.1t014.9
14.10 and 14.11

Senior Tenm Debt (11CA)
Interast free loan from Government of India

3,52,13,913.95

1,33,16,374.10
4,85,30,288.05

3,48,17,188.37
1,05,77,564.88
4,53,94,783.25

141 lapan International Co-operation Agency [JICA) has enterad Into an Agreement with Prasident of India to provide support
for the Infrastructural Development in Indiz. Cne tuch propasal was construction of East West Metro Project in Kolkata in
the State of West Bengal to cops up with the increase of traffic demand in Kolkata Metropaiitan area by extending the mass
rapid transportation system, thereby promoting regional economic development and improving urban development and
improving urban environment, through mitigation of traffic jams and decrease of pollution caused by increasing matar
vehicles.

NCA Loan Is soverelgn guranteed Loan and ls supported by necessary Loan agreement which details the terms and canditions
of the Loan,

JCA Loan |5 & long term Financial Lisbility and is carried at Amortised Cost |n the financial statement in accordance with

IND-AS-32,

14.2 JNCA hazsanctioned Loans in two tranches detailed hereunder ;

Particulars fgreament Sanctioned Amount
Date {Amount in lacs in
Yon)

54,370.00

Rate of Commitment Charges
Payable on Unutilised

Amount

Purpose of loan

Loan Ajc 192
Loan Afc 1924

10/03/2008 1.20%

0.01%

Construction Cost
Technical Consultancy
Contingency Loan

0.01%

64,270.00

2,34,020.00 1.40% 0.01%

Loan Afc 207 ;
0.01%

Loan Afc 2074

31/03/2010 Construction Cost

Technical Consultancy

2,34,020.00

Loan Afc 262 2,59,030.00 0.01%

Loan Afc 2634

2ab9/2018 1.20%

Construction Cost .
0.01%

Technical Consultancy

2,59,030.00
Loan Aje 295 80,910.00

Loan Afe 20548

Construction Cost
Technical Consultancy

26032021 1.15%

0.01%

0.01%

90,310.00
6,48,330.00

143  Maturity Profite of JICA Loan is as under ;

{Amount in F2Y'000)
After 2024-25

Particulars 2023-24 2024-25

JICA Loan

144

14.5

146

14.7

-Loan Afc 192
- Loan Afc 207

Total

3,11,683.00
11,0%,726.00

311,688.00
11,09,726.00

4,051,944.00
1,66,45,890.00

14,21,414.00

14,31,414.00

2,06,97,834.00

These loans carries a2 moratorium period of 10 years from the date of agreement . Repayment of principal will commence
after the moraterium period and would be fully paid over 2 peried of 20 years in half vearly installments The Repayment
of Principal of Loan No-182 had commenced from March 2018 and that of Lean no- 207 had commenced from March 2021
as par the terms of agreements. The repayment of Loan No, 263 & Loan Mo. 295 will commence from September 2028 and
March 2031 respectively.

The Servicing of interest, installment of Principal and other duas is being done by Controller of Aid Accounts and Audit
{CaAA), Govt of India. 5o far, the company has provided for interest in its books of accounts but no outfiow has been made
from the bank accounts of the company, a5 the sama is serviced by CAAA, In light of the above, the company has not provided
any for overdue charges to the extent of 2% on cutstanding amount in the books of account as stipulated in the loan
agreement. CAAA has not raised any demand on this account 3s on the date of Balance Sheet.

Disbursement against Loan |D- PZ07 has been stoppad post May'2018. The Company is of the view since no disbursement
of the loan has been made post May'2018, no provision for commitment charges against the foan is required.

Dutstanding JICA Loan has been segregated Into Current and Mon-current, Current JICA Loan has been made on the basis
of installments failing due within one year from the date of Balance Sheet as per amortization schedule of the respective
Inan agreements,
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202

14.8 Forelgn Exchange Fluctuations on JICA loans - The Loan has bean retranslated in INR on the Balance Sheet date at the rate
confirmed by CAAS The conversion rate is 0.6180 based on RB| reference rate an 31st March, 2023, Foreign Exchange

Fluctuation has been capitalised to Capital Work-in-Frogress 35 per IND AS- 32,

Particulars As on 31-3-23 As on 31-3-23 Foreign Exchange As on 31-3-23
Loan [ Yen) Loan { INR} | Fluctuation Expense Loan | INR)
Mot Transiated on Borrowing Transiated
Loan Afc 192 48,75,320.00 29,19,305.50 29,957.74 18,85,247.76
Loan Afc 207 1,88,65,342 00 1,17,75,760.35 1,16,978.99 1,16,58,781.35
Loan Afc 263 2,58.26,535.42 1,60,71,652.99 1,11,054.10 1,55,60,798.89
Loan Afc 295 50,48,000.00 55,G6,007.95 -25 656.05 55,91, 664.00
5,84,15,197.42 3,63,32,926.78 2,32,334.78 3,61,00,582.00
1459  Detajls of JICA Loan
Particulars Opening Addition during Repayment Foreign Closing
Balance the year during the year Exchange Balance
Fluctuation {INR)

Principal 3,57,01,734.30 3,36,192.00 1,68,669.00. 2,32,33478 | 3,61,00,592.00
Interest Accrued and Due - 3,70,001.70 3,70,001.70 - -
Commitment Charges due 51,687.94. - - . 51.687.94
3,57,53,422.24 7,06,193.70 5,39,670.70 2,32,334.78 | 3,41,52,379.94

1410 Subordinate Debt

The Ministry of Railways ,(MOR) and Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (MOHUAJ being the current Joint Promoters and
Govt of WE (earstwhile Joint Promoters of the prolect) had given nterest free Subardinate Debt to the Company for meeting
up the Central Taxes, Duties and other relatad Capital expenditure advanced for the project, Repayment Schedule and other
terms and conditions of these debts are yet to be framed and fixed, The Loan from Ministry of Urban Development is
repayable during 2021 to 2025 after repayment of entire Senior Term Debt i.&, Loan from JICA availed for the project,

Imwiew of uncertainity in repayment terms and period , the loans ara carried at historical cost. Further the company is not
recognising the benefit of Government loan at below market rate of interest as Government Grant.

14,11 | Borrowing Power Mote No. 2022-2023 2021-2022

Subordinate Debt - Govt, of India through Ministry of Housing and
Urban Affairs 14.7 17,10,700.00 17,10,700.00
Subordinate Debt - Govt, of India through Ministry of Railway 48 58,900.00 A8 68,900.00
Senior Term Debt | JICA)/PTA - 46,91,943.2
JICA Loan Repayrment by Ministry of Finance along with Interest 58,00,778.97 -
Pass Through Assistance - MoR 2,36,25,082.38 2,06,25,082.28

Less:

Receivable from MOR towards JICA -2,27,89,087.74 -2,13,1%,060.71
1,33,16,374.10 1,05,77,564.88
14.12 | Non Current Financial Liabilities MNote Mo | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposit & Retention Money 17.1 3,28.721.78 2,70,550.12
1,28,721.78 2,70,560.12

B2
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15.0 PROVISIONS
Mate No
Provision for Employee Benefits :
Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Leave Salary

15.1
of Actuarial Valuation,

Defined Benefit Plans

R

EPORT

{&mount in ¥ thousand)

Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3,419.40 2.705.25
3,799.56 2,783.15
7,219.36 5,484.44

[l Recanciliztion of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss
Benefitz Paid
Adjustments for previous FY*
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year
{ii] Expenses recognised during the year
In Income Statement
Current Service Cast
Interest Cost
Met Cost
In Other Camprehensive Income
Actuarlal (Galn) / Loss
Met [Ineame)/ Expanse far the year racognised (n OC

(iii} Reconciliztion of opening and clozsing balances of Definad Benefit Obligation

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year
Current Servics Cost
Imterest Cost
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss
Benefits Faid
Adjustments for previous FY™
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year
|} Expenses recognised during the year
In Income Statement
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Met Cost
In Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss
et (Income)/ Expense for the year recognized In Employes Benefits

“Adjustments in defined plan obligations for both the ernployee benefit plans - Gratuity & Leave Salary payable relates to

The Company accounts for lfability of future gratuity benefits and leave salary benefits of its eligible smployess on the basis

2021-22 and is in nature of benefit paid during the sama previous financial year 202122

Gratuity (unfunded)
mMarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
26,83,745.00 31,94,393.00
3,08,253.00 2,61,92E.00
1,93,966.00 1,88,027.00
2,11,934,00 7,34,075.00
-11,84,674.00
21.499.00 -
341580100 36,85,745.00
3,08,253.00 2,61,528.00
19396600 18801700
5,02,219.00 4,49 955,00
2.11.834.00 -2,34.075.00
2,11,934.00 -2.34.075.00
Leave Salary {unfunded)
Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
32,03,090.00 45,03,504.00
2,65,223.00 2,38,086.00
1.99,554.00 3,26,060.00
5,51,995.00 <18, 64,650.00
-4,19.903.00 -
37,99,958.00 32,03,050.00
2,65,222.00 2,38,086.00
1,99,554.00 3,26,060.00
4,64,776.00 5,64,146.00
5,51,995.00 -18,64,650.00
10,16,771.00 -13,00,504.00

B3
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16.0

17.0

19.0

OTHER MOM CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade Pavable for Capital Goos

- Dutstanding dues of micro enterprise and

small enterprise

- Dutstanding dues of creditors other than micrm

enterprise and small enterprize

Note No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3,43,670.05 1,62,574.50
3,43,670.05 1,62,974.90

There is no irterest due or outstanding on the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise {MSME) as on 31.03.23

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended a5 on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is as follows :

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Mot due | Less than 1year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Outstanding dues to MSME
Dthers 3,33,132.71 | 391152 | 1,103.22 5.522.60 |343,670.05
Taotal 3,33,132.71 | 3,911.52 | 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
Particulars Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment
Mot due | Less than 1year | 1-2years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
Outstanding dues to MSRE
Others 1,54,818.03 | 2,750.78 - 5,406.09 | 1,62,974.90
Total 1,54,818.03 | 2,750.78 . 5,406.09 | 1,62,974.90
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Mote No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
CURRENT
Borrowings
Unsecurad
Loan from japan International Corporation Agancy 14 to 14.9
[JICA) through Government of India B.E6,6/8.05 8,84 54593
Security Deposit & Retention Money 171 2,79,960.87 2,18,742.74
11,66,638.92 11,03,288.67
Security Deposit and Retention maney withheid by the Company is released on completion of defect ilability peripd.
Classification of such Retention money and security deposit withheld into current and non-current is done on the basis of
managemeants estimation of expiry of the cormptetion of such defect liability period within one {1) year or bayond from the
balance sheet date.
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Mote No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Payables
Employee Benefit Payable b6,615,14 6,517.17
Liabilities for Expenses 153.97 S E7E.00
Statutory Dues 39,677.66 24.645.40
Earnest Maoney Deposit 7458472 3,735.60
Camrmitment Charges on JICA Loan 145 51,687.94 51,687 94
1,05,590.42 54,464.11
OTHER IMCOME Mote No March 3%, 2023 March'31, 2022
Interest on |T Bafund 2,074.73 1,284.33
Total 8,074.70 1,284.33
OTHER EXPENSES Mote No March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022
Director Sitting Fees: 41.30 241.90
Fayment to Auditors
- Statutory Audit 737.42 166.65
- Internal Audit 200,00 305.00
= Tam Audit 12.00 12.00
Total 590.72 T25.55
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NOTE 21.1 : EMPLOYEE'S BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries & other benefits"®

Employer's Contribution ta Provident Fund

Stafi Welfare Expences

*Salaries & other benefits includes Leave Salary of Rs. 2203.83 thousands and Pension Contribution of Rs, 4527.96 thousands

ANNLUAI

REFPORT 2022-273
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2032
1,07,319,01 1,05,504.79
1,196.78 1,362 44
2,805.88 1,474.54
1,11,321.67 1,08,341.77

whiich corresponds to a period from 01.04.21 to 31.03.22 which is related to retired/deputed employees of Rallways.

NOTE 21.2 : OTHER EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE COST

Car Hire Charges

Bank Charges

Repalr znd Maintenance
Travelling & Conveyance

Rates & Taxes

Security Charges

Electricity Charges

software Expenses
Consultancy & Professional Charges
Misc Expenses

Printing & stationery

Interest on Statutory payments
Telephone & Intermet Charges

GOther Administrative expensas

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
19,060.20 17,838.44
764,96 1,030.89
1,086.78 1,627,20
3,073.09 1,192.35
190,55 2,50
11,205.98 7,007.25
1,557.41 1,945 65
27.97 219.64
37,556.60 1,153.17
10,074.10 542833
122341 FR5.20
120.47 21.40
1,018.34 1,444.30
£7,952.67 1,80,305.32
1,55,313.04 2,20,002.64

I
O

KMRC
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22,  Additional Regulatory Information as required by Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013:
8)  Details of Tile deeds of immawabla Property not heid In the name of the Company

Relevznt Bna item in
Balano Shost

Pescription of tem
of property

Gross carrying value

Title deads held in
tha nanw of

mwtblﬂu_ rtitle deed
or i 3 promatar,
diroctor ar relative
of promotzr)
direcior or
employse aof
pramoter/director

Property hebd since
wrhich data

Reason for not bel
haid in tha nama
tha company

Froparty, Flanl &
Equipmant

Laasehald land

1§7 386582

Kolkmta Pore Trust

Mo

From FY. 2012-13
tll present

The Company has
w=hen the ImnEId on
Imase for a perod of
30 years.
Campary is in the
proosis of registaring
the same i s awn
name.

Proparty, Plant &
Equipmanit

Freghold Land

TEARDET

Govesnment of West
Bang=l

From FY, 2008.05
till presant

Mutztion of 1458
sn.mis of land 15
under process and
the rutetion of 1733
30.rds n!'latr;d i

ending a3 the Issue
Easuh—jmu{!mﬂ the
356 5
pending at Suprema
Court of India vide
Sip Nu.{ﬂ\.ﬁl; ZE172
of 2013

Froperty, Plant &
Equipmant

Bullding

A46,741.73

Hoogly River Bricge
Lomimissioner

Mo

Rs.. 24, 250.83 since
FY, 2008-0%
Rs. 2.1 490590 since
F¥. 2013-14

Tne ownarship of the
building was not
transferred 1o
KMECL becausa tha
bl was mada &t
the tlrme wehen the

State Governiment
wig B stabe holder of
the project.

The project 15.an the
verge of comaletion
#nd tha assat will ba
transferred ts Metro
Riiliay. It i
expacted thet Metro
Railway wnl ipitiate
furter for
awrership, title gt
of tha building.

b} The company does not have any Investment property at the end of the current year and previous year, Accordingby,
disciosuras as required under this para is not applicable,

c) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the current year and previous yearn

dl The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan to promoters, directors, KMP and the related
parties {as defined under Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person, which are repayahis
ondemand or without specifying any terms or perfod of repayment during the curent and the previous year, Accordingly,
disciosures as requlred under this para |5 not applicable.

g} Capital work-in-grogress (CWIP) agelng schedule/completion schedule,

A, For Capital work-In-progress, the ageing schedule |5 glven below asat 31.03.2023:

CWwie Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than one year | 1-2years 2-3years | More than 3 years
Froject in Progress: S0,02,676.77 6,29,587.38 | 77,15,177.03 6,/2,10,510.0 §,05,58,951.58

Suspended;

Profect Temporarily

B. For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has axceaded its cost compared to its original plan, the
completion schedule |s given balow as at 31.03,2022:

CWvIP Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than one year | 1-2years 2-3Iyears | More than 3 years
Frofect in Progress: 39,086,444 33 5B, 1184877 | 1,18,43,762.83 5,41,93,718.88 7,55,55,274.81

Suspended:

Project Temporarily
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fi The company does not have any intangible asser under deyvelopment at the end of the cument year and previous yeer, Accordingly,
disciozures a5 required under this para is not applicable.

g} Thers has been no procesding initizted or pending 2gainst the company for holding any benami property under the Frohibition of
Benami Proparty Transactions Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder during the current year and previous year. Accordingly, disciosures
as reguired under thiz para is not applicable. :

h)] The company does not have any barrowings from banks or finencial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the
current.and perivious year . Accordingly disclosures under this para is not applicable.

I} The company has not been declared as wiiful defaultar by any benk or financial Institution or other lender during the current year and
previous year. Accordingly; disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

il The company has not entered into any transactlon with companies struck off wnder section 248 of the Companies Act, 20132 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1958 during the current and previous year. Accordingly, disclosures as required under this pars is not applicable.

k] There are no charges or satisfaction pending for registration with the Ragistrar of Companles beyond the statutory period. Accordingly,
disciozures 35 reguired under this para is not applicable.

I The compamy does not have any subsidiary during the current and previous vear and accordingly compliance with number of layers
prescribed under clause (B7) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 resd with Companies {Restriction on Mumber of Layers) Rules,
2047 is not applicable.

m) Anaivtical Ratios:

Ratio Mumerator Denominator Current Period Previcus Period * Change Reason of Change
if mare than 25%

Cument fiatia Current Assats Current Lighifties 3.08 497 -3816% | Mainly due toincrease in
yaar and stztutory

fialiiities and retention
maney in kold

Dab-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity 123 131 591% .

Debt Sarvice Earnings Avallzble (bt Service M.A WA,

Coverage Ratia for cebt services

Retum on Mt Profit After Ayerage o.og 0,00 0.00% -

Equity Ratio Tan Shareholders

Equity | |

Imentary Costof Gonds Sold | Average Inventony H.A MA, | wa H.A

Turnower Ratio OGS

Trage Recervables | Met CreditSales | Average Accounts M4 WA A M.

turnower ratio Recenvablas

Trage pavables Met Credit Ayerage Trade M A BEA N.A

turnaower ratio Purchases payables

Net Capital Net Szles Workirg Capitsl N NA, .4, .4

Turnower RBI-H:I“_

et Rrofit Ratio (%) hiet profit el Sales M. A, KA A

after Tax

Retumn on ta?iqi Earnings before Capital Employed 0.0 0.00% 0.00% =

Employed (% interest and taxes

Retum on | Ket prafit Average Shareholders .02% 0.00% | 000 -

Irmmstmant ;%) after Tax Fund I

n) Mo Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority In terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the current year and previous yaar. Accordingly, disclosures as required under this para s not applicabla.

o)

{A) The compsny has not advanhced or leaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other solirces or &ind
of furds) to any othar personis) or entity(les), Including foreign entities {Intermediaries) during the current year and previous year with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwisa) that the intermediary shall:

{i] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in anmy manner whatscever by or on behalf of the company
(Uitimate Beneficlarias) ar

{il} provide any guarantee, sacurity or the like to or on behalf of the Yltimate Beneficiaries.

{E} The Compary has not received any fund frorm any persanis) or entity(les), including foreign entities (Funding P2riy) during the current
year and previous year with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the company shali:

{1 drectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entimes identified 1n amy menner whatsoever by or an behail of the Funding
Party |UlEmate Baneficiarias) ar

{Il} provide any guarantee, security or the like on bahalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.”

p) There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the books of
aceaunt during the current year and previous year In the tax assessiment under the Income Tax Aet, 1561,

g) The company has not pravidea for eny expenses under the CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) as per the provisions of u/s 135 of
tha Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly disclosures In regard to TSR sctivities & not apphicable.

1) Tha Company has not traded or investad in Crypte Currency or Virtual Currency during the current year and previous year and therefore,
the disclosures as sought s not sppliceble.

All amounts in the financial stetement 2nd in notes to sccounts are In ¥ thousands unless otherwise specifiad,

W

KMR
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24,

28,

rrg

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the current tax legislation, Deferred Tax Asset have not been
recognized |n respect of these ltems because [t [s not consldered probable that future taxable profit will be available in near
future against which they can be realized.

Pending legal cases relating to acquisition of Land

There are 49 Nos of Court Cases against the Company which is pending as on 31-03-2023, Details are as under ; [All cazes
are ehvil In nature)

Mo of Cases Particulars Farum
1 Land Acquistion Hen'ble Supreme Court
12 Land Acquisition Hon'ble High Court of Kolkata
1 Land Acquistion Howrah District Court
1 Environment Mational Green Tribunal, Kolkata
1 Tunneling Hen'ble High Court of Kolkata
25 Miscellaneous Hon'ble High Court of Kolkatas
7 Contract Related Hon'ble High Court of Kolkata

Government of West Bengal (GoWB] has issued a letter dated 9th February 2015 demanding a sum of ¥ 3368.79 crore
being the “Charges for Permissive Possession” for 38.5 acres of Land granted to KMRCL at Central Fark, Salt Lake for sstting
up of Depat. The Company feels that charges are not oayaole by the Company in terms of Para 12.1 of the MOU dated
27th Ot 2008 signed between GOI, GOWE and KMRCL and hence the same have not been accounted for in the books.

The Government of West Benga! vide its letter dated 13.02.7015 had demanded a sum of ¥ 889,69 crore towards “"Way
Leave Charges” for land use of siations and metro rail routes in the city of Kolkata The matier has been taken up with
the concerned suthoritles and the company feels that such charges are not payable and hence net accounted fon However
a5 a matter of predence, company has thown the same as contingent liability a= per Note no- 33(g).

There are no dues payable as on 31st March 2023 to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes nor are there are any other
particular data are required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006, The determination of an Enterprise as 8 Micro enterprise and Small enterprize s based
on the confirmation received In response to intimation in this regard sent by the Company to the suppliers;
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
The detalls of various employee benefits provided to employees dre

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays gratulty to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Company at the time
of resignatien/superannuation, The gratulty [s pald @15 days basie salary for every completed year of service as per
thie Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 This plan typleally exposes the company to actuarial risks such as: Investment risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

Re-measurement gaing and losses arising from adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the perind In which they accur in Other Comprehensive Income,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation Were
carried out as at March 31, 2023 by Dr, B. Kannan, B. Chatrerjes Intermational Consultant. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the project unit credit method .
Company dogs not maintain any fund, so no nead of contribution in respect of such Contribution Plan.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {contd.)

Gratuity

The principal assumption wsed for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Principal assumptions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 717% 7.24%
Future salary increass B.00% 6.00%
Awverage expected future service (remaining working fife} 10 YEARS 12 YEARS
Mortality Tabte IALM 2012-2014 1ALM 2012-2014
Superannuation at age - Male 60 YEARS 60 YEARS
Superannuation at age - Female 60 YEARS 60YEARS
Early Retirement & Disablament {all causes combined) 0.100% 0. 100%
Above Age 45 0.065% 0.06%
Between age 25-45 0.03% 0.03%
Below Age 29 0.01% 0.01%
Yolumtary retirement Ignared Ignored

Other long term employee benefits:

The Leave scheme'is a final salary Defined Banefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of
retirement, death, disabllity er valuntary withdrawal, The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary (considering Basic and
DA} and the accumulzted leave balances are pald 2t the time of exit. The Plan deslgn means the rishs commanly affecting the
liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

This plan typically expoeses the company to actuarial risks such as: Investment risk, longevity risk and salary risk,

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in
which they occur in Other Comorehensive Income,

Tha most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out
a5 at March 21, 2023 by Dr. R. Kannan, B, Chatterjae International Consultant.

Leave Salary

The princigal assumption used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows :

Principal assumptions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate T17% 1.24%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Awerage expacted future service (remaining working life) 10 YEARS 11 YEARS
Mortality Tahie TALM 2012-2014 IALM 2012-2014
Superannuation at age- Male &0 YEARS 60 YEARS
Superannuation at age- Female a0 YEARS G0 YEARS
Attrition Rate 0.100% 0.100%
Yaluntary resirement Igrored Igniored

II
&
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30,

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparetive amounts for the prior periods
presented in which the error acourred, If the errar ocourred before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of
assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period prezented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the
corparative Information Is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy praspectively from the earliest date practicable

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Eamning Per Shars Faor the year ended For the year ended
March' 2023 March' 2022
Basic sarning per shara [Rs.) 0.00 0.00
Profit for the year as per statemant of Profit & Loss (INR) 7.272.04 791 86
Weightad average number of eguity shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share 3.75,86,20,000 2,81,63,72,000
Opening Share Capltal - Nos. 3,75,86,20,000 1,40,40,00,000
Closing Share Capital - Nos, 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,20,000
Chief Secretary, Government of West Bengal had issued a letter dated 06.11.2012 mentioning that GOWE has funded a sum

of T42 crores towards Land Acquisition for East-West Metro Corridor Project. The Company has taken up and pursued the
matter with Government of West Bengal for details of T 48 crores so daimed to be funded to KMREL, as no such records
arg-available in the records ef the eompany. Reconclliation and resolution of the matters is stlll pending.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE UNDER IND AS 24

a)  Related Party Disclosure

Name of the Key Managerial Person Nature of Relationship

Shri P. U, ¥ Reddy Chalrman

Shri . K. Srivastava hanaging Director

Shri Angshuman Sarkar Director (Finance) & Director (RS &T)

Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan Director(P&P)

5hri Dhananjaya Singh Director

Shri Magsen Moreshwar Dhake Director

Dr. Saumitra Mohan Director

Shri Jaidesp Director

smt Mohua Datta Gupta Company Secretary

shri 5amik Bhattacharyya CFD

b]  Tmensaction with the Key Management Personnel during the year/period

Particulars MD/Directors KMP
{Amount In "000) | (Amount in "000)

Salary a5 per provisions contained in section 17{1) of the Income Tax Act. 1961 ¥18,607.39 T4,215.79

Walue of Perguisite = i

Prafit-in-lieu of Salary - -

Sitting Fee to independent directors® 35.00 205.00

Total T18,642.39 T4,420.79

* Director's sitting fee for 2022-23 was pald te Smt, Anju Warrior, wha was an Independant Director til 10.07.2022,
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Motes to the Financial Statements {contd.)

ORT 2

{c} Aparz from transactions with related partles reported above, the company has transactions with Ministry of Rallways,
Government of India which included but nat limited to the fallowing:

Mature of control :- Shareholders having substantial interest

Tranzactions during the year:

Name of Related Party

Ministry of Railway

Nature of Transaction Amount (in Rs "000)
Pass through Assistance 20.00,000,00
Receivabie against JICA Loan 14,70.025.53

34. FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
The Company underiakes transactions denominated in foreign currencles: like Advances to Contractors, Construction
expenditure, consequently, exposures fo exchange rate fluctuations arises. The total amount of transaction expendad by
the Compary during the raporting period are as follaws:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advances to Contractors
- EURD Wil il
UsD il Nil
- YEMN il il
AUD Mil Mil
Construction Expenditure
- EURO &,85,055.70 71,17,085.48
- 1Py 5,05,724.51 & ,06,05,212.07
- Usp 2,42,453.40 23,63, 119.85
- AUD 11,618.26 46,800.61
35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabliiities are Included at the amount that would be recelved to sell 2n aaset and paid to
‘transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumation that tha transaction to sell the asset or transfier the liability takes place either:
# i the principal market for the asset or liability ar
® |n the absence of & princtpal market in the most advantageous market for the asset or lizbility,
The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible to the company. The fairvalue of an aszet or a liability
ts measured using the assumptions that markat participants would use when pricing the asset ar llability assuming that
market participants act in thelr economic best interest.
Management uses their best judgement in estimating the fzir value and its financial instruments. However, thers are inherent
limitations in any estimation technigue. Therefore, for substantially all financlal instruments, the falr value estimates presented
are not necessarily Indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions a3 of
respective dates. As such, the fair value of the finencial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be
differant from the amounts reported at the and of the sach year/pariod end.
36. The details of disputed service tax and income tax dues as on 31st March 2023, which have not been deposited or

deposited under protest are as follows :

Mame of the statute Mature of dues Amount (in 7 Pariod to Forum whare
which the dispute is panding
amount relates
Finance Act, 1954 Service Tax 1,854.54 FY 2008-10 to Appellate Authadty
2012-13 Commissioner Appeals (11)
Caniral
Income Tax Act, 1961 income Tax 14.50 FY 2022-23 TﬂE_IEEiau!ts as per Traces
Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Deduct=d 732 FY 2021-22 Total Defaults
at Source as per Traces

91
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Motes to the Financial Statements {contd.)

37. There is no Segment Reporting Activity,

38. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracis for which there were any material
foresesable losses.

39, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments (to the extant not provided for):

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
al Inrespect of the following:
= Service Tax matters under appeal FY 2008-10 to 3012-13 1,B54.94 MR 1,854 54 INR
b) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt 1,27,55,353.23 INR | 1,04,41,517.16 INR
¢} Claims by Hooghly River Bridge Commissioner towards 13,201.36 INR 13,301.36 INR
varlous expenses
d} Estimated amount of Unexecuted Capital Contracts 3,724,706.29 INR | 1,73,58,200.00 INR
(Met of Advances |
g} Amount outstanding agalnst Letter of Cred|it 1,316.60 EURD 33,717.29 EURD
fl Permissive Possession Charges for 38.5 acres
of Land (refer Mote - 26) 3,36,87,942,75 INR ' | 3,36,87,942.75 INR
gl ‘Way Lesve Charges demanded by GOWS (refer Note - 27) 88,96,500.00 INR 88,36,500.00 INR
f)  Additional land from Kolkata Fort Trust for Ventshaft BE.E3 46654 |NR 88,83,466.54 INR

L] Service tax appeals are pending since 2009-10 to 2012-13 before Commissioner of OGST & Central Excise | Appeals-1). The
last hearing was held on 13.10.2017 and thereafter there has been no progress with the appeal, hence not recognized in
the accounts.

L] Point {b) constitutes number of clalms against the Company, reiated to conciliation and arbitration award, which are yet
to be settled at the Court of Law, hence disclosed as contingsnt fiahilities.

®  Claims by HRBC ara not supportad by any verified documents,

[ ] The amaunt is related ta the budgeted capital cost to be incurred during the next two financial years, The estimation has
been done on the basis of the physical and financial progress related to the project. Expenditure is booked as ang when
the liabifity is raized and discharged. Hence, this amount has been shown as estimated amount of unexecuted capital
contracts,

40, Dehit f oredit balances of Supdry Creditors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

41, Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified whersver necessary to correspond with the current year's
classification J disclosure.

Motes 1 te 41 form an integral part of the Balance Sheet have been duly authenticated.,

Signatures to Notes 1 to 41

I terms of aur Fepert attached For and on hehalf of Board of Directars

?ﬂﬁﬂm{nﬁﬂm&m V. i, Srrvashave Angehurmsn Sarkar

Firm Aegistration Ko, : 320158E Iarsging Dirsctar Directar (Finance]

CA R, K. Kathan DiN 10207178 AN DRETAERI

Fariner

M. Mo, 1 055208 Samdk Bhattacharyya hohur Datta Gupta

LIDIN @ 230552088 5WELA154 Chigf Finansial Of toar Campsny Secretary

Fiace : ¥olkats BAR - BIAWPETELIH PAN ; AIEPGEREI4K

Dabed : Eref duby, 2023
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154t ATfieheHAS e h I fere TemT

UAGRT Tfeed T &1 St @ o shoeiT o Tewt ot 15 4f aifier o1 daer frefanad st & fmres & fau miear,
19 fadaY, 2023 T 3R 03:30 I<T FTSAT FHI<H T (FIEY) & ATAT F AN b1 ST :

eI T

1.

31 {4, 2023 o1 THIE 95 o 1T T o oi@r Tiferd faedi fGavor (Fere ware faawor 31 gafad) & agame o faawr
qfed) o Y-T1e Fever Tl a7 Wds i@l TWeldh! o1 Ufdded Ud 39 T YR o (949 Ud Aerer@l wiefd ol
fooaforn off T 64T, fIaR ST 92T 19T |

. 9RA % foae U HeToRaT qieiss gRT e T o Tifafiss oiam wieren i FRfe WoeAr 3T SR faehe o

2023-24 o AT ST o Hifafirer o@r wiieres ot Miifies 0 o & U fevres ged &l sifidd & 3K afe
Ifere THem SU A genea (A1) =1 faar HeneT o @1l fEfafEd GraneT Gehed ol OTid ST

“Tepeq T ST @ o Gee, N & Feser 3 qereran wieres g o™ a9 2023-24 & U ot o Fifafies
AT e & T H T CRATHR 1 RIS 1 UTegRT A2 30 ¢ 3iR Feere Hee o oar wie afifa 1 fawien
& MR T FIoh @ ied TRfber & i & o mited s €17

[EMLCIE]

AW YY), SSARTGUAE IO IToreh STee & B ¥ gl W feR e o A St guen s, o geiest

& o1 A7 far Fenert o frafafad gremoer Gy sl aifiid i

T foram ST € o St ff=m, 2013 T €RT 152(2) 37 31 TASAMEe =, AfT g 21 U 376 37 il
et & STRoT  UdegRT A digeh YET, SMESRUGUNE &Y 17.03.2023 T 37 TeMays, A3 I, SHictehrdr o
T¢I T8 Tk STAT ST 3T ek, S ff Jeel 21,501 o a18 # feTentferer ateder o &9 # fafa w st &
Tewfd e 1 S 2 |

M T7 ot Gered foran ST © o st Ffa ot Uaegried e sl 31T =it enl Foqife ahea den U gefi aadrasit
T LA I & AU Mt fopam Sar € S 39 Gohed o) T9TE! S & fIu 3avaes, TEE 37w € |

4. 4 U9 T STHATA, 378 3TRUSE o T H& SSi-aY/Hal 3ad # 379+ TR & SAARed & o mae feerme &

Y ffad W AR T 3R A Sfad guen S, & geiert o wrer 3 faer geneE o frefatad s deed
TR T

Teheq foam ST 2 o SR iffr, 2013 &1 RT 152(2) 3R 2121 TAEMEeHT, AfE &1E 81 ud 3a o7ediq ffda
7T o STTERYT § UASENT 41 UF U7 ST9ald, 38 3RUGs o1 We H& Sii-2R/Hal 3ad H 370 TSR o Afaied
T o wEy fIevTeR & B9 H TR TEUT A I et Fafid aeur st e sterEr sttt ot Jarfgetd stemat
ST STISVT Tk, ST off T =1, ST o waey FeeTer o &9 7 fafd W S T genfd uee o S 2

3 78 off Wehed foram STm @ foF ot |fa Y TegRd Gt sl o =istt o6 femfed 6 o UF @it e&dqresit
T BEATRR i o fIu miftierd fepan ST @ ST 39 Hehed ol THIET & o foAu sfiavads, gai=i 3T urdfies &f |

5. S 4¢ HeTe ST 3T, SMEARUGS oh! JoF Tof-R /A UF o1 ./Aa1 3o & 270 T3 & JeuR & offafied

T o FevTeR (ARSI T e & ' H FRfad W R 6 oI afe Sfad auen S, o geneEt o @rer A
o Homert & frefafead qremoT Geher iid &

T foran ST © & ot aifufam, 2013 7 6IRT 152(2) 371 27 WASEEeHT, afE 18 81 ud 39a 21 fafda
et o STTER0T H UACERT 1 998 W, ST 3Te 9, SMEaIRUTE o1 Y oo (IR . wd 37.)/A31 Yo ¥ o
TEYR o AfREd T o e (IRASHT T8 A9 o ®9 8 99R T80T i I oot i qeurt &1 fgafa
1A ATHHT ST AT 7T 3T ST ek, S Teed &1, U1 o (e Ter (YRS U A ) & &9 #

KMRC

05



KMRC o fis ufaaea 2022-23

06

frgefa W ST T Fefd Te S 7 |

M T7 ot Gered foran ST © o shoet Ffa ot Uaegried el sl 31T =i el Foqifee ahes den O gefi aadrasit
T LA I & fAu Mt foham Sar € S 39 Gahed bl T9TE! S & fIu 3w, e 3T wrEfier e |

. ot v R 9, 74 Tged 999 3R A GaTeeR, ST 3R ITedl S HEe (THSNUEY), YR TWER R

T W T FSlid, S 9= 3R fIiT TeTeehY, STETE 317 9ed s Hare (THATTIY), IR THR ol
3T Yo TT 31X i GomesR, ST 31 vl i HaTer (UHSU=RY), YRT WK & 98 T &4 d5
TAT ST TP O, S ¥l T8l &1, 301 & FevTe Hed # Sferehifae Seanil feve & &9 § 3e! Ffad ™
far=m T 3 Afe Sfea a9en Se, o Geiest & @rer A oA Gement o frefafad Qremor deed mita S

Terer foran ST @ o St a1l 2013 T 9RT 152(2) 317 31 Wrsa@e, afe g 8 ud 3 e ffifa
Tt o STEROT & UdegRT Y Gl Tge e 31N fET GomeshR, STETE 1R I s T (THsiuE),
IRT TN I 99 YT g3, T3 o Tfa iR i Iaeshn, e i 9l sl #arer (Treii=su),
YR TWHR o TIF T 01.05.2023 T 375 G THT IR i TARSHR, AR 3R ITedl e HaeT (i),
IR TR & U¢ T TE- e AT 37T RN ek, S o Tet &1, &0 o 9T Hed # SI9Tehifoeh Fieht
firewres & &0 § I9eh! el &1 Sl o1 Genld we o S 2 |

MW T8 o ehod fora ST @ o ot Gfd ol Udegied et shrlt 37 =Sl bt froqifed shee a2 U8 geft &St
T LA I & AU qfereed fopar Sar € S 39 Gehed bl TTE! S & foIu 3Tavaes, EET 37w |

. R E o anad, STESIRUHE i TeH & e/ Hal 3ad H 370 98R o SAfARad 01.06.2023 H ST e

fevrenes =9 & fgfad W = 31 3fiY afe 3fad aqen s, ot Geiedt & grer =1 for Geleqt & frefafaa
TTENOT Hehed TR LT

T foram ST € o ST Afafm, 2013 #T €RT 152(2) 37 31 TASAMEe, AfT g 21 U 37a 37 ffifa
et o STEROT # UACERT ot & % fiarea, SEIRUGE 1 We T SSfa/Aa) o) § 37 W & JeuR &
e 01.06.2023 F 7€ R et qeamt &t Rl frgafa qe sterar Sifiyerd ot Jarfgefd e 3Temm 37Ty S1esT
TR, ST ot e B, A o el FIeuTeR & w0 H g S e oY eAfd Ter ol S |

M T7 ot Gered foram ST © o shoelt gfa ot Uaegried el sl 31T =it el Foqife ahed den O gefi aedrasit
T LA I & AU Mt fohar Sar € S 39 Gehed o) T9TE! S & fIu 3w, EET 3T wrEfier € |

. o 3T FHER ASER, 372 TRUTES o ffqgs/Aal a7 370 TR & 31ffied 01.06.2023 ¥ &0 & v

(3 Uw g ) w9 7 frfad W fGER o 3R A 3fd quen sy, & Genest & grey 1 fom geient & Fefafaa
HIYROT Hehed I ShiT:

Tehed fofan ST © T ot eafufearm, 2013 1 4R 152(2) 3R 37 NI, afE 1 &) TF 3+e 31 ffia
2T o STTEY0T H UdesRT 41 37 FHR ASHeR, 3T STRUNES o1 ffigs/Hal {od § 310 @4 & T8N & 3fdfiaa
01.06.2023 ¥ 92 W foddt aeeiy st ffafe fFreyafa ae stemn Afueil ST arfgefd Ter 12T SFTe T
S o TEel B, T o YIS (TR T8 U ) & &9 Frafd o oo <1 genfd nem &1 S 7

3 7g off e foram STm @ foF ot | Y TaegRed Gt sl o =it o6 femfed 6 e UF @t e&dresit
T BEATRR i o fIu miftierd fopam STm @ S 39 Yehed ol THIET & o fofu afiavads, gi=i 3T urdfies =f |

TeyTeR Heel o SMRYIIER
el ShICTERTAT HET T6T SRRV fafies
g/ -
T : ShIcTehTAT HESAT T AT
fe=tien : 19 fadaT, 2023 huAT wfaa



ga KMRC

femfurat -

1. 9 9RO ST 10/2022, e 28.12.2022 3 WM URYs G 11/2022, feier 28.12.2022 gRT wHdiT 3
e HTE T F qreay T aififer o1 dach/Sun AT 37 =1 Gremoy/ a9 Gehed mid 4 &t 99T 3afy
30fFdeR, 2023 T J@T a1 7 | ot e, 2013 (AfufT) & aemFt 3R vrdie aRast & Sure & s
ST 1597 alftier 370 JSehardl/ SNTATH & qreaq ¥ ST o1 S el ¢ |

2. YR & MU & SR, 1 IR W TIfie 3 93 H 91T o 3R HAeH i a1t I T o 310 gadt
IO T 3TN T S & foau Ueh Wit e o o AT SIaT @ | WTed BT sho=l T Te@ ST A9
Tt 21 e 77 aiffer 3T dae Il U & A ¥ unhe oRest 3 ST H S w1 5 W, sufan
T} 1 ARG U T THI S AT T 7 | FTHR, Few 5N Aot o fgfe st gfaen aifier omm 33
o foTQ 3TeTey Fel =T |

3. U I, 2013 T URT 102(1) % FTET H 0N e & Taferd 7et w7 R Yo € 3R I8 G 1 U
femm 2l

4. 93 ST G W AN I I |
5. wifer Fiftfer o Sk 4/ SAudiuT & W ¥ ST o S €, THA 38 gAA # w2 A Tor A6 2 |

6. AT T URT 103 % 3FUICH 8 i/ 3NUded & Arery J Fiffer 370 o3k § I A a1 Jew@it ot 0T T
o I5T &I S|
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i ufaaed 2022-23

19 TodaT, 2023 Y B aTell 154 ATfiieh MW 33k oh A skt GoaT ® AT favie wrat skt wef o
Taer U shuT SIferfaw, 2013 ST QIRT 102(1) o STET T AT faawuT

faviy e W

g3

IRE TWHR, I G (oA 1) 3 0F W& 2012/09T /FUHSIRGUA/21/4/90d, feier 30, SHatT, 2014 & d&d
TeWaEe, HIl ¥od, ShIcTenTal oh! dehlel T9Td H 3Tl TSI 06k hUHSIRIINS o fe9Teh Hed § 3ivTenifae 317 o
= | e o Hepdl we & |

TETAR, TR /HZT I, HITehTdT ohl shtHl o FIS9Teh HSol § S79TehTfcish S7e7Te] & &0 H YeIad fohar mr € | 41
Ik ¥El, SAEARUHUAE 300 d18 o SIS T 3(37) 111-2023/90A/37, &A1 17.03.2023 % 38R 17.03.2023
Y A, Fal Yo, ShIcTehTal T STfafier T9R T80 &Y o ¢ |

UG WK, I 93108 (dd 91E) & U9 &A1 2012/WST /FUHSARENTA/21/4/90d fedier 30, SHail, 2014 1T &1
doh YET, STEARTGUAE b1 T & FRwTeh Avscl 7 3furehiferer arertet i ferar T 2 |
AT 1 A T 3 % ded [HiRa T Toheasd 3399 & foue |

ot YET Teoreq T Haftrd et fedas A ST 9ehd ¢ | 1 o7 FRvTeh, e YU Sl a1 39 gt 7 oo o
forefier 7 31y = & Haifere = fedag TR 2 |

1 HAT (Ad ) & SWiad T Sl ufqal Gt o et & fou delihd SEed 3 e 216af & i daeh o
G ThUd dear T ff e TR |

AT H 4

IR THR, o T (Aad a1g) 3 e A& 2018/3(3M)11/40/17 fEATE 17.02.2023 & ded 4 UH U7 STERAT,
3 IRUHS ol ToI & Teil-1a/ T ¥etd H 319 TR o AIRad 379 39 T9R ol Te01 ohid & [afr § Fafid geemd
St forgaer Terar SIreRTd ST arfraelcs STerET 31T ST ek, S off Tt a1, ot o Tafey FewTer & &9 § e FrRpafd
gHA TR

off T U STEHATe 3 fedieh 18.02.2023 U SRYR T80 & o ? |

AT 1 HE T 4 % Ted FHHRT g Yeheasd 3399 & foue |

S SPAT Yohed J Taferd 72T fedag 7 ST Tehdl § | I 31 FR9Teh, T Weish = Rl a7 39k Yol 39 Tohed
T e o1 o7 w0 § e o1 fadeg A8 ¢ |

T Harerd (Y19 A1) o STed U Sl ufal Gew o et & fou deliehd shiierd § shrTer 37af & SN daeh ol
aHIE qeUd d3eh H o ITcA R |

AT HS5

I WHR, T T1erd (Aeqd a2) 3 379 G&AT 2019/2(3M)11/40/14 fedier 17.02.2023 gRT &t T9e Hieme SHA
3EE, 3113 TNTHE oh! G Til-1/ TR .Td 37./HaT 3e0d 7 379 UgHR o AfRead 210 39 TR ol Tg0T a3 ol fiafer
Y Ffhd qeut ot Frpafa aterr ST ot JaTfaed 12T 3Tt YT adk, S 4l U8 el B, St & FeeTeh (TR
Td A & B F 37 Fgafd gha #1 R |

Y 3RET T 20.02.2023 T TEUR TR0 K fer 1

TSI A T 5 o ded (HiRd G Geheisd 3299 & fug |

Y 3TeG Yohod Y Taferd 7o fedas O S Fehdl € | 18 31 FIeSTer, W@ Yalershig sl 1 39k Haiell 39 Uohed 7
Tl =11 31 =0 § Geifera =1 fedag T €1

I Forerd (A1d ) & STed U Sl Uil Gewt o et & fou deliehd T § e 21afy & S dadh o

aRRg dehUd dach § WY ITcTe] BT |




ga KMRC

ey 6

IRA TWHN, ¥ HAe (3 a1E) 7 MR T 2022/910e1/57/10 feAies 01.05.2023 gRT 4 9319 X g, 99 G
Tfea 37 foii TeMeer, STaTE SiR 9Tedl Sl HATerT (THaMU=RY), YR WaR, & TIH W 4F Isiia, 9ad 9fag
FN fai GleerR, S7arH 3N 9l il 5o (THSIT=N), YT TR, o 3ok Hgad H(=a 3R o geeen,
AT 3T IRl 1A HAE (THSIU=gY), YR TR o U8 T Te deh 31T 3Tl S9N aek, ST off Jeel e, T
& FrevTes Hed & Sfvias WeH e & w9 ¥ 39 e giaa # e

A F A 6 % Ted FHIRT T Heresy 359 o g |
A T oo F Hafrq 7o fedag A S Hehel © | H1E 371 FHovTen, W@ Taeah i & a1 3o Safl 39 Hehed |
fafrer = 3171 & F Haiferd a7 fdes A4 ¢ |

I G (Ad ) & STed U Skl Uit Gee o et & fou defierd T § swrler 1Ry & S dadh o
ARG dehUd daeh T oY IucTe] BT |

I H. 7

IR TR, ¥ H3e (39 a18) = STeT F&A1 2018/3(31)11/40/17 &A1 01.06.2023 FRT 41 . & dfarea,
3TE IRUHS o T H& SSili-2R/HT I H 370 TR o AR 01.06.2023 § 39 U¢ T fopdll ueerd &l fFafifd
el B aTear STfehTt 31 HaTaei deh 72T 3T 3T da, ST ot Tl &1, ST o Tafef feoten o &9 # 37a0!
frgferT ghaa 31 3

AT 1 AS T 7 & ded Heifid I Tehed 39 3299 & fau g |

o AaTd Fehed ¥ Taferd 17T fdeg 7 S Gehdl @ | 13 311 FIC9Teh, W@ Vaea 9 il a7 3ok el 39 Fehed
T i o o7 w0 4 ey o1 fadeg T8 ¢ |

1§ (d ) & STed U Skl ufeat Gew o et & fou defierd ST § swrEler 2@y & S dadh o
A e Ud 93k H off Iucie @I |

Y. 8

IR WK, I HIed (Aad a18) = ST T&A 2018/3(3)11/40/31 feie 01.06.2023 3R o 310 AR
TSGR , 378 3TRUTES oh! ffge/ AT 3Id § 319+ JeWR o 31fafed 01.06.2023 ¥ 39 U8 W ot qeerd &t fafifa
frgafa S 37emaT NfUehRY T JaTfgeld oo 1T SWTel 3T ek, T off Ueed &1, Shol o 9T (3R Uy e f) &
Y 39T Ff gEa # 2 |

oA I HE T 8 & ded (e = Tehed 39 3299 o fau ¢ |
o To[IER Tehod W Yafid 21T fedas W ST Gehal € | IS 31 FAR9Teh, W Telerh 1 SRl a1 3o Tarel 39 Tohed
T o a1 37 w9 ¥ Gafed o7 fadas T

I FoedT (Ad ) & STed T Skl ufqat Geet o et & fou el ST § e 2@y & S dadh o
G ek T d3eh H ot Sqetee] @ |

TeyTeR Ueel o SMRYIIAR
e TRICTERTAT T2 T TeT SRR fafie e
B/ -
T : ShIcTeRTAT Hg AT gt qer
feaien : 19 fadav, 2023 Ut gfaa

09



10

|:_'|agl$ AUl onl

Jfdoeq

SEA: 39 I ! TGS T e SISl T 8



ffeos gved wr ufaaeq

f1e9TeR el ot UfdaeT

fcerer el @l 31 HrE, 2023 o1 TAIG §U a4 o U ol &l siehfad fami faawon, wifafues orar wdierent o afdaes
T IRA & 7=k U3 HeToraT wiefer i frofomlt & Qrer 7o dseat aiftieh Hfade Teqd i gu TE=idl & Wi g |

farie fafytgamd
nfeafed o o SRE, F ER I B9 FIRER URESH %1 O ' 33 § @ 8¢ 2, S foF g # Tiee o Y =y

iy T gTae HeM 1 S 9l Ueh Yo7 ST A1 e 7ifte fawn 2, et faeaw 89 16.55 fraiey W e |
TR 5.74 fHcmiay fewn S ¥ S 3 10.81 fheimiay S femmr 21

31 W, 2023 &I GHT a9 o U fami faawolt o1 fexn 99+ arel "arY Ud 21 o f[9ai07’ o 399N o 9 & a1
T %, 72,72,040/- TG Tl 3o 0 &1 o 03 H 37 Sfaad]” viees o e "3TRfrd Ud 1w’ & ded Jamifod
ERACOIRDIN

RO 3 & TR STl 1 1S Tereh, Tean a7 Ggad IaT el Fef off |
QRS Rt Hofa

FIARTAT HAl ¥ FHIARIM fAIS ("ShUHIRHITA ) T T3 e '2008 H ShIcAehTdl § 3% 9% HaT HIRSK o FHT
& fou Tue (50:50) fee & WY RT WHT 3R U= S TWHR 1 Ueh TS ITT ST o &7 7 52
o | a1 B, ST o et o Rt 3 et T o, RE MR T 23 S, 2012 1 i o o & g 3% A1 o
1 YT HAT (F] T8 918 THINR ) a1 9T oo ST 31K o8 e &F i oS o &9 § ffed fan s
fufer & SO, Yo TaTerT & T S ST 74% feeder enft 3R ved faeh A & e 9 26% e |
T 91 UYH T WHR (GoWB) FRT AT 7 T T Tt IR UH3NSIR oh! e&didiia Y foU M0 | ITedt ferrq Hares
T AT TEAHT NG AR Il HE HA (39 9% THSITERY ) Y e mn g |

IRA TR A T8 o (0 e o ot STie aRASHT o foqre I1 8 ek IRASHT S=aa gehTs & &9 H &
STl T | BTeAtfeh, R TR o1 & ol IR 270 o1 Tt 37 afaisrT & J7 21 o e 38 UehIghel 0T &
e el TRY HIRSK o Arer TATferd shirft | IRASHT 1 =ROTEE ik & TR I T ISl 518 TE 2 |

T T et =g T fora T o fof uRetsr Y &hE fiT SfenreT, G Fefel arensi o qAeRanT gat o1 g
THIAT TST T | T AT BT G T T 1T € qenf sl ® it o1 off 9+ g8 €, e faavor 3y ford §
e mn 2|

A 3 HAT A (3T 2015 H) =IO &1 2t fof GREATSHT Sl Tef= dTel SRR g1 EdTiad ardides A1 o 9K
e fepann ST 31 29 Gaer § 9t I YR §YehN g 98 ohl STTaT |

g Taret 0T & HR0T fedar 2012 T 3 92 IRASHT o gEel #eH § fqaes @8 W &M fadew 2015 § 79
& T AT T E |

T IS ST =ROT B [ 3 T AT S8 T8 2 SR TRESHT &1 TR0T- 1A (5.30 f&HT.) amrser # gice de Ja
=9 gl o Dfead a i 14.02.2020 T 3R 31 7071 2 o s F 3 6 WA it € de faamaee Sig-
3R T 29 Radd & 9 FoAar § qu qfid LeH T TR0 18 [1.67 foh 1] {1 05.10.2020 T o1& @1 FaT
21 TSTE [T AT IS, BIIehTal §RT I bl T8, ST 3o 39 W0TTell & ai=ier iR T@v@d o iR g |

fqeTees QoH & 1Y MR 1 I Ush Heaqul 3uase W ¢, Hfeh ffaaee qd Yoid &1 Uk 99 2fiad WIH €,
SRt e fo ST 12 A AT STETET h3d & e ST 3t At Ty 21 o e INfHa © | 37 s Suvfam

KMRC
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Ffiss ufaa<Ta 2022-23

T A1 B IR I 6 g3 € Sl aef ot @ STHarel @A # 2 St 79iia | v &y fqeres -
TEARE ©E § 9 weeayul 1t el fnfed e & o g et farar e e |

31.08.2019 Tl T IHATSR 52T T qeet, I FH07 1 T foa, 2019 T TRT 3 &1 AlSHT ff, ST 37 : 7%,
2021 ¥ T B T, FT TSeretR & RFGET 902 7 38 HieT & ia¥ &1 e onefl Akl €, STl ¥ & S o Ry
fopam T 2, 5% 9199 ST foRar ST 99 /1 COVID '19 HRTHRT (Teett 3 gl @eX) & Wud i A § 1@ g,
=ROT-11 B IR & 9 fedd g 7.25 fRaliier fear ® 91 4 fird Qv 9t €, 6 e e garet &
STAd! o 37 S, 2022 Toh T FHIA 1 @& @17 AT| 1€ H 11.05.2022 i Rfgaet oM &7 § Sigi e 0l
e ForerTer T 2, ur i g % g S SR ghen IR 2 ST e HET Sy g S 3 SR0T TROT- 1) S AT
T T A B il Y o1 T 7 | ST AT ¥ TS e 4.8 fhelieR o Anf TR G J1 shY 1] e S
e TR 2023 Feffid &1 1€ @ 31X =ROT- 11 A1 of &7 J =1 A S GG GIAT S 2024, T 7T HTE €, SN G
TEeE SR faarees & 9 a9 91 Heeayul sl o e § EaTel dendient gifat st R o % e 2

TR & T W@, SRE Gug & HROT e 3fg, WIT & F S9N T e iierr § aeed 3R e 7 <8 qur sty
IR H IRATT g7 o IAR-71T e o SHR0T GRASHT hriraa= & 2rarer stfafed = § ufiEisHr arm § gfig 53
2| T T @ 2015-16 T Yo HATAT BT 8996 .96 RIS T . ThT HINEIT IRATSHT AT T LT ST | WL HAT BT
g f1gad e |f & Fiiem o a1¢, T8 9aTe . 8574 .98 IS (4874.58 TS T &1 Wighd AN oh HehTach)
oY oo T ® 5 Y9 S o ST iR 22-10-2020 FRT SRR fomar o 7 | Widhd TN AT WTaehord T
R frefafad e -

(i) HeNfYT AN STTHH o T Jeo TR o1 Hieh feger, 2017 |

(ii) fedar, 2017 Tk YIaH &1 T oot fi=ia1 IRAE 7 sfdffed o 3R feder, 2020 T A GG 1 I
IERIRIEIE

(iii)) TRETSHT gt 2 &6 fafer S, 2021 79 TE o |

frdror et o T wruT:

QIEREUT YET — 37T, 2015 A1 o7 TR0t fofa T, fSreh ShRoT GRS sl Gialg HeTeriol WM & § A1am

YR 3N 7ol WIM W R U 1N el o HRT 14 .67 T F Tgahz 16.55 o 21 T |

THATTAR T U O Skt T : TSR STk § T FH T A F2AE g5, R ST Teamd, S gRer iR

TRATSHT FHTH THE TR €9 § 741fad gU

e 31.08.2019 ! THANR § IHT FHF T A T fIherar : 51 Teuyg Sqefam T - A 1 936NN o 5=

STATHIT Tefteh ¥ TSR T@T 9T, @ 24a S #efiH & 3fax figl ffga arl waer s o fSreer aRumeeasy SHiF &t
Tag A7 ¢ TE ST I o TS & F Fe T 7 AN B |
o FIfAT 2019
o 11.05.2022 T I Tid o T o SR TaeiR § KT oM 7 91 59 T4 | I 3 497 3 o1 T TS
TIES Fekpol 37 & T Tehpell Tl 31X afeg el & SIgvH fag WR |
o 14.10.2022 I SHATSIR ¥ 1 T (Ff1-2, 5.5 HiaT o) & 707 o SR 91 BT 99w |
T IfcaAad HROT o HROT, Wiehd HLNTUT AT Tereher H STTHT T THT T T ST i a6l ol THe 31feres o
T ? | e e, 31 H 3T, T 3R R I i A 7 firrr, e 7 agers, aREsT see we (fewd)
& T T T 16 Ud TP ISR H YRAE H81 o 3aR-981d S o hRuT JeNT amd Teadha (3RS -2) |
g 7€ 71 U T 3T 2022 H Yot HAGT T 10,442 .41 FS T T Ueh GINFUT URASHT AN NPT 0qel 1 ¢ | RS
IS TG U 3TETEA U 9Tedl ST HAre & el ¢ |




fAeus Aved &1 ufadaceq

T 2022-23 % SR TE ATE 2023 & IS W ST AT
TAUT- | (Tiee oeh YerT-V U faareee - 9.30 faHt)

SO Tedt, URASHT & =UT-1T [5.30 fhaiel & Hice osh ol V ¥ Tied ek LfSaq deF Ufadds aasae o
6 UfAIIS I o TeT 14-02-2020 T 3 =RUT- 157 T FeAaTTH (1.67 fEFHT.) o Toel YT WoM 7o fgamees #19-
3T 7 977 gt LT & TeT 05-10-2020 F A A3 A T 2 |

I AT e §RT FoanTH § faareres e 233 formT o =R0T- 1387 T 107 16.3.2022 37X 17.03.2022 1 f&a
T 7 37N 3F WS W AT HaT TR I o foau IoT GYeT SR ol WIfHehR 24.03.2022 T W &1 17 € | e
&1 T 1A o S Y §U fATeies § FoEnT (2,33 fHelmie?) & &9 & @3 T 14.07.2022 T 1 Y o
2130 TS & A & A F Ferd-V 37 fGariee Al WM o S ufafer it w G o 7 9 T 7 | e ufafed
=13t T TE=AT 2,500-3,000 &fF; ST 31 AfAfe 30,000-35,000 F FF |

=uT- 11 (foaTeree & gaet i aeh - 7.25 fahelimie?)
gftrTe feran # fafaer st
o YT HIRESK & T 3797 & Seai G ot €, o fiehmis shale et a7t Al ohT SUANT Y ‘Tt afr’

fafer gRT shrefifaet foran S Y@ 2 | Fet R fae & &9 § S <art &7 3T a3 =R0T- 11 7 4 9fferg Rt
F Fe U FR T ST FEEd fwar < w1

o UTHMS § fGATeeE a% I3 &1 3R STHaTel G BT 07 37erer, 2020 H W <R T T o7 3R 3G G A
o1 &l I TEE &Y fAeIes ¥ I3aTSIR de oh 91 796 HIaT G FHI0T & ol T ¥ o fora afe=m et
T T R T 3 ol foRam 7T o7 | T% STH AT, 2021 T ITE foRaT AT o 3R 9% W, 2021 W [0 ge, e
e T8 URASH & T JaIeH 11 99 &9 § 7efiHighd T o 107 367 6l T g |

o =UT-|| T I O el T RIS FEEER

et | eafemamut | wfawT

@ (W) (W) [t

Sl/2 | TEAHE Y e T & AR 4892 4892 100
afe=m & 3R 4892 4854% 99.22

Tofl/1 | ST #eH ¥ TS T F X 7600 7600 100
afe=m &1 3R 7600 7600 100

* el 38 Y AT 9 € SO I2are & § 99 ot 31X SHaTl TehpoR a7 &6 Sigq & fau Rfzacet ome &1
T 7Tl 181 2, STet 37T 2019 F FETTH # qrT Y497 5T 4T 11 Cast In Situ Box Tunnel 1 27 HI2% T o1 T &1
TR T 3 IO T AR AT T H 9 5 2.45 fRarieT T e wefam M g § 4ok e $i 3 womede
ST o I B o aTe SO feRaAT S |

o I 4 T WM T WIS o1 T T T ¢ | TEAS WV &1 BIgeht, f5 T T o1 e TdeR, 2023
TGN ?, =ROT- 11 3 ot 4 JferTd Wort & womciTd s, Ja9T §RAHT 37X IRfeTed g0t s STk 8 a6
RATH

o  TUfST FRE & AU s AT (FEST 3R Tl BIH & &) H 7eaad! SMIaehiei fehma-Tg-fTeiem v
S A TR

KMRC
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s gfaaeT 2022-23

o T[S YAIY Hefcieh TR T Heeh Y- ohl BIgeht HEAAd! SATeRTAH (Heh - He-dfd oo IMUT o Il Srefarer
I Forefior <67 ahref O &Y T 7 | AT T GIRT H e T 8T 14.10.2022 1 I 2 W AHT H T
AT % 1 NATM AT SRT GE 3R 9= ot 31X S a1eft At o TreT &faet 3T S7ener g ol STeemdy
w9 Y ek feram T o7 | I 9897 1 TEUeR R s e 7 =, 3@ geael 4 o= & A sw e &l &
SR B QUR % U TS SIS fafr ot 90 qeh-iieh o W™ ¥ QT 3 1 AT 2 | 78 Ao T ¥ & Tt
T TG o SE 37 Tk et o1 GRef bl & & e gu 10T TE ¢ |

2ok R
TT- || 3 fou firgh fed (Feme-om) 3o & fou wrpf 2 erdee 3 faeer & e i € 1 Traer feH ¥ 7d @ 3l S
A 3o H TEARTS b T2 T =T 3R ST el 3ok § TS deh Yol e b Sigq T e [ el T g | e

3R TSR & S U= ST SR STHaTel T § T 330 HeX deF 3ok fasT a1 s off Q1 21 T 2 | fareee 9
TEANS ek G901 S STHaTel GO H 2.15 fhaliied det 9 3o o7 1 anefl of a1ehT 2 |

Tfe T ©ick
14 Y&, TS 6 ST TS, &1 31fd, ffeiior 3k ademn o foau ffier . 899.91 1 &1 Fidf aFd | a¥ 2015-16
TS fAfids, e @1 ueH 1 T off | TR, SR o faT 9T SRR AN €. 9.38 SIS @ | Joft 14 bt kT Sft

ST T 2 1 3 AT It eI 15, 16 3R 17 T M YT SifumuS fafis w1 fou M R | Al 03 Ykt
T (A ATE°2024-F5 2024 % &= 91 81 ST |

ferger smyfet

T FIRER & fou e 1mufct o1 el =g faffds =61 QT T 2 | 9ol AR fterd Lom 9fed gasl feF ¥ Tiane
WE & 91 fasTel MLl o7 ST I 2 T | FORE H A W Ugd 3T TE e % wRU TS 3R s
& 1 g7 we | fsrel el o1 e wH1 g R |

TEheleT 3T Tferaet

-1 G UG-V T fqareice 7 faeee B W ad U &) S1sa? Juil fawe 3F Teheied wfyd Y feu mu 2 |
RO~ F A2t 3R Teiaedl ot frefor 3w Smgfel =Ror-i1 & gl T QR o e e f | - F gt i
TEhOIZTeh! ohT LI il o1 Sh1l ShTth! B cfeh T <R fora T € |

[T Hara yurrer (Eaa’)

T U % vaTe 7 (T Fa $T om oae ahy feafa § it o geia ferd gfeed s o ae-gre g1
3R WA Jo A1 H Ueh 3Taret dIaTeRvT S T & feIu Ueh TTe Jar sl | 9ot SifeR & fau auy & &
e diear fAfde & wer forar T g |

=R0T-| T ¥ 9o 2 faareee # daieg o1 s 97 R o T 2 | 9 He 7 Sy o graer Her # off SE @
FHTH P BT T T 3 W RO H A WA R/

Tamafett, Seiieria Ug SAeifeeh hal shelerTT (TUHHT) STt

TEST A § TEAMS el WM deh FAR 3enfid 29 =0 (FEdidh) wiell & U 398K iR SM8aer fHfeT S
1 T O B TE @ | UAUHATT ERT SR (1A WS H w7 o7 e R ST T ¢ | vt & i e ga fam ey
THU, T T G T 2 3R T B fFeier B B QA T € 3 TRO-11 H B g T W o HIR R 7
3R grael Ao # of w1 7 TR T gE 2 | TS SUHuH, TRl 31 UASseuAuy § gt/ fugst e R e
T T SR W |

gfiTa @ o U uW s
RO~ | 1l o fAT 1feT Tfed € U UH T SR sh1ef RT ohR o T ® 3R S 7] B e T € 1 RT- 11 H Ao

fAfes [FuadEuaue) grT e o € U U o T SiR T w6 geet #eM I TR de o TS o 91 I
T ek T B3 AT T 3R 3/ TN 2023 T T A fAU T T 3EE 2 |




ffeuw gvgd &1 ufaags

TRt T uTrer (CgeT’) e

TROT-1| T R o fo Shiee woned o s e e i faee fafide @ fear mar @ qen =Ror- | € uReres
& fou fqaeres Lo o1 & Q11 a2 foam 1T € | =R0T-11 3 fow fafeor s § arsrer wf e1fie g8 € qei T
T TR 2023 T T & I IHT T |

TASHTH THIT AT (FTHET) / WIEhHH Thi elars (Fiasi)

Aol Ao TefET axarsit sl Ush WOl &, S 31 deh 1 Tge Tar sl @ 3R wiawid o SR o2&
XA 2 | TS WOl § I 3R B o TR W FAfder a3-WT T 3TN ek T ue gl Srg / omelt 3
- AT TXAAT T T3 X © | TUHEST TR HE T hT o W1 o HROT (e FooiT oh1 ToTed Sl o ST
IEHTH T SR & HIHAT Sl UITafd Sl | 36 ST, Wiahid o1 Hied 297 Wi 9 S |

6 TS WO o o Fugsi! (3T F=18 alel WiadWhid o 1a8) 1d a4 6 JfTd LM o fu dugs! &1 e
T ARSI 1 1 747 7 | 7ROT- | | ST 1T T 8¢ e 7 2 gobT ¢ | IoHH B AT Wi 377 THUS T BT Ueh [ehav]
T I T 2 ST UehIohel Teq0T 3R HHIT o a1e Tde 2023 Teh 39k T &1 5T o1 3HE 2 |

11/12.05.2022 .1 THATR Sty ffEaet (FET AT A9H) yIRE H el U9 hi T
. URITeR ¥EAT (31.08.2019 i THATIAX T T U TaF Y T2 :

1 T AT el SITETH 5.8 HiaY S7dRer A i gl aR i i e i o fdu toeiHs ¥ S5Ha]
3R AL 2019 F ol o1 T2 3R 3 FcIe 9o i 3R T YA AT 1 [ 2.45 TR ) | gefAT @i 3R Sare
I 1 & EUH T T A | I7 R st # dEd AT o fae wRifs Sifm SRR orl 31.08.2019 T4,
TEAE § AT o TofEE MH g1 § 1654 ¥ q o1 ST W @1 T o 3R fqAees 9% qgen & o
acT 804 HIaT I4T AT 31.08.2019 I THATSIR H A AT FYNH T AES- TAITH-1.3 3T 1! AET H
BICIRENCERIRIE

7 T 3a/fHEt o St o gy i 21 T e, fSien TRUTTREE STHA T ShTth! JeRa g3, fSier aRumEEy
ST & T 3R GOT o T919 & o F TIRG Gk § I8 T | A AT, 73 TARCT 1 Wit &7 f&m 11 712
FAferlt <A1 = Sraat § S T 3R T 12 ST W AT o1 T T | Jd BT 3R STl GO
SAIAITA-2 3 U e aifr 7oA &l off TR e a3 S T, ST T T § ST 300 HiaY 9 o |

Freitun #yi=t o forg fifgaet ymoe

1. HIAT S 1 9 G &1 T 7E 2021 F v W gRT RS 9T 3 fyarees de T 5 T SR 3 fyeees
Y U A R T 3R T oATe Suvfe M H GO Sy g1 oA T | 3 HefiA o deherE i fdiaa
M o ST o7 STt & a1 7efi off |

2. o wefit a RfEfm A 2022 § 98 @ g © SR iz v & siey Tl ste T w5 @ Ta @
2|

3am

1
)

Base slab 29m cast out of 38m

KMRC
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s gfaaeT 2022-23

W. 11/12.05.2022 T THATR T U TEF St TT

FEaSR e Rfzaet omve (38 HeT x 10 Hiex) § sfei St daiuy Ry forg 0 €, afe & 99 ia & 99 9
et 1 TS I TR 11/05/2022 F1 A T of | SR A 1.8 WX A1 SR & W1y Ao 39 Wid ) 29 i
T T B g T | O 1T ok A ST ST W [9 X 10 HER] T A G T THT 11.05.2022 T IR
ST 10 o1 AT BT S[EAT TR &1 47 | OHT 5[E oT TIH TOAS UES ool 29 o 1 Fepe 3 3R aieg
T & S fig WE |

grReT B AT ST TaeT YA/t 3 Ter 2 TRt o7 | S A g S R % SRRy e WA GEAnet o ST e
T foaen aftomaeEsy i fefdt oF, FFeraRT oF 3R TR 2 ofF o 79 o1 §9 THRAT § SO o7 7 | & o
T AR T € 3 3TH T F3 T FIAHIAT T 719 gRT SFgEfed sy 2 T € 1 13.05.2022 &1 G
& S G I AT T TE ¢ | 9 FHRT I g 3R Tl o R W 3Meft I o ST 154 ST ol Gaferd
feRTelT T 3T 3¢ IS 3T STaTg o1 e & 91 U & A Sieer 7 3

I 9 TS [9 X 10 Had] o1 FrmT e faew wrefa fafrdt oiv wfies frmr denien] &b SR feier 05.03.2023
T IR ST T T | A The o T o a1e, et 38 HieX ded I ated § § 27 HieT o1 IR A @ SR 9
11 TeR 7 3993 1A fomaT T € 1 90 11 X o g o1 T 3o e QR o are SR St i do
w1 & e 7o T Rlaet o9 & 39 e A A ST 7

. 14.10.2022 ST THATR T Hidr2 3 10T 3 SR O 9 Rt ST

T2 fefiomeret | g S 107 1 619 =l T8T o1, ST J5il2 o 959 o ded aSaeR fdad o I
faTereE ST 3R AT 128 HiaX 1 gl W2 | i TS, R e 3R swerrd e o 2fEm fed =11 ger &
e TR 24 feeR 2022 T I 21 TE ot | g &1 FfEA & SRE, BT T & GIedl ST 61 a1ef & N F
&g Y fean T o7 3R e T oY feran A o | S e % arste ST 3T % 918 13 STEaR 2022 3
ST % T G 1 a1H IE G371 14 31T & gag 3 Fs] dc MU T ! 55 1 &h1g Hohd el o |
9 B Mg &3 o feaw eifam 200 fordt oY 7 e 9o, Qe o 345 997 ST 91 A= 7 a6 3fR
e BT TE9T 7% &1 TR 37N 97 & SIEfEa 81 1 e o Trer i w7 ot 98T uefey M gl 7 ot % A
Tk O AT | 3T 1 Fe SHRAT B T8 o €99 3R TR T84 1 T e off | 14 3T6eR 2022 &1 Gae 5.30
o I AR 1 PRI 9% €2 | 12 SR T g2 3R 192 AN o Uefaand o R R Gae-Ter fehret fomm
T 3R IS U ST o 9 O o = St 7 e @

foru T AenTer Ted Ut
(i) T &5 ST 9 I 31 TRT § 39 G Sl il § 9T 31 W dodh € T | I 9 U997 R e &
foTu dreg TRfa g 718 off wifere 39 FRIfa e foha S 9t |

(i) CP2 % hY TR @IT ThT Ueh STfAfierd TR o TTeT TTIGhIT THTMET TT 3R S7: 15 STaa 2022 T SITeR 12.30
S o AT I o Y497 o1 I8 X § e o |
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HUAT o JAATH TS

&% o U et BT AT SR ST T TR i e SHRAT oh1 GaTcHeh B0 J T sl ST 37N 59
e TEHTHS WA &l ST a9t §RT 61 SUHT | AfE a1 347 <1 Sfot # wemiaia oy e farfaat o7 9
T 7, A 3k oAU FeOT SRt SR QUi ST Tl S AR I E

THATS chi TEATSAT ST T : Teh T |

Suft faawur UgElt g | qEA HeAT | TEA geAT | HeA
31.08.2019 | 11.05.2022 | 14.10.2022
gag | oIfad wae 72 9 12 93
&% fohT MU e 23 2 0 25
AT forT T wad 31 4 11 46
AR o 37efi| e 18 3 1 22
FAT | g Y FeRTel T FafTE @ . 710 154 192 1056
gieat § T T U S 693 154 192 1039
YA o d1C GATd foht 0 e 412 55 173 640
Fepefies ST (i) # QAT et o o 298 99 19 416
AT USH R STHAT IRaR (T aR) 202 0 27 229
ST I T Ferd (FEFTe W) o7 . 69 32 1 102
TEH | T ge 81 21 30 132
Ffgfe U AT GFMHER (T &) 77 16 28 121
TRE 37X QA et 0 12 30 42
Yl gaRT/ R T 3Ues gEH 38 2 0 40
faefifta @ erferes wmme it wer

I T T U faes’ & SMUN 31 UHHYd ANd R UM {7 77 7 | 39U, 39 52T % SR0T U1 T &g
T LT BT e i 2 SiEees I o o1iF § | g, e 1279/- FE %, %k Sigard offa R
aiferdt’ o quf STgarer TfeT o Ter & Wy o Uit Arafaferdl SN giferdt o S ST 7 | 37 g ufemar SR afd
1 Tl & T TSI SR Te 5T ST ¥eT 78 uRefies A o1ifreh w5 ¥ 7 A TGt fHhAr S AR | S gi
T O TG AT o Gl H SMEAST SMEATST WEuH I HeAal T 7 A 7 | U v 5273533 U & o vey
e T 7 | BTetifeh, ShUT SR thiget ohY eI 3R gofg SAfEH 1996 T NI 34 & ded WA 39 e H
T AT

BaeT A U faareiee (SRUT-11) Tk $19 TS hl QI i chi 0 T -

& e ware t) 1131163
1| TESI e - WEAHE @S | 4.80 | TR, 2023 | Ay - TEANE €2 45 formt @ ¥ frfafad secagof
(37w Tan) F A= @s | foe Al T e T8 ©E &l 91 i § THIfad e
T AT FTTTA * 2|

o &I T AT BT N AT 3N I 37
g A ST o |1 THh] HAeeH
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=) ECES warg e e
2 | CEETE- e YR % | 2.45 | SH, 2024 | e IR G AEHT F1 MR A SR FeT 3
I 9 @ HI =AM HAT | TR g A ST o |12 ST HAee

o TG UHS-5et &7 T
o IIUHifsuz IfTcivr v & &fasT 3 Feraner
ufge & T

e ISR H g =g

* % TSN He 3R TS (Ffed) o i Yftmd Rort ik gor e & g e e, wned, faser omfd ok g
T A FE FH e dF R qH ¢ |

faaTeree i Teie & die Ude Hecaqut shtd o fore aremd:

faTeiee — Teams 32.45 5§ weeagel &l & 0T 29 F 7.25 & & =Ro1-2 faaees - gEel #eH €3 A9
T B GHT 2 | Ak ! AT a6 I Hewqol st sl fFemfed s & fau, st 3 Fefatad seaget st & fao
fqaTeee 3R UOee TOT ©S & &9 99 Heeayqul A ol W1 i & ol delen! HHieei Te s 2q faeaf e
o foger feram 2

1. g 3R R afeTm T X ST a1l G b e 9ot U g T Wi set o7 |

2. g IS (A, 9t 3T didi3) o gt S3a e v T W e srawen o frmr & wfe
W

3. Mgl H dfcrer ufee & gUeh e o Gl garY Ao TERR W E UM% & HH;

4. R oM % 37ex 38 HieT AT Sia I o FHT e ST gAA SR R S By S S |

5. T FT 3R SHaTel g7 # F3areR # fdiad 9 R 37d YavH & @R,

6. 1 U 1 42 FHET (CP2)

HH T 1 o BIget STIa Gt TIH! T T T W e |

QI T g

ST o T IRATSHT § qTfaa Sfaat (et T ga TWaEvT & 1Y 677 ST off) o et o ot T guiefia

T 3R TIEIT T € | BTellfeh, 7€ ST HIH! 7 81 1 ¢, Sifeh TN TR@0T T 7T TeTehivl 3 TS
QoA &3 | qAE &1 g AT TEl enil | FA H 39 g g gef ¥ Gefud #1E erged 6 2

TR I wfad At 1 g 19E w9 § frefefed e ® e e
- TEel HeH & feerd o A Hirie (129 gEM )
- TEe e &F § Ul & ST e o T 7 3Teg AT GeRTHT ohT T

- FOENTH H 30 31eT ST gTHT ohT TIHIAReT, fTgH & 18 TehTHT b TS 6 W Ugel o LI W g TR
F e

- T gEE WSt & SR @ T 63 31e Ul Wi ST o g

- oI gE gt o SIRT gETe Jeere 7 80 TRART ST YA |

TaTaRuite faw

SR IASRTT o ey ST STETET ATt 3aTeh! § T acil Jeeehl S-3% AT Ui T 9t TiaRoiig =Hifeet & of 2 |
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ST T URESHT & I T % 91E 31 ATSHT 7 37 T BT WiehR foRar |

T Tt TRATSHT o T-H1 TONTUd TTd ohl Jie=w STet YguvT R0 aiS o |Ty-T1ef 9feaw Se TER o TH7aE0T
T gRT TEaRoTT THESt § Hepd <1 S €t | T TR Yee S I et I AN Y TEl ¢ ST o 31T sree
frid 7 3feafad foran T 2 |

WIFT 1 2fea i fafes F18faa & =eeiiier AMeSt & S8R daN far 5 71 ¢ | f5i ot uord <t @i faear I
& 11 0 fedt & =0 1 fesie far e |

‘-9 NEY GREASHT TR0 3 TRIT BT Wed el ¢ a7 SR W At T whl hH st ¢ | RS & e
o oI e 1,335 TS oY B2 T | 3 W St oy Tt R e, fier 0 3 Ut wh wifie ©, o wfatita
TE=TH T8 T2 & 31 39k TIH W %. 45.61 @G ol el N & 6,900 T 7T TT 2 |

st T

AT o Siad ol dge S H Hecaqul TTE ohl eI | TEd 8U, 9% AT UREISHT Sl SEIEeH 1 fHfae
FNfaftT, 7ok (U Wi Ifvass SSfaftn &) gRT gf@ o) &1 Td9% 200 TSI § & U 397 70 7 | 9% U
IeGA ST AT ST TR B |

FiiT ShT TTRIUT, WENfiTeht sraviguT, faesi qer el ot =

O TR oo S foTT ST TR T hT YR SUANT Ud S Melfireh! T =7 gAfv=d e o fou fese
T W fAfT SosiT GRE0T ST kT YRS 1 2 | BT, fHegd U R §:

(aR) TSI ST ETRITT -
(i) Sl TTRIUT o feTT I3TT 1T She W a1 W1 :
o TWIMI 3 ITF FEl H UALSI-TehR il Al et qfiehed T &1 7 € |

IfHTd LM # WIhH A SR 1 WEeH, S TR Sha 1T i STavaehdl ohl Ikl 8¢ qeh hH T
M SR Y =07 Frofl 1 @ 7 T |

o TR & fofu Afedw wies @il sl A a1E @, S ReiRiad Sfeht ot afiepenr svear 2, fSad afe
% T faed 3= 21, i foh UoTeit § =1t TeT 37 9afi a1 gRT WU ol STt |

o UfIIS WIN & IR i 39 e & @ 77 ¥, fSdy o & 9o 7 wrepfcer 91 B ST 1ok
TC O A1 ST T | UfAIdS WY R et ieTai-a ¥ & S&IHIe  ahiad §d fid ol &H &3 & ufd
freafed fora 2 |

o T HBNT-THR Sl TR FHSITHT Teh1ea! Sl Jrofl TGe UMl o T1f-H1ef ftTd LM & g aRewferd
fear e &, forgd o, e aTei, oot senfe o SUNT 1 STgehferd fea < oek |

(ii) TSIT o dehfeden EIdT o STANT & folg Shu=t gRT S3TT 71T &heH:

3R ST & AT ol oo e v Hod fSir & TR Jal & a8 ek Iueteey 3y saiy | fadt Jrerse
%Y T T AN foman T © Afeh BT G Trehfaes AT o1 SN e ST He |

(iiii) Z7iT TRV 3TN T G 9T

T RASHT o Ten 3faa TR § fiifia forar smam)
(@) WENfiTehT SravirauT -

(i) virenfiest sraviT T feem # fory M T
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SO T AFISIT IRASHT 1 AN &3 & AT € | FTeNfTehT STaeoT st FHTeHT 3BT Tl o o fold e =07
7Ty o ST |

(ii) 3 GUR, AT § R, S [T = ST AT Sy one] o7 g &
T forer AT a1 SR vfasy § 3fad g i fer s

anfeler faehT o JgaT EET -

g UREISHT HiS[eT ATIeh 37 TR &t deh STEM Te= SUisd shiIuil, T &1 Jg gifse il SaaTvie &
B ¥ fHehTq T o WA § WYY o S 3 Teran & foRanT W g9 et st ony wemfed & | 78 uftEs
FIAHTAT 3T 3HF I B Tl IRaeT SFeLd &l HH HI &1 Ueh 7479 7 31 78 FHicATdr 3§ admnd i ofig it
TRATAYOT TSHUT S ShThT B¢ ek ohH ahY ol | HONTYT E@0T o 319K 9 aeA H THag R FHUIEH ST Toars
3T AT o T FIAST Gfaed off 2 | 9 Yo & faerees 3R Taet RE & T1el-T1Y TEAE T UHE 99 37g)
TR ol ST YR Iuer BT | T A e o AN F AF Snfelen e oy agrar e s At
“fig 37T 91 TEHUT T A I ITEl W07 H YR 2T |

AT UET YIS o 19

FHICRTAT T J% AT IS 370 319 § Uk Meyfeh, R, ToATeRvT- 3T et S qRee JTIell € ST ShicteTal ITeT
3T MY o Ml &t o 9T WeuvT, AT S 7K Tk gHIAIS ohl ST e doh Wed Y <Al | 78 & | &
e IOl <1 SIGTaT <, ST €TST ST ShictehTdl & SIgai YeR! o fofd Uek & 29 TR JeTH | 3FAM ¢ fof a1
2035 B T 1 AT ST IfAfe 9 womet o1 ST S | TR =01 H ufEs & fAu 3 et nae s
ST ool T o 3T Tifafereh TR AME ST T fharaaT ST R T R |

ST ST & <RI T TR0 37T FraTfSish 74T 2 (3SRl & fou ef=ser Tar, e & 4T, wrehfass
TR0 T ) |

MITS S W THIAT - 7@ TRaed Hal (fFaraee, erae) iR e &F (Fiee oo fadT 3R iy & TR =
TT3) T I o T AT (HRTHI0T 3R He A1) ek A1t BT qiRae |

TR AT G - T o A0 wewhiH S @ 3R sreefes fqmafe quret o7 mae |

AEAT AT TUTET ST LA UGHUT Bl W SHTAT - T AT S HT HT 3R Tl TRIe T 1 T/ HET 3R
Trer & AT T R 3R et § e o & o Uk Seek 9REe wome Y ST |

AGAT SHa T - 19, a1 9gH07 U IR 37 AT SToFa] & ¥ i gU T 100% AT Tl o TeT G
3P FelTer =T ST gRT et st oran # gfig | 7t 7o foF 241 & 3w 3R TEva o for feu aht T of gedeor-
3T 3R fahtes feaeg & fgiat o1 Wer shid gu &R S|

IERIRESIRIGE

fareeter & 2022-23 & A0 S0 & foIw Y TG 61 TONfud 92 3deT . 1100.00 g, & . of | faifd o & v
IS A 1 TS o R % U 300.00 A S fRU R |

I g
fheTeTer Shoit ekl STfiIghd SR of % 3758 .62 FAS 7 |

31 T, 2023 I AT S AT IR IST 3R ST, Torteas 31X FehdT Yoil T 3758 .62 AN W & T&T | ST
Y HA (I S TR GRT g&aiaiRd SRR Gfed) ol eid sfaadl 0 2781.38 IS (74%) off Siafen ™A
T ITedt ST HACTT &Y 927 .24 TS T (26%) |
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ST

Nfaee 9 & SR, T = ST SR, 2013 T 9RT 73 S ded ST F ST 19T BT SHET T R
TeiteqTedi= o o <R 0T, FAeT S M o fqeRoT

HOAT A -

%) TRt o safer o1 or= i ey &6 12 %00 6 fean @

@) T 3= e b = sfer o) ferddl off 507 o Weier 8 oh1E AT A1 e el 4 € qe

) T AIFTEE, 2013 T URT 186 o 7 FEIRA AR Gewdr, Wlie a1 o7 o /e § fRdt off o1
e forerrer i uferfera B1fet T 1 2 |

HeTaeh, AT ST TgeRT e Shut

TfeRETE I o SR SO o O g o e, TEdnt A1 Tge 3T Sl Tet o |
s udter wfufa

NS GRT ST ST ST oRaT TRIeT FrAfd § 2021-22 & SR Fr=fafad FHeerer anfie o

10.07.2022 ch TS+

1. et sis AR (- =) . s
2. 4t T ARV Bl (- L W
3. 4t ST (R-ShreferTd) R 02
10.07.2022 & qTE TS

1 T AT TRYR ok (R-FTIehT) L aTee
2. i ST (R-FTeT) R L)
3. 4t oo g (R-Frem) R L2

feretrer a 2022-23 o TR AGIILTET WIUfT o7 T3 foar o foras it sisy IReR (31eaem & w9 7), of U7 uH. 2k
(Tew) 3R 4t ST (Te) INfHet 91 A 379 RER o & Weis 29 o ® 7 370 el & qeifd o
1 e, 2022 ¥ AT w1 Gew T @ T T W FR ff erive e ofufa & gem & w9 H fred e T
2l

31 AT, 2023 1 AT 99 & SR, G TIET T &1 IR 939 3 - 19.05.2022, 08.08.2022, 29.11.2022 3R
29.03.2023 &I |

ATdftan orET gieren

FHSTRUT US & ., T oT@IehR bl faii o 2022-23 & foAT it 7 37ifieh ot Tiiereh g o 7 2 1 ot
Titer fafq ¥ 2l o wieres o S Ud 399 THI-GAT T ufdde ol el o |

Tifafirer vEr wiees

IR & = ST 0T ol Tieeh 3 T HAR FISHT US S, F @R oh! St SAfufam, 2013 i1 &RT 129
& [T 9fad GRT 139 o 37 faeia o 2022-23 & fAw S o Hifafus ower v &% w9 7 fged o 2|

@ Ui eeh et ufade
31 AT, 2023 %! AT gU a9 o T st o faedie faawol o s orat wigent 37efid 1 AR hIoR U4 & ., T

SRATEHR T e Her T ¢ |
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TS AR ISR U ot = St SfUfad, 2013 &1 €RT 143(10) & 37efF (iR cr@ien AHen! o 3T&T oial-
T T T | 3 Ao o ST 3ehT fSerial eaR afaded o faxdi faarvit @ T oiar-udiel 2 oRaT-iieidh o
et & aftfa €1 3 Sfmase o =i uhedad gRT <IRT Aifder dfedr & @ner € grer s sifuferg 2013 U9
3 ST et & e % 3faid A faervit T 3kt oRaT-eT F rfud Afde srevashdrelt & ET Sl
& WA € T IR & ATARATS Ud ek T & SR 30T 31 Afer STEal ol [ a1 2 | 3eRT fawary ©
foF 3= T TU TG e 3T T % fAU Uk SHR Y2 S 2 T U 3fHd 2 | 31X 3o gRT orar wiifard
foriier faroit & 3R | i faoi fropft 72t 3t 2 © | i wheres o1 RO # Sfeetfiad famie faarott i foofor
wq: T § 2 ot sifaftad froof &7 sravaendr 721 € | Fifafier or wlierent T e fiod § werd e W nTE
faferemd, smfat, afaerar frmfort T8t < € 1| 3 et o & SR SO S ot Tie 9l oy STt
forait oft s 6t g TR T 2

O & freies 3 veTeraT uiteres &t femfurat

AT 1 4RT 143 (6) o 3TefA 31 W, 2023 T TAT U A o U foefir FaRol | 9Re & feaer iR Herera
TErereh (ST F frmfort off e € |

TSt 7 forefrar faeolt 3R Fafera orar wie gfde o1 9eay He o1 G i o U F2 Tyl fual & SR

el © | ST WHieh{0 T9 UhR 2 :

WA o fesIen Ud HeTerar uiiereh st femfurat
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I fraforr off g 2 |

st 3 foreier faRon SR Gaiferd oian sl ufqee o1 Sy YHel &1 e i & U e Tecaqul Ardel W TehTe]
ST ¢ (ST THTe{0 29 UehR 2 -

u. fawit fearfa oz femfurat

LGELCED

Hufa

T ATcenToren aftadf

1= farefter dufwat (A - 7: %. 230.14 HT)

T 7 W YUSUST o1 G T Wee & 546 o d7e fefarfad sRas &1 T €
o foefim af 2018-19 ¥ etz o 2020-21 & T & FHfT F AR T fagd FeAMT off T R T
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o Y, fafea, ufv=w Sme TerR o 9T yae e SR FRes (o) &1 U 93 Jae-2022 % HEH # g8,
STeT 98 el T o ufean de TR Seal UHSegaT e T et uferfe fewt # wm

o IR T ITUE HIAT VA ¢ o T Tl JIhT H UfS= St TR | Hoft of wfergfef o S 7 gAeR et R
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° EW 3TAET, ST HWE 1A @Eﬁﬁ’ [Sate Support Agreement] a%mﬁ%éméru ff, WWHET {&[%@éﬁaﬁ
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7 317 T-FAM aREaft (STafiar Jarett & foaw werrd) fem i1 fim) 1 & faavor T2 2|

T AR A I 2 5T W, TSacgamedl 39 WAl de i &< a1 S|

Tt 73 WY Yo B R T § SN 3= e 2022-23 # 6.46 FRIS T HT JIAH R 2 g9 1T, I U AE
T 0.20 FRNS T T HHVT faTA Ik ol wfagfel ¥ @ 7 |

AeTeR o Tdare off T g1 SUCTed ShT U a0y 3 SfTeniv] § TeHd 2 |
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s gfaaeT 2022-23

Ehiueel s - Wt
- SR = (Fifad amede) (Aie-6: &. 253.51 HY)

¥ 3.65 IS ST BT YA 1 T8 WA Ioeh & ol Toiud! & Tefad =7 € 157 121 TeTHf=eh Teiich a9 |/Ast
I[ee o ded Sfae R ST =gy o |

THHT ST e T 2023-24 o T @I §€ FY TH foRaT ST |
Hifaferer oiar wieres Wt GUeust & facliehd § 9eAd ¢ |

hiteer T - W o
- SATRfET =T - & (A -6: F. 498.63 HUY)

Hiuuy SEErd & AR faw a¥ 2022-23 & fau @t o8 =01 EET & AU FASAS ¥ 37.00 FIS T

T 3EET 263,263A, 192,192A, 207 31X 207A, o foru fawiar a9 2022-23 1S &1 T0HT &1 a1 &1 STl 2, Teh a1
20.04.2022 &1 377 Y 20.10.2022 T |

T 3RSl 295 am 295Aa?1%|'q3|'5f 2022-23 o IR Haw Ueh 91X, 20.04.2022 Y ST AT T 2

% 3.09 UG T ST T LT 295 37T 295A THTAT 20.04.2023 ! AT MU 711 F Faifed €, 58 famad 2022-
23 % T &1 w1 ST e 7e e 2023-24 F TR

SOfT, FUASTREIUS SRT TG T o ST AT b foe TTerT SR STSTEHT 07 THTaM o eie 7 o 781 gam
T |

Tifaferer o Theres &t 97 off 79 © o SUN o &1 oNd Sl & H 8] S T e |

ot erieR= Hifa u¥ femfurat
fareitar fawor we e
TR Hifaat (A 2.1)

TEd % F9 § 3T HUHARGICA Bl g9 3T HIRSR GRS o 0T 67 T Gy 727 @ 37 327 Yo By
TSI =0T & ded ST-<fev ISR & Frer-Jrel quf afEetn & TeH 3R TER@E ol ST T T € |

TG UREISHT o1 0T 1655 ToheT & folq Uen €1 =0T § fohar STHT @ [@Tetifer TSI o1 Ueh feee TsiE 30 & &
e Tt €1 = foran ST g € |

gTelifeh, ARl T Jeichd 3R 3Y 3T Yo o 'wiehEt B AN AT T U o 0 8 o a1 @ R S
el 2 iR T AT o T 3R Thet U o fw %E IR 1 o # S gu |

TAMAT, SHEET 2018 # Yol HATG SRT ST O a1 |G bl T3 B fAam ST =feq 31X Ueferd o) ol @ o oo o
e o] Sh1E e STHeT 81 &1 T2 2 |

39 JF W YUSUST o1 Y T Hee & SAE & d1e fefafad sRars & T
wfaaa or@r aie afaaeT

FFFTT T RT 204 3R HUHT (NIHT FifHent i Fgfa 3R MRAfH) F=mt, 2014 & I #, A€ TS W8T
TS UHUad, SOt Adhaiet o et o 2022-23 1 oial Tie &3 & fou e fear g |

I g fedAier 8 fada, 2023 @1 fou U ufiaed &1 ufd off Ger 21

ey et

RCTeTel TS T TwfelT A FIRTTeRT T Bigey Sifererad 15 (F5%) ¥ 10 (T9) fRemh &1 2, S fof e & anfiearcy
AT THFFUE H ver o T e |




fAeus Aved & ufadaceq

feoTeR o &9 § T o TN 3T SIS Te ok SR 1 T80T SRS, A WU, o, off uA . wredt, of var gew
T, 4 TSI AR fiT 3R i 31 AfeR gRT e & T aged Jarstt & S ¥ SRt I WieA & |

ST (FreeTer ot frgfert @R Awera) fam, 2014 3 fo 4 3 grer afad st sifafm, 2013 (ifufem) 1 6wt 149
(4) % ST H |, A T FH T 7 ) Wl 29Tk T Sl ¢ 591 & 57 g ag | ff=om =it e 2
(47) FRT ORI fofa 7T € 1 et # et 1 (Ueh) s fevTer iadt o] AIfteR off | =Terifer fedie 10.07.2022 Y
et 3i5] AR, W= ST & HHeTet o Tt & T € S o fReT Hed § &g s v TE ¢ | WA
et o1 e & fou Yo oY, Yot e F el fopan T |

YR WHR, I §31ad (A9 aI2) T 73 G&I1 2012/U1ST/ HUHSRETA/ 21/4/90d feier 30 S, 2014 gRT HeWa e,

2T YA, HIAHTAT T deshlel T T9TT T T ST d6F HUASTRHITA & 9T Hedl § i9Iahifaes 31e9e] & &9 o
EREEEaRSURHE IR

AR, TEWaed: . AT IcHd, ShIcAhTdT ohl shiHl o FeSTeh HSol 7 ieTehifcieh S1eel & &9 § AT fopam T 2 1

dt g . YT, STEARUIUAS + 3oid a1 o TSI ek E(0)IIl/-2023/PM/37 feieh 17.03.2023 & 1&Y feaie
17.03.2023 ¥ I ¥, SRIAHTT o HeWe e T TeHR TE0T Y foflm o |

YR WK, I HIed (dAd a1g) & I3 T 2012/ 051/ HUHTREITA/ 21/ 4/90d feier 30 SIHail, 2014 o 3MER T
ot 9 7 . ¥FT, AEARULUTE 1 ol & (29Teh Hed § 3vTehifeieh 37elel o &0 § 1A o T 2 |

ot U= U7 STPaTe, STE3TNUHE o] Iaid a1 o 3737 T 2018/3(3M)11/40/17 T 17.02.2023 & dad HIGR/Aar
TS & 3T HRYR o STl Ueh Afdiad 79X & 9 § 39 18 T SHIR T ol arig 27id 18.02.2023 T 39
7e W et frafi geemd o1 frfe e A1 3HeT el de A7 2Tt ST deh, S off Tt 1, SR o uey e
& &9 ¥ forpad forar T e |

o FoIe Mere ST ST, STESTRUNE &1 19 a1 o 3731 H@T 2019/5(3M11/40/14 i 17.02.2023 & T&d
TS (30 U UH)/H27 ¥ oh 319 STfdRad THR o 3TcTal 3k SRR FUTel ahi diig 370Td 20.02.2023 ¥ Wl 39
T R Rt fafad qeu ot fgfad e a1 37T ST ak, S o TRt /1, T o e eTen (TR 3R A %
w0 7 frged fFar T g

St Tl T T 3R I Teesh, STETEH 37N STedl i WaTer (TH3NU=an), R TN 1 3o aIS o ST
T 2022/110/57/10 AT 01.05.2023 ERT 01.05.2023 &1 T T i ¥4 Yex 33 g4 T afag 3R &g
JaATESHT, AR AR ITedl S HAT (THSNURT), YR TSR & T R Tga Tfa 3R g Jaresn, s
IR I H TR (THSNTTU) o 78 T e b AT 3T STe9l de, S off Tect @1, et o FowTeh Aol 7 siwmhiferes
TN v o &9 7 e e @ o |

St 9t & Aareg, MEINTHE 1 TrdE/Aal Yo bl 3709 aIS o TSI H&T 2018/2(3M)11/40/17 AT 01.06.2023
SNT 01.06.2023 T 3797 HFIYR & AT Tah Al TIR & &9 H o1 o Taie feeTen o 9g |, fomdt fafia qeud
a1 fford ek a1 ITeR! WalAgfa ek AT el eel den, Sl ot Tgal 81, e foram T o

At 3T FHR ASER, S 3TRUTES 1 fIfigs/ 3T Yo &1 Yol a1S o 39T 9@ 2018/2(3)11/40/31 A 01.06.2023
ZRT 01.06.2023 H 37T FHTAYR o TAET Uah AT T9R & & H ol o (Heee (3R T8 W ) & 92 W, iRt
frafia weu &1 e qe =1 3T JaIgi I AT ST ST de, SN o T'd 7, Fge foar e o

yffem T 9RT 152 (2) & SUCH ¥ A 9 7 % . ¥ET, A UF U, TEgad, § 9o Gere S e, 41 e,
1 4 . Aiard 3R A ST FAR ASHER 1 et o gy o fu Gehed Sl S S ST ATt ST Saek
ST fera S |

IRT TR, Ffid ATelt & e 3 5 S 2015 51 U ARG S 61 2 | 39 & geof §, sifafrem &5 ¢my 152
(6) 31 152 (7) o WA FRHNT SHufa1 T AN Féf 2T, ot qegof wawt ¥R GSi T 3% TR gRT el T8 S ¢ |
I & HRASH, S & foRdt off Fevren a1 ST a1ftfer 31 daek H U SR HaTae e ol SAavaehdl Tei 2 |
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i ufaaea 2022-23

IS A Adeh! ST GE&AT

31.03.2023 ! THI < 99 & SN, S0l & Fe9Teh HEel ST 19.05.2022, 08.08.2022, 30.08.2022, 29.11.2022

37 10.02.2023 T 5 (W) 93 T3 |
frevTent = STReTfa srfyrefem

ffrem T 9RT 134 (3) (T1) IR 9RT 134 (5) & e §, fxii a9 2022-23 F Aiffer ofEr & Fay § feve g5a
&1 rfierfaaar fred

(1) TEeRt T | TS @R HIeh! ohT UTel el AT o7 Y ehiE TEH 319 fawe el %

(2) forciver faraott o gwer # afofd Uit oieh ifat a1 =12 foram T o7 37 3= AR i faRam 1 o der o favfe
3T ST St 3fee iR faaergot &, frgd forci anf it qifid T ST % ATl U 3 ST o SR T SN 71
TR 3 ey gfyeRioT fear S gen |

(3) ST ST TRET ST QT SN eEreret qen o1 tfmfhaaret 7 Ak 3R Tar a & fou sifuferg & mEemt
& TR Wi et Rete & wevemE o fau 3fad SiR v e war e,

(4) T 1 Ueh "TET G’ & SN T AR fefan 77 o

(5) FfT WIS HTTAT S WITEIHT T STUTCH A= o & o 3 3 e qonfert om &6 78 off 37 Wt wonfea
e 3R T ST & Ut B W@ et

(6) THT RIS G =G HHeh! ohT STdTer feoha T |

e fed st ar
ffT=m st &RT 92 (3) B zeSuersy faefifta woa # a1fifer fiad =1 OR Gore (3a=en- 1) fopar T 2|
Taferd Telt o TTer STgaer a1 awer

ST Y TG o TR =01 & T Ush <19 Fraol(eh & T STA T | '$S UUH 24 & =< 25 3N 26 &
IR, S 3hTgal W U & WA o1 =07 a1 G 107 1 Aeeaqol 919 € €, A afereed g S a7 TR
Teiferd Ter o TG H AET ST | FA T TWRR Y Gaferd geer o fu Sucs g2 o oy 33 7 SR e e §
i g for € |

TS Tt & |rer 99 o SR SO & Teequl - 9 3 (feh TifHa 2T Yo Hater 3R S I |

-3 T Ul et wume o o forg,
31 WTel, 2023 | 31 W, 2022

IR HEmd
I " e A 300.00 300.00
3TMATHA Ud 9Tl ot Hare § ure ffeai - 634 .53
31 Hemd
(@) ST U i S o IRy o fau

IR R HAReH 0.02 0.05

I A T2 S ! feagee™ s fafids - 14.22




e Aved & yfadaceq
@ Wiwfa
dEuAud fafids 102.97 28.59
aRd §=R frm fafds 0.08 0.10
e 403.07 977.49

T USR, Y U -2 § T (oran) fEm, 2014 & 999 8 (2) & Wi ufed ffad S ar 134(3) & gl
(T) & Yoo T a1t o -3 % TSRl S SYEYFeRdl o el ¢ |

ot et faie fearfa =t wenfaa e arer ifaes uitad= ot ufdageg

fevTeh Hed 50 o1 1 UfF st @ o faxia o o 31 9, 2023 (5 fo farefter foaor weifera €1) & o7 it 59
fade & arE & o1 g S ohl faeie fefer oy wifad o 9 shig off wifeer aftad A afadedd T E

HUTRITIT

ferefter af 2022-23 % SR AT F I AW 2 o AR, = Frafd, sfatEed © a1 3w, @6 o, s s
(vaeranra hifHent st Fraferd ud i) fem, 2014 % 1w 5 (2) & ded fefifia i & aifes =61 miRafies o
FIEE

ek SITEw yeer =it ot faenre ud srmaa

S A $ T AT FIRSRK TRATSHI o1 A 36 el € | 9RA TR A i foran @ o aftelismn s gonrs
& Y # A aRESHT % fSIE % W e T T X WAl | GRS O e % 91E, YRA TER Tehigd (0T
% TEd IR Sfa0T SRS o Tl 34 e |

I HAEr | e fean € foF ' 3% A9 FIRER o W B o aTe, 3T IRETeH TR TEREd AT Yo, IRl
ERCRIS I

SRS & T §, Iof enfid 71 s T faeq & = & fau v & sifem geem HifT 7R o ® afasy
¥ 3 T W A e Se | e ShfEmt oh e o o fou, T sviafie fresr Sumh e wn @ (unfe
oRET qlEeR] SR FAf oiam TiaT o -1 R o e U weT ol qdeen (HIUST) SR e ol e & STad
TS TR &1 Ueh a8l HH g1 &1 T8 ATafier oiar-Tdar |fed) |

Tt wmaTfoer et

e AT IS foFaraa & =R07 H 2 | e a 2022-23 % @Y F IR W HA 1 HARS ISR IR
(regatR) o Hafe # St sfufem, 2013 (sfufem) &1 R 135 % TEUEl S T@d A ST SEva 2 |

AfUfa & €RT 135 &1 STEITAEHATST T T ded a8 T o] Mt & ST §, shoHT o 919 T Fifad fad
o TmfSTer ST affd 2 |

Fugitar FmT

af 2022-23 3 U AT A (W) F Gaiel &, =feh oA Ueher TRATSHT o7 101 367 61 2 3R I o 3=
TET AT ©, WS e faun 3 ey fean 2 for Yol Harer shaet & 91 Ueh Aidier FHeidT S0 OF bl ST W
Tehdl & STadeh o ST UR=TCH TR Tt BT 37X ae & 7 7T ugaie] feenfadslt gr sr=sifed 2|

frmfua srfaemas ot ufaaeT

SO T R SO 31wl bt SO | feare Tadt © | S for grasifrer SUhH fauNT, YRd §aR gRT
S SR TSI & % 3Tl o o ffie st @ feente st g qifed ©, fofad sifuemed @« ue afgaeT
ITAF-= o TG H G 8 | 721 39 Tfeide o1 Uk we 2 |
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s gafaaeT 2022-23

Tae T U faveur o nfaae
Teler =T 3R fveror ufqaes | St fa aiftier afaaeT o1 fefifia e € ot egeres ==& ®0 § of G 2|
TRt = et FRT Ui HEeyut ST S e

ol off Frermees 1 STeTrd a1 [Tt SIRT UHT ahig Hecdqul AT 319 79T Fei Wi o &, fSrert st a1 39eh AT
o T ol AT eI T 7 08 |
Tfgeeit sht Gea it gE-giaer

ST & I T - Iedie R A T | Friea ® Afeesit & A9 3aig (s, Fe iR fawo) sifufm,
2013 % 37 U’ SfidRen foreRTad afafa’ o wfad &1 7€ € | T FHHEN (ST Gfed) 39 AT & 21 et €
foTehTerat T faraRoT far R €

i, faeter 9 % SR ot feremmt @t He - I
i fadie At & e et TE ot a5 sen - 3=
iii. AT e A o STER dfad forehmat & e - N
srfrediepfaat

YT e (5 Yt |fed) ; a3 ved o g ; fam garerd & qresd ¥ uRd SR & 91 g aieey e
TWEHR T GRS % g o I Feer 39K 312 9ean &) are A v & =i |

IS IR FARIIA FHIIRYM, Il HZHIfAdT SaaH SR, faeR FAwfad, sided gfad, TR

TR i fafids, Hsued faffds, 9% dMd R el b feaeagen siiReH fdftds wd o= fafi= mfuemar
T TSITHET & Ut FRTEaT 3 Gea o AU 3ok Ufel YR Tehe i @ |

39 TR o U ST 2R IR Usidl (SASEHIN) SR kT TE Ay 07 Ferdl & 9 H Ao 31 ¢ |
AN IR & 5Ie & 39 Tl & Ao o1 I8 e ¥ Wb HT ¢ |

e fafi= T 3T ST 3FeR, TR 3R dehHich! a9t & fia? Feam oI Temdr & fau 39 ufd T8
foet T SR Tehe HTATR |

A€ fie ud g itie Hifear & faiy &9 & 79iar ud 396k Ui S9N Y il € |

SPICTRTT, Hieaidh 3R graeT & fafe= i, Stet fmr s wifq = 2, o fafat, gemert, Teo At ot srfwerat
TR HTAGHETI § ST BT QIEET 31 98T @ | a8 F2% SHIctenTar & 7 ITedl ufiged o TR Jeaq H 33 gfErsmr &
ST 1 T o T, 39 MAafee) s Seiuder e o o fu g Tl AfaEt 3R AmRent % ufd SR STed s
2|

A RS & FETEE & faw Tt TR W S0 & SHH=IRE U 37 At gRT fohd U sterer v, ufdasar, et
ed 3 AN & AU SehT T9iEr SHiar @ |

ThICTERTAT HET It ShITRYT feIlaes o
frevTeR Weer o foTu e S9ent IR
T : ShicTehTal g g
femian: 19 fadav, 2023 el



ficus gued w1 ufgacy
AT -
qMdeh e /T O

31 T, 2023 h HIG faiia a8 et

[eFOT 3ffufam, 2013 &1 GRT 92 (3) der
U (e SR TOTEE) EE, 2014 % AR 12(1) % SR H]

PEICTURCIC G ACCI
(1) drenged © U60100WB2008G0I127338
(i) dstreRaoT fafer . 99drE, 2008
(iii) T T AT . AT B2 I R fAffes
(iv) T &t 907 / 39- 2ot . ESE ST/ IRE ERT Giffd
(v) TSiichd STATe o1 a1 Ud T fqawor . PUHSNENS YA, TSR e IREw,
SIGTeRTT - 700 021
T (033) 2213-4345;
e : (033) 2213-4380
(vi) =T gt st & i
(vii) IR N TR wSle, A FE T, FTAW, 0 WS A
T 31 He faron
HUAT hT T TG Ik ShTdehely:

Tl I FTASHAT B FA FRIAR 61 10% A1 399 31 1 AeH 2 :

GRS fsTe TR | sl T AT
Bifeg, afeafsad ud waifque shufrEt s faawor ; o=
PR WEY (Fe sforaet o ufaeTe o &0 ¥ gforae! $raw gt ot faawun) :

(i) 2ofEar IR aif| . RAET W
FE WEHN (IRA & TFUf) :
e o UIRT T T STl hi EET:
e LA
frfSteret . 375,86,20,000
el SRRT T % . 100%
ElLC LRI
ToRfSTehet : 375,86,20,000
il SRT T % © 100%
af & S TREA 6 % . 0%
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KMRC affew ufaaea 2022-23

(i) TYEYET Rt graCEnar

T o W T o ofd o
HEIBUTG HEIBUTG
Pl | WU | GO PSR | PRIl | GO | el G | @ o aNe
T Foa | wufwdy  wer FA | GIAREY | SrEir
TR | RO TG | RO i
P AT % FACHT % | aREdT T %
1. | YRT & TP (a/c | 278,13,79,2000  74.00 0  |27813,79,200|  74.00 0 0
o ")
2. | 9RA & TP 97,72,40,000|  26.00 0 97,72,40,00|  26.00 0 0
(a/c 3= faepTd
AT
3. | WA & qafa 800 0 0 800 0 0 0
& AHifeRd
A |37586,20,000 100,00 = [37586,20,000|  100.00 = =

(iii) TSI R PrECTET ¥ gftad T

1 | S F e 375,86,20,000 100 375,86,20,000 100
2 | 9 & R e 0 - 0

Serefar # fafEr 3fgy

A & RO T Y

T TU ANIEER faawon

9 & 3 o 375,86,20,000 100 375,86,20,000 100

(iv) I T PrECeeht ST FIECETRAT o @ET (ST 31T TSI o FI39TeR, THIET 3T giesH o aifaiar) :

qY o U | PrETeniar a¥ o ST Hfaa graventar
Menkcal ST o el Henk:a Ut o T

. PR T % . SIIRE T %
1. N & 100 0.0001 100 0.001
2. o T S 100 0.0001 100 0.001
3. | 4 gEm fErad 100 0.0001 100 0.001
4. ot TSl Aared 100 0.0001 100 0.001
5. At g e 100 0.0001 100 0.001
6. T TTSI9T AR S 100 0.0001 100 0.001
7. ot 3Ty e 100 0.0001 100 0.001
8. ot SIS 100 0.0001 100 0.001

(ST T SRR I HAeT S AT 37 94 Al & Hler & ded YRd & (T a/c & A ©)
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fTews gued o ufagaes  KMRC

(v) TARvTeR i UG Ueierehi™ shiftichl (SRUAUT) St FIETENTar

¥ o gy § ¥ o i o TeE
FrITefiar (01.04.2022) FIITEfar (31.03.2023)

MetcIk: HUNHFA | TR, U & el
PR T % I AT %
1. | s 100 0.0001 100 0.0001

e S ST O & TR € | 9 & SR fRd off 31 T W T ek o T g IR T o

(vi) SEUTIET :
TR / AT AT, AR P o AU SR el Ffed SOl Sl FodT:

i ad & ey § SHUTIRAdT

()  HeTed - 35,70,17,34,303 - 35,70,17,34,303
(i) TS TR, R A T fora T
(iii)  SATST Mg Tifch SehTal et

& (i + i + i) - 35,70,17,34,303 - 35,70,17,34,303
farter e o g sEuTIRRT # aftad

A - 3,98,857.78 - 3,98,857.78
o)

15 uftad= - 3,98,857.78 - 3,98,857.78
fareiter o o i o SEURREar

(i) e . 3,61,52,279.94 - 3,61,52,279.94
(ii)  ATS FeRTAT, WAk A et foha T

(iii)  SATST Mg WAfeR ST Tt
e (i + i + i) : 3,61,52,279.94 - 3,61,52,279.94

VI. faRvTeRt wd g et shiften hT uTfisifhes
e feeTen, quieRferes faTeht Ud / 1 yaereh o mitsfier

Tohdl e -

() 2TFeRT A, 1961 &1 &RT 17(1) § fAfed maemt o SaR 3o . %.2,30,63,180
(@) e AR, 1961 &1 €RT 17(2) & T8d ST &1 §ed e

(1) ST ATFH, 1961 1 9RT 17(3) & Ted de o sact JAH I

ek &1 faehed NG

e gfgadt T

FHTH - AT F % & &7 H =

o oA

EXN : %.2,30,63,180
T A, 2013 o STTAR TifelT 3RS
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VIl. STHTET / T/ ST 9T

SH A T e
EEl = Ty et
ST T ¥ T Tt
@ . fregremmoT

ST RS o T
Bl = ] e
ST T K T Tt
T, Tehehdl 31T AL

SHT i T e
LEl A T e
ST I = ALY T




e e

AT STTHRTTE AT U HTclel < -T

formfirer srfergTraeT oT wfEe

frmifua SfeTE o shu=t et 39T

I SAFTTET T o & <9id o1 39T =

(%) CrEmEfy fedqemer et auT SO ST o o &wdr ot f1 o ATem § Fe -

Yoe AEEge i o # o veer ST Ter;

ACNIRERIRREEY

(@) 37 gt et 31T srrferaal # qRefelar 1Y Sagiiehdr ure e |

() WA ST o Wi ¢ & |

(=) e Sfemes § 7 §RT SepedT I -

forfie stfvroTe TR Taferd feem-feet & e iR Sef off 99 & 33 9@,
TISIeT OTferedt ot - R O ST U 3T 3 GuRt & fau

T & TR UF Z7aeR H 3= e A g1 T

faferlt ud fmt e,

N g WHIfae e Ud yomEr T |

Ty Hee :

AT

~

o~ N\

TerTTeh-||

ST AT, 2013 ST 4RT 2(45) & 37 & Ted T8 H U GRHNT HOA ¢ | I H 3R TYuT e IR Ui 3ot T

(ST FaTe) 3T ST U TRl HHeA & Haei & A1ead § R o T9ufd gRT enfid 8 | ot & enfderey 3w uhifquem
F Mfderd 124 (W) & Hef #, frevmes dea § frafafed fFeere wnfia 2

(i) YT He 3R TR e HATeR & AT § R o TP §RT A6 e |

(i) vay v |

(iii)  TofeRTfeter FSTERTT / FTefees feeTeRoT|

(iv) fe=r ament gRY MfHe fewTes (77)

(v) a3 faeere (7o) |
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afisw gfaaeT 2022-23

YRT 124 () & Teof §, IRT & TTUT 1 o1 o 1S H 3Tk 3727 Tfed 0 ATl bl THifehd i o o St aht Traferd
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OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT
Railway Production Units and Metro Railway
NKG Building (5th Floor), 14, Strand Road
Kolkata - 700 001

No. RPU & MR/KMRCL/2023-24/790 Date: 31.08.2023
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Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.  crarteren accounTanTs

Head Office : 32, Ezra Street. 4th Floor, Suite # 403, Kolkata-700001
Phone : 2235-0677 / 98310 79963

Website : www.rkkco.com

E-mail : ca.rkothari@gmail.com / rkothari@rkkco.com
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T (T T8 2 St o e o S gR g T et # aRifia e T @ | qegEn, Smee &
3T 3 (xvi) (T) AR T B2 |

(1) TAN T R T & T AT ST TR 3R st 3R SAIeRd! &l S o 3N, TR0 H I R 3 He
U (M) TR

(xvii) AT T 7 3R 2% <1 T SRR 37T TSR & AR 3R ARG S ST o SR W g S T,
1 =1 foreig o 7 31k ik et i af § o e w1 e gE 2

(xviii) THRT T B 31X 28 <1 T SN 3R THR0T o STER 3N AT o1 S o 3R R T a9 re, 35
% TR Tifaferss cRaTierent o ShIE @IS TE T T € | gt JefeR ot Tdarent o FrfeR 2% 9Ter IR o
foiarer 3T FRTeRaT Tdereh gRT a1 S 7 |

(xix) THRT I 7 37 28 &I T TN 37 THTHI0T 3R Teaehi 3R IO T 5177 o 399N 1 37a99e guerd ¢, &
I, R 3R foeir ufafeat o 3ol 3R e et o e @ snfid Gt % e R W, deuey
feramutt 2 e 311 STHeR, 3R FR9Teh Hea 3R e ATSHrelt & IR 7 g T ¢ o oRaT qie ufdaed o g
Tk 1E wfifeer SITEaa Hee Tt @ 2 ot qor 03 &1 i 7 Hise ST SelEt o QT S H Ta € 3N 5
ot I € GO T 1 TG F U 99 1 7 % ST ANl ¢ | BTlifeh, B e ¢ foh e Sl @ i gt Faerir
F AR T FE IIEA T T | T M Fed ¢ 5 T 9fEe oraadie Hfeee o R qe o qeAt | S ¢
3R B A1 I TRAT 30 € 3R T &1 IS VGG 20 ¢ o 91 F 27 BN & ol UF i aNE F U T ki 37afy
R 27 2 et Tt TAEIRAT T S gRT e e s

(xx) () T T T 37 2H < T RN 3R WEEHAT & AR 3R Ieral 1 ST o SR T g 37a9deh Toem
3T 1T foF S3uny foeier faamoit & e 22 (59) W a1 T €, S 3 e 1 I o SR W R off @ %
o e = R 2, frgent wfey &% wem T 6 e

(@) T T H 31 T < T e 3 RN o AR SR ICRa! i S % YN W A 3Evas HeT,
TAN fA1E o1 ARG ek h1g off =16 IRASH T2l ¢ | TeaR, 3RS &1 1wt 3(xx) (d) An] T&f S 2 |

T TTHAR IS TS .
G @l
T GSeRTUT . : 3201663

THUR ISR
AN
TEEIAr ¥, : 055208

JEISME : 23055208BGWCELA154
T : ShicTehTal
faqier : 03-07-2023
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TGS @l U eIeht o Ufdde et STJer ek - T
T Stfufem, 2013 (FUfTm) T URT 143 1 3T-YRT 5 & ded YNd & I3 -HeToraiiee §RT S Feer ™ Rad (eiffam)
fegn fdora

T ST & T TR WAl & HeAH H G oiEieh e o bl GEId S o foiu e § 2 =fe 5f, o faei fafeane, afe
21, % TI-T1e WAl ohl ST T STELT Tl & ST ohgiehT o oh TEEeRT & ffearef aam i gera 2 1

U feauiy

T & T SRR SR T & STTIR SR THRT S o SR W, ST e ighe ardieRyT § 319 @Al 6T T TEHEmd T
e 2 | fordey fafeared arey oft e U o el # fafeEa &S for S 2 |

BTelifer, < STAe/Sit=/f9e & g difad o UF 2@t &l 3ifay w7 39 W & 7ot fohy o € 1 3ifay w1 239 & fo difaa oy
ot T~ 1 A et RO &1 T 1 " 37ehfmes Seriat’ & &9 H oot fohar 1 2 3R foaedi faawoit & e 37 % g9er
eI fera T R |

faivar faavuit ux wame - <t fop fawiver faawor & ggeT 39 T aarar mar
fegn fder 2

T T T ST B T kT STl o HROT R F 0TI SR ST & AT HISET F0T T ShiE GTS AT ST/ 0T/
e 92 Mo/ I & & AW © A1 9212 4fe &, aF f&ie 99Td 98 GehaT € | 97 U8 HIHel! o1 dich o e e ST @ 2

U feauit

T & T SIS 3R TETH0T o AR 3R TR S o MR W, TIS[eT F01 1 18 R AT AT ST gRT 07 et ¥ Srgmefe
& HTT SO BT SO/ I FT gI/F2 WA B el & THC AGTIRIET ST STE % SN e fRT T E

fareitar faautt uT werma - =T
fewm fder s

T /T TR AT SHehT Uit J fafor drsrnedt o fow sra/ara s 2w ffeat (smem/afsgst anfe) =1 suer famt 3R
o1l o SIER 3Hd TG Y @1/ ST o1 7 41? fa=ie o "al i g a4 |

gUR feauit

TAN T 7 3R eH &1 T e 3R TETR0T o AR 3R HRT S+ % SHR W U1 &l s/ GIhT A1 $Uh! Toifga &
fafee Arsmrel & o 1 erafeT e T g8 € | wTelifer, a & SR ol TR & ded Bl TRASH & e & fag sre
3T ITedt ATt o Heerd 31T Yol Hoerd SRT ISid 19 WeradT TS ol T8 @ | 9 YehT U &R113T ohT SYANT GRESHT & TS &
T foha T 2 | ST TVT it STl ®9 § Tiafy ST § T S ¢ 3R 31fid et e ufEien 9 fiRdt v fear s
21

faaer - 312

Fd TIHAT FHISTH US .
TET SrETTer
W USIeRTUT . : 3201663

THAT IS

AR

TWSEATH. : 055208

JEISMET : 23055208BGWCEL4154

T : ShieTehTal
faqier : 03-07-2023
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THICTeRTAT e T TeT ShIGRYT fafies
31 W 2023 R goII-US

Taawor

gftEafaat
AC-FewT gt
() gufd, 9973 Td YT
(@) Ag-ysia-aE
m o afdafe

() o fa<im aREufar
() o R-adqe gReufEr
el T-gaw gfteatat
: gt
(&) fa<ie g

(i) e Ud TEe

A !
(ii) W(i)%m%ﬁmm

(iii) o= faxig oREaf=
(@) 9dAE &Y gREgtar
He AU TRt
et ftgataat
Sferet ud e

Sferet '
(&) zfoadt 9ROt
(@) o gfaadt
Sl gferaer
ERnlL
- e
(%) o Tam
() R
(i) 2 fasir o feemor afer
(@) e
(M 3 W-gdHH AT
et - Sgang
A <Fa
(&) foeie emad
(i) 3R
(i) 3 faxig Tovamd- ufeemor afer
(@) 2T 994919 <3
e FAAH I

AGTHR
T TSI G : 3201663
i T ISR
qriieR
HHA H. : 055208
FEIMETT : 23055208BGWCEL4154

A ;IR
feie : 3 9@, 2023

FLE k)

5&6

10

11

12
13

14
14.12
15
16

17
17
18

1-41

31 T 2023

4,23,206.24
8,05,58,951.58

23,01,351.16
8,79,351.22

5,72,787.90
11,29,345.85
21,98,751.35
11,870.66

39,12,755.76
8,80,75,615.97

3,75,86,200.00
7,287 .38

3,75,93,487 .38

4,85,30,288.05
3,28,721.78
7,219.36
3,43,670.05

4,92,09,899.25

8,86,678.05
2,79,960.87
1,05,590.42

12,72,229 .34
5,04,82,128.59
8,80,75,615.97

(TRTEaR &, /)
31 |7 2022

4,13,168.52
7,55,55,274 81

20,42,098.48
6,50,658.72

7,86,61,200.54

8,30,309 .25
36,98,865.20
14,25,166.37

2,203 .46

59,56,544 .29
8,46,17,744 .82

3,75,86,200.00
15.34

3,75,86,215.34

4,53,94,753.25
2,70,560.12
5,488 .44
1,62,974 .90

4,58,33,776.70

8,84,545.93
2,18,742 .74
94,464 .11

11,97,752.78
4,70,31,529.48
8,46,17,744 .82

frRyTer iew o fou @ Seht 0|
dt. . sitarea ST TR
EECAELNED freeren (fae)
ZI3TETA: 10207179 SI3TEUA: 09678873
wHten wgTaE TEIAT T T
A fawiar erfdenr AT Hfea

: AMWPB7941H

I9: AIEPG3324K



arfiss @ 2022-23

THITRTAT Hel TeT SR fefie e
31 AT, 2023 ST WHI a6 o fog

ST T BT AT farawor
(TFTEaR &, H)
feraur WA 31 TT= 2023 31 1T 2022
T
R I R - -
I A 19 8,074.70 1,284.33
et I 8,074.70 1,284.33
=T
I 7T 20 590.72 725.55
HA T 590.72 725.55
FX I A 7,483.98 558.78
I
T T - _
SR T - _
rafyr & fag e / (71f) 7,483.98 558.78
3 AUk T
3 7e 58 @y wd 71 H gdified et foRar
T=33T AT R THAT @A/ (=707) 15.1 -211.93 234.08
TSR JTS - -
ST o AT W o fora - _
I[E 3 e 3, S8 @ ar 2 & qdiiiera A2t e s -211.93 234.08
srafer & o et e o 7,272.04 792.86
ufer sfere g1 e
(1) WfT IR oo 3 - -
(2) fafgd - -
fareiter faawutt o e ggea 1-41
Her= gHR ufaae & Fgar
Fd THHUR IS U hu=t feyTen Tiee o folg @ Seht S|
TS AR
T TSR . : 3201663
Y 37X . ShISHT dr. . siaraa SYTHT TR
afieR e v freve ()
TeIA 4. : 055208 ZITETA: 10207179 ST3TET: 09678873
FEI3TET : 23055208BGWCEL4154
Hieh AgTEm AT &1 [T
TIF ;I e i st EaEiksiicE]
femter < 3 9, 2023 T: AMWPB7941H T: AIEPG3324K
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ThICTeRTAT Hel TeT Sh R fofie e

31 9T, 2023 h! GHTE Y o 1T Tehe HaTg faaur

Taawur

h.

g.

2
3
4

Uftener ferareRemt | TeRdl warg
Y T SHURT Hal ¥ [ I8 A

o fou FRIST -

3T A 3 (F=E)
IAIEH Td UReieT =7

faoft g7 # IAR-Fe|

I 3T

e/ feer & fargnt o Bt/ (em)
T goit Uftad= o gd ufarer o
EARNICRCIRITERE
Sreafey qrae F 9/ ()

3T FAHH e 7 3fs/ ()
TR-gee 2Aanst 7 9fa/ ()

371 farcirer et 3§ @i/ (3fg)
foredter aftwufat # s/ (3f8)

forciver et ® =i/ (3fig)

AN T aREafd # w4/ (37E)

TR A G TR AT . .

39T forameramt § Tehel e
o, Fo g 3T & Sl
EEQ IR Sl RCH

- aftgafe 5 wH/ (37E)

fravT fonarehemat | 915 TR TETE ...l

faritar famamenemmat & Terdt waTE
ST ST ST S T T 37

TS o 3T FeRTT § I 2T
Srefrafer ST T 31
TR YW F 0T 21T

T=IET 311 A S T HHRISH

T fraTeReiTal & TG TRET TETE e

. TTehe Ud Tehe UG ¥ 715 9fg (F + @+ )
.
s
1

e Y Y[ESTA ¥ Tehe A Tehe THIT

. @ & 3 T Tehg i Tohg WA

T 2023 ST THIE
T4 & fog

7,483.98

7,483 .98

1,730.92
11,126.31
1,80,695.16
-2,59,252.68
-7,73,584 .98
1,19,379.78
-9,667.20
-7,22,088.72

-10,037.72
-50,03,676.77
-2,28,692.50
-52,42,406.99

27,38,809.22
3,96,725.58
2,132.12
-211.93
31,37,454.99
-28,27,040.72
45,29,174 .45
17,02,133.73

(ST eI &, )
T 2022 ST THIE
T4 & fog

558.78

558.78

-2,209.55
-32,595.25
-5,78,864.75
-2,78,675.16
-11,48,761.62
68,615.63
-943 48
-19,72,875.40

-3,520.34
-57,83,848 .87
2,10,428 .98
-55,76,940.23

61,24,600.00
9,70,926.55
33,08,477 .85
-58,704 .40
234.08
1,03,45,534.08
27,95,718.45
17,33,456.00
45,29,174 .45

e vaTE faR0T T STIeTe] Ul & TR AR oA T 2 ST R S 31 IS TS ey S e gRT ST AReA SR’

(INdAS) - 7 9T Tl Ratia § Frefifia fran w2

3T T 1 @EE & a¥ & SR A T8 A (ST e Afare enhe € |
af % 3d F e 3fR T G Fehe 3N o I T 9T T

fomer o 3 STieRS oY SRt WA §, U WG a/ TR foRa T ©

fa=ivar faawutt & Gor= ggeT

el TTHAR SIS TS SHu=T
TS AGTER

T TS0 . : 3201663

Y 3 F RIBRT

qier

THd g, : 055208

TS + 23055208BGWCEL4154

T I
feater © 3 e, 2023

1-41

fRvTeR Weer o fog @ S9ent ST &
dt. &, sitarea SYTAT TIHTT
LECAREN GO v (fam)
1370 10207179 Z13TETA: 09678873
wHten wgTaE TGIAT g1 et
e i SAferenm CREIRICE]

: AMWPB7941H

9: AIEPG3324K



31 9T, 2023 h! GHTE Y o folg Sfaraet o uftad= a1 faar

arfie @@ 2022-23 KMRC

o . gfeaet graT Ui (TRTEE. W)
31 Wrd, 2023 31 WTe, 2022
faawur (AT E. ®) (AT E. ®)
ufaae rafer o Ue | 99 Tt 3,75,86,200.00 1,40,30,000.00

T4 7Y i A o FHRO Sfeael 2R S | ufadd

TAU Ufdae Srafer sl Jre et o gf-eitia o Tivr 3,75,86,200.00 | 1,40,00,000.00
37afer o SR ST TR geT 7 aftad
gfaaet Pt T =T andeT
- @ e - 61,24,600.00
- e & T 3 e - 1,74,31,600.00
ufaae srafer e i ¥ 1w Tiyr 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
. rasfaadt
(TR &, W)
frord afiv
rferg
sufaqa| Ut
faawor FIAT T ufaenfia E1p) gferaet ameRt
TN wfed TN wfa EIp) o fou et
ST gfeaet
MfEeas
1 31ieT, 2021 =Y 91T THT - - (777.52) (777.52)
ud 3rafe 3t =t % FHRoT gfEEdt SR g # uRad - - - -
ufeiere 37ty st T H AR o afer - - (777.52) (777.52)
T o o e/ (B1) -| 558.78 234.08 792.86
Tferht & & § ITERT STHAT ¥ WIfeTaht o AT -3
HEEIRE HEZE - - - -
TP AT ToHH AT - - - -
31 WTe 2022 e 9 AT -| 55878 (543.45) 15.34
ud 3mafe 3t =t % HRoT gfEEdt SR e # uRad - - - -
TAHT Widae STty et yreere ¥ gAf-eltia g whr -| 558.78 (543.45) 15.34
T o o w/ (B1) -| 7,483.98 (211.93) 7,272.04
TfeTht & & ¥ ITERT &THAT ¥ WIIeTaht o AT -3
FEEIRE HEZE - - - -
TRl o YT ST AT SRR ST AT - - - _
IRR 3TEET Yo 0T - - - -
31 |7 2023 ek 19 T -| 8,042.76 (755.38) 7,287.38
Hor gHR Ufade o FgaR
i TTHAN ISR TE U frevieh et o fog @ SRt SR
T TG R
wH USlIT §. : 3201663
T .3 hiIgHt . o sitarea YA TTHTT
arfter e T freer (=)
T . : 055208 ST 10207179 ST3TETA: 09678873
FEI3MRETT : 23055208BGWCEL4154
Tfies WETET TEAT AT [T
T HIcAR e i stferenrt CRIICEl
feier - 3 I, 2023 : AMWPB7941H 9: AIEPG3324K
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foitar faeon « 53

1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

[ERICCRS ORI

FIASTT BT YT SR fafgds (‘o) fSTEeT FeMET : U60100WB2008G0I27338 §, ST ZTIAT ShT
Afafam, 1956 % 10T 09 TeTE, 2008 T &1 TE T | 778 Uk TR &1 €, S T AT, 2013 =i
YT 2(45) (THT T SIIFRTT, 1956 ST 4RT 617) o ST & ¥ € | 7€ Uhud G 4. o1 & 3R FicAehTe
T HIARTAT ST AT FIRSR IR & {Faraa" & [ 2 | ST T ST Usiiehd 1T ShicishTal 5
AR |

fareier faawor R ST T ST

w@ieR ifaat

AT fa@wont &l ST (MR or@iehd H9e) o1, 2015 (SH-THa T FUTHENE) & 71 7 & @1ef afad
ST T, 2013 (TUFRT) ST 4RT 133 o i SRR YRAE oi@ien 7 (3 AS) & 3TIR TdaTIeH
F AR o T 2 | foree ROl B qER SR TR A o U S1ATE T oo Afet sl STaRa ] fRe
T A A ETe TafY % AU T TR gRT ST ATkt o GOleR & fau oEieR Jifeet # aftad iR
forTel fomieg & & 79TE T8 oRaien Aifal # 37 GURT &l @iea | i faawor &l weqfa st stfaf=d, 2013
T IR G HHe A 111 W 37eRa 2 |

TS o Gaer gRT ¥ HATerd o feem- st & Sram uRasmT o Fuof 1 21 W 7 fof =RoTeg, Jum W g @t
T AT-Got-h1d & et IRt § wiaRd o7 & g us AT o 7 €1 8fan, g & uw
fed <7 AR ToTe I& B o STae[g O 19T Bt Freacanedl & Sierid famman o w1 ¢ 3R 7€ e ¥
IS ferdlt off afteufer ot srrer aRga e § Teriartd 76t forar e |

ST S faeirer foraoTt Bt YR S99 H T U ST § S $ThT ST a1 o 7

@Ik URATet

fereiTeT T ) TR e, Sigd Ud ] W™ & SR W daR fohen o €, fyauge e e & 5
e R srafy &7 gifta T 3FHd Jodt T T S © | ORI A SR R AT 3 SR W E
<, Forly o Ud Qaredt & deet § fera Sar € | g uRgufta ud Jaaredt w shu i, 2013 S SgA-
113 FEdsT- 1% Frefifie St o G qReTer =g 31k 77 AHes! & 9K 9 a1 R-acd9M o &9 § Fifha
fomam 7T € | Wepfa U wighan o fow ufuftat o Stfenrent qen Fehe ST Aehe GUded 39! gl & 9 9

% YR T ST IAHH U -G qH IR U 2drai & aiiiendul o 3299 U 12 Hel ohT 3101 IR=re
e fefifia feran 2 |

ATt we futat s su=nT

TRAT TG A & STET & R0l o6l doR 3 & U Teer gRT S0, foig ud syrere s &l
YA BT 2 | T 3AM, fAvia g SveRe o AT qer it ud 2adrst S g e, snesfe gREufEr
T EOT SR faed R 3 wfeae sl A W Aarel, et o gfd TH U 37ty o SR o St e
T I S € 1 e, S us g A 2, R T g o O AT o SereRvE TR gufadt & ST
SaeRTer, feiior & <R =1 enfe wnfiet € 1 arafaes TRomT 3 SIAMT & 37T &1 FehaT ¢ | STEH H IfigdT
39 Ay & R el § yefeld ear g, fas aftad foren st €, 3 afE ufiad 2 € o 36T wum e
foeRuit o SweT H eha e ST 7 1 e, ot Uk ug A 7, 38in aiEs ¥ g gof gemafie 2
IS 3TE T TR Y AU M 2 |

1 e & T §, SR gRT THOiieRioT T ST Sl A=Yt - et ®T § g {1 T e |
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foitg faeron w537 (STRY)

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

TEeaqut o Sftfaat
T[S W=t
TISTE 1 qT ST T Gl o Tel Hoof X AT Sf1efl ¢ |

farier qREafe & ST 317 o1 U= dd o1 ST ©, ST 9% Guifad 21 foh 3ffefer oy shoet st 2% i 2
T 3T 1 TohH o (e a8er & A1 S Sear ¢ |

foreftor et & fer fifereT Shmrea i1 foght A BT o1 Bt dSiientoT o fou cifd =19 a7 < St 2
3Rt T 3T T AT R AT AG-TSIId-hTH afofd 3o o Geiferd s & e oS f&har S ¢ |

o q STCTRTCA STHT W AT SATST BT 37 o & 7 & AT S ¢ 37 Ae]-JSTa-ahrdt aifara Fofenor =
w1 feam S @ i T ST et 3 w0 77 S 2 | Ve % i O STER, adee sty % <RE T
& ST frer & Trafy ST IR ST ST 31 1 AIe- Y- STk AN % W1 GHEIS oA S 2 |

[EERIE: EUY
ShTAT ST fereiieT foreRoT SR ey 8, ST BT ShSTier HeT (YRS ¥99) o 3Tl 37 Heredt 7 oH-2F ot Tee
- 1 ARG b1 oA fafeer o3 T Rt STt 2 | weeh RO eyt a6 geifed T et geyedt # fafed vl

3YEIA T 3T G 1 TfAd X W 47 GRafdd R Sam & < fo US Ueis e Us afifse fedier gy fahan
7| R ngeH, Y W and &% w9 H RN gur § wrar @ 7, 3% O uRafdd Tet e mw

SN I AW

SR T AT St e Safemrevr, T steran e ufgufwe & Seaed ¥ 1 €, S 9 uiEnty € S et stem
T o1 3! 3237 o U d9R B H ShTth! THA O ahi STl eidl 8, 3= 3 TGt ol o | sirg fear
S 2, 39 T ek 519 F faght A v & fow g ave @R T8 S|

HATRT T
sy Y, a1 Aeharehor

frafia sei=nfat o Geer 7 wfasy fafe & o ot 67 e Med SR R @Id § o7 <71 € 9o oy 3ik
T & @I IR fora ST € | sho & O i & fAu 23 ATeH S STl Shig 31 el el ¢ |

fafryfaaat & deer §, wH=Et & o T sHHER Ty o7 A 39 Gafer Gua=/faed sef 4 32
TR e ST €, 37 Tt 5T fou U FEeT o SR R foRar ST € | wfafeed st o der sives
T FET A BT 3% YeATRA o STTIR 3ok Taferd G bt SFawor of foman S 2 |

Ieget:

T I, TR At A e (AT A T Rt 7, R s e anfaa 2§ 1 I
ST g, G, STeraT 21T e & S R fAfed swH=1at 7 sk g9a 3T T I i €,
SN Sl F e e o Aa Ud e s erafir w e 2

AT & Teier H 3TaT oh1 MR e 3 3R e ardfis godis % SR R 5 g €,
S S SfeT AT TS T TE S T Jod-0F S dRE TR eI 2 |

AT AT 9 B e AT uiaufat W e (38 =t 61 S1geR?) Tffad T8 &l Jod-19 § g eimr
AR, WA 1 311 gee o ¥ fafed S o e 3y safy o, iS5 9 g2t 2
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foita faeron w537 (STRY)

3.5

3.6

31 98€ 3T B Ted i T YAH Y Ufqeniid e ¥ qd <o S € qer ey 7 9 @i ¥ e A6t
e ST @ | 915 TSl 361 0T 3 3afe o I § P2 R BT STAN ik I ST €, SN R I IR ey
STA 37T TRETET B |

SHATETT
PR A FAT § 2 oY TF AL Y 1 7T 1 <ar g |

TS T
FAAM 7 37 3 o U AT AT W SENRA € | ST o JIAH SR 3kt 0T RAfET srafir o o am X o
AR T ST 2 |

T U qHEfT & A =] X Y GRS, A 7 55 0 Ak, Uk <Al & &0 H &1 T 2 | Afe adH= ud g
37ty o fAw et F A 1 TEAT 3 Sl (YR av-9R 3R T ALY T e 9T F ek @,
SfIRer ! U Hufd o w9 § Te A < S |

ek SO AT RIS S TE T, STAT TR & feaw hIE e AT e T 7 iR S T Ry A Y
el & ded femm TR |

ST ShT

SR ST & T AT b1 LA 371 3 ARgiehT 371 o e 3id? & 10 9T T ¥ & &7 § G Sl
2, S Uep 31afy 1§ 30 21T & 31 Ueh 91 Ueh U 31fueh a7e a1 37af¥y § Jefay § 9o aidl & | ST & qigafa
1 W T & S 2, AT Gt G @ for frehe wfaer § s o ST 2 fges fn 38 9ga
fopaT ST T 2 |

Hufs, G ST IuaHTT

T 32Vt & AT T S Fufe, o R STH0T (AR, fheeR, a1e enfe afed) Y gaq 0 H e wie
TR 3R 21 o JHGH (A(E HIE 2Y) T AR T AT T 2 | AR T AR | 01t gag, ST, it
FR 3T SAehTaTer =1 TS 7, S Sord WHUTa o 7T 27 S1faeoy o fow die d) o fS&er 2|
SIFERTEYT U IR T U T R fiT T Yeiighd T o T e |

T gRET( 1 Te= qe ot ST STa 218 JRATSHT anfoTfsesh Wate o flt d9R 81 31 Jd-Tmete = &
STAICH T 37 Hd IREUf oh! 9g= o d1G 8 UUH16 HU(al, T TUT ITHIVT o STTIR a1 ST |

3.6.1 Ugl

FTAS 116 H eI T2, I1 3TH INHA €, S U U5T €, A S fordt e 1 Hufh % 3w i vk
ffea erafy & fow wfret & aear & Feifa & & sifuer S 2 |

3.6.1.1 TH UgER o ®U H

3.7

aftguftl o7 UgT, STEi ST, Uk T3l o w0 ¥,y fafer 4 a2 w & e gufy o @iy o gait sifigdr i
AT BT T B T TR0 TE 1 2, ITAN o SRR S Ul (3RAY) AR W TR B | 3T AT,
FT AS 116 T TR 31 T IIICH HIT 5T, TRYU T Jedg o ST 2 5 it e1afer 3 <R Fiedt Yar &
YR T =TT~ oI~k & fHaeor & =77 o &0 F H1=21 & STl 2 |

AT -YSTa- ST
oA U= o1 RAET arig =6t o7 o 31efi gfiwufeat st =re-gsia-sheier &9 & g9irar 7 ¢
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it fereuil X swsa (SY)

3.8

3.9

T-UMTd-ehTeieh! fEToT o 37ef i oY Wehfd o STT&T T ST © 901 34 WS UUH 16 Tufal, Foi dqen
0T o T AT 2|

feiioT 21, Feeeh Rt BT A a1 T g qT FHT 3 <R qd-9EIee 21 Sfed gREs 3 @Y gag g off
3T T FTRT 31 T AT ol Tleni0T ek AT-JiNd-shTeich &9 H fe@mm 1 2 | 38 el -GS -
T dsfiaeg, aREdE! o ST # aREdfaal 3 STafad foraT ST | =71 Ud 37 o &9 § 3oheR § 39al ol
foreToT =72 eI YoeRaoT o e ARSI fora ST 2 | feem set TerR o TreT ST 3 THeil J19 & 39R
SO GRT A T T G THSHUT T Ui 57 G FRT S ST | T8, Fof THSiuEdT ahl TR-aedu
REUfEt % ded THeITad Mo & &7 H TiaR g6 377 3 Gesegendd & Faferd @ mn g |

o | e Tt (e )
2017-18 2,10,019.98
2018-19 4,26,944 .27
2019-20 4,59,627 .83
2020-21 2,41,115.90
2021-22 2,71,461 .28
2022-23 2,58,395.15
eI U ST ufigne

ST T S ST, 2013 F SA- # Ay @ R R SR 97 TERT 1 3TN Sk 0 SR
TN SHe o R GUfd, T 3R 3TN T G SRl € | 99 o SR @il T gREua W geg
ST T ARG TG & IR W G far T e |

et ST SFAIET SUAMT Shad fEER €

Eee] 60

TR SS9 T 31T 10
AT IYRIIT 3
HiaT a1 8
EARISRIERCTUl 5
ST oM 31X JaafesT 6

T T AT § o STAIfe St 2remefard! € 3R 39 omafe & fsver Tfehad &1 <9 2, i w aftgufy =1
TN foRT ST T G9IE1 € | TR I (Rt STelR ot Fifdalt 3R 31 Sieh! # geelid & SR0T 1AM ded
gord ¢ AT 3Tk IROTHEEY STHIAT SUANT Shad § 37 g ok B afadd & Tehd ¢ |

FIRIeS ST T HegTd el feha T 2 |

FAISTRICE STH ST SRS o IR T o S 2 5 Diefi 3a@m o SR R ot 31afey # ufieme s aran
il

T uftufaat (Hufe, T e SUSRTT) hT JeharT
Tk Nfaae S1afy & 3id § shuHT 7O HufH, T U SUHIOT il 95 ohi ST TeT T ohl THIT AT 7, T

KMRC
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foita faerol w537 (STRY)

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.12

3.13

4.0

frfeea o o foru far 3 aftgafeal § fend arg 2 21f o1 Gohd o T81 © | 4 39 Teh &1 I Hohd feidr &
TfeT T ST Yo ST STHI G ST §, TR &7 A7 1 o1 9T o7 FefRor fopam 59k (afg &g 2 |
T A A T 3 g F 3iferk, fga & A S ST A g A FH |

S eI T

37 UUE23 % AN YR AN Jg a1l ¢ & SR AN, S 2Afmgon, FHmoT 271 25 aret wauf & 3
Y WY AR W T 5 ©, IRTURE 1 AN BT ST IAI 7 | 3T SR AN b1 =19 & &9 § fAfEd e mn g

SO T IR T 90§ T ST ST HISTRIET Tor! (FMEGT) 3 TAR J 1T i Tefieer
0T gRT o1 DA ol 77 2 1 e e SUR 9T ®9 F U o uREnf e i % 3299 J 7, SIS AN
3T IYR R 3ATE F97 F 1f3fa forall off 1T 311 BT HaTery ofiento o fo 4y 2| 37efieyy 3601 o @
IR, ST G T T B o 710 ST 3 G0 03 &1 TG § 55 3 g1 o 3eho el 562 € | Tafeh,
0T T o TG g 9 T ST € 3R 39 U o T (M) % w9 ¥ g R T e

WIS, 3NTeh ek JIdTU Ue 3Teheeh aiEufwat

MAHT T 79 g e S € S st 3 O T =T 3 9Rom & &9 8 FiH < (S AT TEETe)
21 7 ToyF ¢ foF Sl o1 e o e S adT Sifae ST T ¥ U WRIRHT 3TE qIR SR thi Shekd
BT | STTeRTeh <FaraT & yeier & fufa o SN W g¥er § Ueha ol T © | STehfEehand fS/eeh! GuraHr
efioT B, 38 o faawor # wehe T o S € | ek fier uftuftE ot qe oo fafgd Tel fomar S €, 5«
T Th TRl T AT &t &1 Sl & 3% Tehe JTet A7 31T et 2 S 2 |

Floradt frewtien

.1 sferet vraw

TIUNOT 971 o) % gferadt 9o o =0 & ifieee fepam T € |
w@iehT ifa o aftadT

=] fareier o 2020-21 B SRR AT # TGfad wog § g w2 | e a 2020-21 F, 391 20
3T T 915, ferm qd-Hrer =2 # TeAiaRa o faam T o 1R A-Iimd -1 o &9 7 USiiehd fomar S|
g ¢ @i i favaeig 1Y 21fer TEfiTer SMei TS ahid! @ aaifeh st Ueh T . 01 41, 819 & A1d &I
TSI 3T T80 el @ 3R 3 $e2-a WY o 17 & 3299 T wofi o1 7 ©, 7 foF aReem % W em
THoh e o fau |

TFonfy, fae 9 2020-21 % Tk WA T oGl T TG THT YT & (e T Aeloigmiieie (C&AG) gRT &l
TE fromht & oo #, &9 9 2022-23 & AU A-g1 @aT AR & T R, e @) 9w ) s
IS AF-37 IS T |

Tufs, T Te ST (T TR % )
T H. T 31, 2023 TTe 31, 2022
Tehel SATeh 41 4,13,168.52 4,21,780.39
NE - af o SR fopam T G 21.818.23 3,533.91
Had g & e ferar T e -139.58 -13.56
TG 99 & IRH FHdl TeIg -11.640.92 -12,132.21
g Alh 4,23,206.24 4,13,168.52
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98°6627L‘T| €€°120'C ST'LLY'T | ST L9T'T 98'Sv £€°€06°C 87°186'LT | LL'€09'9E‘T koh 12p 208 b 2207 ‘pin T€
6€°0CZE‘L9 | 68°€T6'S 96°080°'TT | LL'SLL'9T | LT'TL8 | Y0 806‘ET Sy 09L‘ST | - B12koh bhab b 2202 ‘Rl TE
05" 6S - 05°65 - - - - - B12kAk Dl dh blolklbte /L Phbl /I
€€77SS°S vE YISt 8T 9EV'T | 98 €€ - €9°v18 EEST'T | - Bl2kak D) % kb
9S°£T8°T9 | 95°66E'V 62 V0.6 | T6TSY'OT | LT'T/8 | Ov €60°€T YT LOELT | - BI2koh bRl wb TZ0T ‘Wpie T
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fairar faawor o wfe femfurat ()
41.1 UG aTelt S
31 TTe, 2023 ST WU a6 o foTq T3 aTeil STHI o 98+ Ue o feferfiae aftad= fhg Te e :
(TFTER &, )
Taawar g qrelt STH FHA
1 3, 2022 1 Tl T A 1,97,396.52 1,97,396.52
EpIEE - -
G/ IR/ HIESH -
31 T, 2023 Thl ehel T8 HoI 1,97,396.52 1,97,396.52
1 30, 2022 1 T TgH 56,527.86 56,527.86
T o T eage ud IR 6,579.88 6,579.88
1t/ FIe R/ GRS W/ Hied geag™ - -
31 T, 2023 A Hiod Jeagm™ 63,107.75 63,107.75
31 T, 2023 A VG 961 0o 1,34,288.77 1,34,288.77

31 TTe, 2022 oh! WATH a8 o folt ug arelt Wi o 98 9o ¥ frfead aftad fehg e

31 T, 2022 T VG 9671 T

(TRTER &, H)

faraur g arelt T H
1 30, 2021 1 Tohel T A 1,97,396.52 1,97,396.52
Tt/ AR/ qeris -
31 T, 2022 T Gehet 987 JoI 1,97,396.52 1,97,396.52
1 31T, 2021 =T G TeagT™ 49,947.98 49,947.98
T o T geagT ud AR 6,579.88 6,579.88
HHI/ IR/ FHESH W G g - -
31 T, 2022 T Hied Teag 56,527.86 56,527.86

1,40,868.66

1,40,868.66

4.1.2 Iof W el S H HeTeRioT Ud dael LI, SHIceRTar o TRASHT THIfd Tl & JHamH o fd 10, & g TXOT, ST

feord ST T A o 32T F SotehTl o IR R ST YA 547 123,00 SRS IMHA T |

4.1.3 A % goF H Uf¥=H S TER SRT STl 7l 3o ShianeM fAffds &l iea oieh 7 3FH ghesl o TR T T 1T
38.5 UhS YIS &1 AN NIt Tel ¢ SRiifeh Shact ST o o7 AR fear mn 2 |

4.1.4 9% A Gufaar § o afq 7 g5 |

4.1.5 U9 S & fAU ST 51 T STAR Ind AS-116 & TR - 31 &1 ST & ST 8, i T3eR FUARET
I U2 T IR T & U Al W THE ®Y F el 3@ ugfa § qRfiyer ugt O o giene o1 oo e T,
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fareirr farautt ot e (S)
P S (TP EER &, )
WA . T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
Hrer digegegdl ¥ Hafud =g
Tafaer frdmr ==
TfAads asaT 31,41,004.38 31,38,523.86
WM 9 ud fesTgT 31,01,174.70 30,88,554.58
feTe I - il -1 2,03,04,977.19 1,97,72,913.85
feTe G - il -2 1,93,57,390.99 1,88,34,035.53
oot e fedr 17.39.666.76 17,16,410.15
o & 21,51,208.41 19,89,410.49
GOT I~ H=Tel oTed! 9,50,178.65 7,56,754.33
ET TATEROT fRIE0T Tl 11,55,506.22 7,71,726.56
9T § Ug U 20,08,517.41 16,86,643.85
U SI- e THIeh Fefl fed ey 276.86 276.86
JUFSAUA- 3T AR it g 75.303.69 74,539.64
forege amfef 34,17,263.96 33,84,581.08
Tohd U4 TAX 31,71,197.10 23,32,413.39
qfeT i 99,46,965.93 90,70,867.49
A fohdm G3E qoTredl 3,20,337.58 2,39,141.71
TAIfAT T1E hTe RSt 7i 6,168.83 2,216.95
feTre T Tehcied 6,36,895.85 3,32,492.72
IR ThH SR/TIahE Shi TS 4,89,639.73 4,20,527.87
T &I JedTeh 20,276.10 19,498.93
ol @R 7efa 3,40,019.57 2,35,716.98
IR U W@ & I gwae &l Smgfd 85,447.47 92,226.97
29.857.18 17,645.74
2T Yo @ i - 65,690.12
31 SAHfTeR 26,315.60 30,312.96
Tyt e
T TeATeh 53,05,958.19 49,16,631.92
T HARHR 1,71,375.53 1,71,375.53
3T 70.906.76 50,149.02
7.80.23.830.62 7,32,11,279.02
Td - gftErer & st e (devt 3w) 6 25,35,120.96 23,43,995.73
8,05,58,951.58 7,55,55,274.81
5.1 JheRT T U MfSengsrer M iR afaemor fer | S ST &1 9 & SR Gefid Anmd hE oGS @19 & qed
QNS fopam T R |
5.2 Y| TN, UY=H ST TR 3T Il Hel 3T HOReM e (FunsiRdiue), & & fadis 27.10.2008 & FHEldr
FIT o WS 10.4 & TTIR UFH e THR hUHSTRETA Sl TRASH o hE=EaE o [ ued T4t w4 a3, e
3T T BT 3 AT U S | FEgHR, Afee S TR gRT gffcl/affd dr Y (32 1T 78 .26 HAIE) FEmmeT
TR T A X A BT A T e
5.3 019, 2017 ¥ SNOHI AN 8 & a2 4, 2022 T o 1Y & AT THSiuadl (57 #1et ud Tar a67) 1 afegfe & 3299
A% 160.92 FAIT B T T WS S WRHT I T FAT T R | Fre A 202223 o T T <rar T 25 .84 TR
TP 7 21.00 T ST A TR | Wwwmﬁﬁwm@?mﬁﬂéﬁmﬁﬁﬁm@qwﬁﬁ
GREafeEt T AT & ded FHENS e T 2 3R TR-adAM 31 famii afEufat & w0 & STehT T&r 11 € | I B aTel
UHSTUEST 21 T TGN <IRT 39 bR 8- a7 99-2017-18 - ¥.21.00 s, faw 99~ 2018-19 - ¥.42.69 FIs, fam 71~
2019-20 -¥.45.96 IS & fd 9 20-21 - ¥. 24.11 T, fad 9 21-22- ¥.27.14 g, fad av 22-23 -%.25.84 FS |
5.4 - TSI~ i H aREAS & S o & T oIk TevEE % e 7 R 0w onfie €, e A g

HEH, 2020 W OMF Ge & feaq AT IeTd, IR 61 TiaT 721 € 31T 38eh efel 7 37 A2 Y R AT/l 0T & |
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Taritar farawott o2 ggeT (SY)

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

I uftene & (eifad meeT)

ECE R

o)

IYR AT 6.1
SHEFRT AT I 21.1
TG T qReNe 21
deh TR

o= =1

5T # IAR-=gE AN
LT TF IO TR
3T TR g
el o o fou 3Ty

T3 1wl

Sp)
Hafy SH | A 6.2
T

AT 3 Fomedl A A FI 3T 6.3
T shast § ferem

ECCRIEIEIN

fafaer xSt &t faet

SR ATHT T =TS

afqyfd ST o SIS

I : TR o 3T 37T 37

I T4 IR o Teega e # ofafa

TA Y & SN SUN AFd § T ¢

S 2 32T
Sl

(T e’ ®. #)
31-3-23  9¥2022-23 & 31-3-22 4@€2021-22 &
®m IR EASE/ EOMR- e I
et fereta=
36,26,955.92  3,70,001.70 32,56,954.22  3,05,075.26
7,80,259.82  1,11,321.67 6,68,938.15 1,08,341.77
1,33,362.79 11,640.92  1,21,721.87 12,132.22
15,351.02 346.03 15,004 .99 440 .67
47,361.31 1,089.77 46,271.54 485 .48
-7,50,729.30 -2,32,334.78 -5,18,394.52 -21,94,612.02
78,466.96 20,963 .96 57,503.01 19,620.62
8,03,314.04  1,55,313.04 6,48,001.00 2,20,002.64
2,01,972.27 - 2,01,972.27 192.78
50,000.00  50,000.00
49,86,314.83 4,88,342.31 44,97,972.52 -15,28,320.58
24,04,925.09  2,94,705.76 21,10,219.33 95,721 .56
6,481.02 1,448 57 5,032.45 7.51
3,190.91 180.84 3,010.07 1,574.51
1,234.72 -157.68 1,392.40 1,033.68
480.00 - 480.00 -
12,533.98 56.90 12,477.08 110.20
18,258.00 - 18,258.00 -
4,090.15 982 .68 3,107 .47 878.74
24,51,193.87 2,97,217.08 21,53,976.79 99,326.20
25,35,120.96  1,91,125.23  23,43,995.73 (16,27,646.78)
TSI Y. el 31,2023  WTE 31, 2022
3,70,001.70  3,05,075.26
3,70,001.70  3,05,075.26

ST 31 b1 GHES far T @ difer faeia af 2022-23 & foIu UHeiayE @Y @iq W shdet ar&dfaeh e <17 3 31
T o7 S 9eF | 999 F Tect ford MU 991 W 1St geft ATl Y Shaet U ST SRl IS R o fod FemEfed famer

TR

o1 ot iTTefier S1aier =1 3Tae o 3oheR T 99 fohar T &R |

e, TUUT FURSRECS ST 3R T I 2 el € 3N TeeF o I e o § SaN-Tg| § Siot SUae Tet € | S
o et <F T R feih 31.03.2023 Tl SAREISE i FHA T & IR I3 HaT H IAR-=H &4 ¥ 23,23,34,779
(fair o 2021-22 H 7€ ¥ 2,19,46,12,019 &) < {1 T




gfis @ 2022-23
et feraott ot gge (W)
7.0 o fa~iry uftdutaar (TSR E. H)
ST . T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
HAT-gamTT
wfersgfa Tfea, faenfa amt
fqyfd ST 7.1 19,661.22 18,864.72
7. TR T e 4 5.2 4,13,843.69 4,13,843.69
7.8, W Y U UHSugd] 5.3 18,67,564.41 16,09,169.26
31 et 281.84 220.82
=gl 23,01,351.16 20,42,098 .49
Ch e
ufayfe fed, fo=mfia wr
T STHT IR 01 =TT = =
3T AT
I A/ TS 322.70 265.62
grafy ST (ISt =t Ffed) 7.2 21,98,428.66 14,24,900.75
S 21,98,751.35 14,25,166.37
el HUT TS AT 45,00,102.51 34,67,264.85
7.1 TR ST R AT e SR gt ST Jaret o o G 7 SR SR AferRifen anT W o 7 S afer 7 1 3w

I O 329 & foIU AfAfter 375w WiaT i BT SUAN XA o AT R IcAHTAT T I hT & T S ARy off 9nfie 2

7.2 & T 0 F HROT G SR B S T Al & O U doher (MEAET A dEun S & faerd wve § 39
RIS % U1 5.74 SIS o1 Frare S et @ w e |
8.0 = uftHufaar
ST . T 31, 2023 Tl 31, 2023
Hr-gaurT
wfersfer, faanfa ane
ST 3T
JoheRt &t fim 8.1 3,24,706.29 1,60,814 .49
ST HareT & fou T et 1 8.2 1,89,147.82 1,10,096.03
JfH7 TR0 o U 1M e 8.3 3,30,177.77 3,30,177.77
et gt ST 8,44,031.88 6,01,088.29
TSit 31fm o sfafed =1fim
TS MfereRon & 9
3T HY 8.4 35,249.78 49,500.87
[aT Y 69.56 69.56
35,319.34 49,570.43
S 8,79,351.00 6,50,659.00
8.1 dhaRI el fUw 31 T 2023 31 T 2023
Amee AT 2,96,573.10 1,60,814.49
S 2,96,573.10 1,60,814.49

8.1.1 3T I Il & STIHR U T e 1 J3hert § e faxter e TRAT & e ¥ 78 e ¥ e
8.1.2 IheRl &I fGU T 3= M % 2,81,33,188 +ff Nt €, S Ao fqretey Spmg e fafide (g ugengua) &1 e i

8.2

8.3

T g AT, TR QAT 919 % STIER UfeHH Se GRRR FRI Uil o S o, f ang & ufeem st wenr 7 foe
SHRUT FAIT STEIHR o3 T 7| . THAT, HHH THATZUA ol AT ATTH < o foIT ST 7 o7 | T, Teh ST fa1g 30 g3t
SN I H A THSTEUe o Ta1 H ey (i & faeh Uk STiel AT shelohel 3= <A & ey wifed § | Se 37l
¥, Tgd THSEuS ¥ o o & § 7 AT f 9N 2 | SfEd G 16.03.2022 1 8 ot 31 e 319 ek Goagm T 2 |
ST Jarelt o forw &6 7 G i ot ave & QR € iifer G Od Yo anife SRt SRR Uit Sh o foRer e 2
3R T T B R AT S 3T FEE W IS R S|

ST & o fafi T o i sifemrent o fou e, ufver Se SRy e R e S deed G € 3R 39 uf &6
AferrEvT 37eft ek FUASTREITSA T FaT TiaT 71 2 | ot 3 femieh & 13.10.2017 & 0 & Weq q §2-3% A1 & WEor &
W%W?gﬂ&ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ?@ﬁiﬂ@%ﬁqq@qwmwﬁa@frﬁf?ﬁm%,m{&raﬁalqsqdﬂl%’réww
e 39 it 2 |
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Tareirar farautt ot gueT (S)
8.4 ATTH A T HT 99 IR Todieh : FfRor A & 37 i At ofiR fade W ST Y A o AT H U ®
frefror o ot J faarg oX ol
MRt | ToRam T smaeRtT
f1.3. 2013-14 18,640.79 - 18,640.79
f7.3. 2014-15 16,559.57 49 .43 16,608.99
Sl 35,200.36 49.43 35,249.78
8.4.1 FrefRoT a 2013-14 31 2014-15 % U &IRT 250 T Ted WML (W) H MR et & WA fovan ST JohT @ 3R 3qem
-y eferd B
9.0 WEWW ('{T&TWF'&)
T . 31 W, 2023 31 9T, 2022
el 7 91T
=Tref @l 5,72,787.90 8,30,309.25
el 5,72,787.90 8,30,309.25
10.0 I IR F 9w
WA . 31 W, 2023 31 WTe, 2022
T AR T O
rafiy ST (TRTeEdr 12 FeH 3 37k Te) 11,02,772.29 36,76,441.28
e W IS AT 26,573.56 22,423.93
HA 11,29,345.85 36,98,865.20

10.1
10.2

11.0

12.0

TrEfe ST AR 9T Y ek TR S I o fau Son & o ARt W@ T 5.1 g skl ST i 9 2
T ST H % 9.94 UG T S YN € SN W& TRIHe 37l § Ueet ot 37afi 7 2, ol g foei af & goifaa

®Y Y GRS fa T e |

AR R R

ST .

T aiEaT
B T T Fard

>

Sfadt e o

Tferepa PraT gft
Fforet vrav gt
3,75,86,20,000 (1,40,30,00,000)
Ffeadl PR £.10 /- TS

it sifresr we qut geem
3,75,86,20,000 (37,58,62,000)
3faadl IR £.10 /- TF

ST H.

31 W=, 2023 31 Wr=t, 2022
11,870.66 2,203.46
11,870.66 2,203.46

31 T, 2023 31 Wr=t, 2022

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00




arfie crar 2022-23 KMRC

Taritar feraott oT gy (SY)

121 3feadt g @ R faw / sifusr

ST 3 T e ue 97t o gferadt 9vR €, frgent sifehd gog . 10 U 91R 71 2feradt IR o1y Re fd IR Uw
AT T THER ¢ | ST o TRGATT 1 Rdfq 7, 3fEadt 9PRt % uN Gafud SrReRe! 51T W@ T 3t SRt @ g
o AT § S ol R off 91T aREf w1 W S o geher el

12.2 WfaeT 6 o WRF e 37 7 FISRT St HEAT Ud TeRTaT T1IT AT WIHSET

faawur 31 WTH, 2023 T 31 WTH, 2022 T

. stret S g SRt T . wfer et of
ufaae 3rafir o T ¥ 91w 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,200.00 | 1,40,30,00,000 | 1,40,30,000.00
37y 3 IR 3 R ST 7

qfRadd - Sfaadt SRRt &1 T e

-- F&¢ & fau 61,24,60,000 |  61,24,600.00
-~ e o STAET 3T fereAmTef 1,74,31,60,000 |  1,74,31,600.00
wftae Srafer sht QU UTHY | 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,200.00 |  3,75,86,20,000 | 3,75,86,200.00

12.3 e wfagre (5%) Sfaaet grait U eifereh o $IaT aent <At faawur

SIILEITehT ohT AT 31 WT=r, 2023 <Rt 31 W, 2023 AT

I T, % LTUT I T % EITUT
I T & SIRT
IR & A 2,78,13,79,200 74.00% 2,78,13,79,200 74 .00%
AT U ITeT HTHeT o HATeH &
e § R & gt 97,72,40,000 26.00% 97,72,40,000 26.00%

12.4 WHEIT ohT BIfeeT et faawur

THIST T T 9 =t yreea ad T A H % H o ET
ofad
VRIS E. | FAYERT | FEA I G, | ool T
Wo/c WO/O
IR o TPfd (A HATe) 2,78,13,79,200 74.00% |2,78,13,79,200 |  74.00% 0.00%
IRA o PR (STETEE Td 9Tes
faehT TAT) 97,72,40,000 26.00% | 97,72,40,000 |  26.00% 0.00%
IR o AT & T 800 0.00% 800 0.00% 0.00%
12.5 5 TSl okl @Y o fotw, gorT o=t ufaae fafer & foek weer
(%) ehre T I AT U 51 O e T A o ®Y § SEfIT SR S e T S gt I
(@) 9 IR & A F ol e & w9 H EfId o T 3R IRRT 6 9t e
(M) AT @I T IR F FA AT AR Fo7 NR

[N
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Tereier faravott oX ggeT (SHT)
13.0 T gfaaet

T H.
®)  FIET AT THT wfae smae 13.2
3ife o (FA-)
W) i ud vy
e -
TRfYe o
e Tl & A
Har ; digegemedl ol Sakd x 13.1
sifem o (Fa-T)
M) I AUk T
TRfYe
ST o TR &Y ST & gHT 9§
3ifem 9 (Fe - M)
T T GHIRT | I (T + T +T)

(g &, ®)
31 W=, 2023 31 W=, 2022
558.78 =
7,483.98 558.78
8,042.76 558.78
-543.45 -777.52
-211.93 234.08
-755.38 -543.45
7,287.38 15.34

13.1 99 % SR ST 3 (@ 20-21 % fU %.217,82,05,388/-, 99 19-20 & foU %.236,92,20,200/- 3 fizet auf & fouw
¥.-19,10,14,813/~ 1) T~ GeiTe-ehrel (Wre e emédt) § wRiaRa s & @ S et oy 3ik 2if @ § et forg Mo
| YEEE &I T % SR, ik HUANRES U THIE 2, T R T e wd drearendd ¥ wafuq €, gafe

T ToRT o B 7 <51 3719/577 319 Ugseg eyt § THiaid fh m |

13.2. 9TET SIS TIHT Wi arae
IR STEe YT § &g o 9 Miftem wnfier 767 2

13 3 FIET SMae TIT wifaa e # qftad= et fuema
faawur T H.
FRIT ST YT i smaes
gferae S7afir o JRe § 91

ufaded a7y & 3iq & 9
14.0 U
STA .
AT-FaarT
smfaegfa
IS FEfer =T (SI2EG) 1419 14.9
IRA AN F ST o 0T 14.10 ¥ 1411

76

(TSI &, W)
31 W, 2023 31 W=, 2022
(TRTEATE. |)
31 Wrs, 2023 31 Wrst, 2023

3,52,13,913.95

3,48,17,188.37

1,33,16,374.10

1,05,77,564 .88

4,85,30,288.05

4,53,94,753.25




arffss @ 2022-23

aiter faawutt ot ggeT (SImY)

14.1

S ST hl- TR TG (SIAEHT) ¥ IR H STIEHAHS [Fehrd & foTu FeaiT e & o fu wRa o auafa
T 7T Ueh FHEIT el & | UHT &1 Ueh T&dTd TfY= set T H ShictenTdl # 52 9% Ha) Ui o1 femr o, afss o8
T TR AT T ATt TR JUTEA BT IR Shieh ShictenTal B uifee & ¥ FTA@Id el dgdl i ohl qR7 foham < Fe 3%
T YR Jftheh STH o1 GHEAT U gl HIeT aledl &1 Iote § &1 78 WGVl ohl v ohich 419 SMfeieh faehr aht sear e
ITEd T UE BTedl TTEReT § R A ST e |

SISTELIT K0T TUY TR H0T 2 N 9=k KT GUgd gRT guefd € S H07 % i R vt o7 faewor 3 2

STSMEHT 07 Uk SEEfY et 2faed € 31 3 Ind AS-32 & 3TER faei faawor & afenfyd amma w faar s 2

14.2 SSEYT g7 1 39T § Wigpel 01T b1 foegd 00T, S UFN R
14.2 SIMSHT FT Y 2o § Tlegha KU a7 faeqa faawur, Ta s e
ferawur TuSt St Tiepa TYT T T 29T EIE] ST T
e (YT oIrE AT ) EJicey U S UfaaEar
T
0T @l 192 10-03-2008 64,370.00 [Eeiukcapicp) 1.20%
T @I 1920 qreh! TSt 0.01% 0.01%
TR e 0T
64,370.00
0T @l 207 31-03-2010 2,34,020.00 [Eeiukcapicp) 1.40% 0.01%
T @I 2070 qreh! RSt 0.01%
2,34,020.00
0T Wl 263 28-09-2018 2,59,030.00 [Eeiukcapicp) 1.20% 0.01%
T @I 2630 qreh! TSt 0.01%
2,59,030.00
0T @l 295 25-03-2021 90,910.00 [Eeiukcapicp) 1.15% 0.01%
T @I 2950 qreh! TSt 0.01%
90,910.00
6,48,330.00
14.3 VMEUIT T URUeAT NS 39 YT &

(T g ®. #)
faazur 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 % AT
BEIECIE

- 0T T 192 3,11,688.00 3,11,688.00 40,51,944.00

- 0T @l 207 11,09,726.00 11,09,726.00 1,66,45,890.00

Sl 14,21,414.00 14,21,414.00 2,06,97,834.00

14.4 3 07 QU 1 ARG T 10 99 1 34 F AU 2 | Gorer o1 AT T ot 21l % 91e IE S g ST o 7

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

20 I &1 37afer ® O /e T I foram SQrT | STee ST 9T o S9N %0 ¥ .192 o JaAe &1 [T 74, 2018 ¥
I G T TE HOT ., 207 1 IEAT A, 2020 T 21T | T F. T [T 263 TF H07 . 295 FHIT: fGeeR 2028 37N
A 2031 F I BT |

IRA TR & Shdlek 3h UE Ueh3ay Ug e (TUUn) SR &S, Yo i fohsd! a1 377 Jehml l Hal UeH i ST
2| S B Y S Y ST orEr-afeat # qe R, A S ¥ A @t A S afede 76 fe

ifer HUUT SR 3Ge:T T WS ol STt € | ST ol A9M |, et 3 oigr-afgalt & sreran i1 W 2% i Gy aek afaea

3ok 7 F o e Tl R, wﬁwmﬁﬁwmw%ﬁwﬁwwﬁm%wwaﬁ

T FE AT A

T TEET-207 o Tod AT T HE 2018 T AIE A A1 T € | U T AR 2 foR I F0T 6 HfaaRor vE, 2018

1T TE R T ], SAT H0T o e WfaTadl ook o o [T WA i Savashel 76 ¢ |

FERTAT STAEHT FT T FeA T SR R-Fe T § S 1 T2 2 | Iedu SMEH F07 By Geiferd Fo1 THeftr ot grRene

TG T FER oH-T5 o1 TG F Ueh a & e b1 7gt el & SR o 4R f&har T 2 |

STeTEdT o7 W Al a7 # IAR-=g[E-Hiuue gR gf¥ & T8 & W qad-UF &I aRE & 9Rad g8 § [faed e

TR 31 T, 2023 T IRAT Ko der & Fefda o7 W i FUa0r @ 0.6180 ¢ | 3T AS-32 % IR el gEr §

IAR-TIGT T AH-2I @1t & qoR e 7 2 |
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faitar faawon o2 gy (SY)
faawor 31.3.23 T 31.3.23 I KUT | SR UT eyl | 31.3.23 i HUT
T (A7) (ITETHIN) 5T o IAR- (JTETFN)
SrgaTed &t wela =T sraTea
0T Gl 192 46,75,320.00 29,19,305.50 29,957.74 28,89,347.76
0T @I 207 1,88,65,342.00 1,17,75,760.35 1,16,978.99 | 1,16,58,781.35
0T T 263 2,58,26,535.42 1,60,71,852.99 1,11,054.10 | 1,59,60,798.89
0T @I 295 90,48,000.00 55,66,007.95 -25,656.05 55,91,664.00
5,84,15,197 .42 3,63,32,926.78 2,32,334.78 | 3,61,00,592.00

149  WSMSHIT 7T T faawur
farawur TR oY | adeh 3 | aderaio | faesiigars|  siffmow
SRIEE) g | SAR-deE | (SMEUASN)
AU 3,57,01,734.30| 3,36,192.00 | 1,69,669.00| 2,32,334.78 |3,61,00,592.00
SIS Mgl TS THTAT -| 3,70,001.70 | 3,70,001.70 - -
fereTg el STeeh SehTT 51,687.94 - - - 51,687.94
3,57,53,422.24| 7,06,193.70 | 5,39,670.70| 2,32,334.78 | 3,61,52,279.94

14.10 3Tef=eer HUT

I HATT (THRATAR) TT STETHA U 9l HHa & HAe (THITE0) qdH G THI2R 89 & A1 3% 9fe=e sme
TR (TRATSHT o Jaad! Ggad THeY) = IRASHT & fdu e &Y, S Ud 31 Hafid eimd = 21 & fag st
T TST God ST 0T YT foan 7 | 3 O ot G STqgeT qe 3T fmt ud 91 @y a1t ek IR ud a7 et
T T € | RS 3 fou o g amafi Fo7 S1efid SIS § ur H07 & YA % qeed ITedl ey Harem ¥
T 0T 9 2021 F 2025 T R TR AT 2 |

AT 1 9T 37T 3afyr # 1Y Y 2 gu, 0T Ufdeiias A R ffed R T € | 3k ST s etk
Y B SIS & W RN FT & A1 1 G S % &9 J=a 1 S W e |

14.11

15.0

SN o ki ITferT 2022-23 2021-22
STIT] 0T — ST Ud STed HIa! o HAled o SIRG
IR THR 14.7 1,710,700,00 17,10,700.00
STITEY 0T — ¥ AT o SIRT YR AR 48,68,900.00 48,68,900.00
g Fafy =0 (Sdn) / 9
faxT T SR AT o T SIS 07 T AT 59,00,778.97 46,91,943 .21
I o A — ¥ He 2,36,25,082.38 2,06,25,082.38
T
3L o foAu Yot HATer & T8t ot urd 2,27,89,087.24 | -2,13,19,060.71
13,316,374.10 1,05,77,564.88
14.12 T-gdw fasia dgamnd WA H. T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
afeqyfd ST ud ufaemor afer 17.1 3,28,721.78 2,70,560.12
3,28,721.78 2,70,560.12
PICBIES WA, T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
FHAR o & forg araee
T o foaa waem 3,419.40 2,705.25
STFEHTIT I & foaa wraer 3,799.96 2,783.19
7,219.36 5,488 .44
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faier faaort ut g (STY)

arfife @rwr 2022-23 KMRC

15.1 ST SRR TR & SR T 310 T S & T =T oo 3R STaehTeT 30 oY i e T g Tt 2 |

(iv)

TRTIRE Te FTT
() aRwIfe oy eI o URfe 3 GHOA 91 6T fHel

Taawur
T & veaNd # aRifid oy St
FAAM TT AT
ST AT
dHiferer (ar)/21H

AT A
e famm 9 & AT gamEsH
T o 3T T OIRCATI o e

(i) o9 % SR TEEM ol T2 &

faawor
T faawor &
AT HaT AT
ST AT
el AT
A T 3 |
dHifRen (A14)/210
g & AT ar 9 o fo 9T (31r) /5

(i) TR &1 <Ifred o YRfYeR 37 A1 91 & el

Taaur
T ! I[ERAT H aRIf Ay e
AT HaT AT
TS AT
dHifRen (A14)/810

AT T
et faam 9 & fau garsHx
T o 3 T GRCATRe oy S

T o SN TeH i TS o

Taazur
T faewur &
FAAM T AT
SIS AT
el AT
I AF I H
dHiferer (aT)/21H
3TTE # A=A ur a9 o o 9T (31) /=

* T AR Ty At o fw e e et § FHrESE - 29 T2 SR STEenteT 309 2021-22 T HaEfd @
3R 7T o el g 9 2021-22 3 SR A U T &1 o7 vepfa & 2

TJeget (Srfawaifa)

31 AT, 2023 31 HT=, 2022

26,83,749.00 31,94,393.00
3,08,253.00 2,61,928.00
1,93,966.00 1,88,027.00
2,11,934.00 2,34,075.00

- -11,94,674.00

21,499.00 -

34,19,401.00 26,83,749.00
et (arfammife)

31 T, 2023 31 W, 2022
3,08,253.00 2,61,928.00
1,93,966.00 1,88,027.00
5,02,219.00 4,49,955.00
2,11,934.00 -2,34,075.00
2,11,934.00 -2,34,075.00

TSHTYT da=T (Srfa=aTET)

31 T, 2023 31 9T, 2022

32,03,090.00 45,03,594.00
2,65,222.00 2,38,086.00
1,99,554.00 3,26,060.00
5,51,995.00 -18,64,650.00

-4,19,903.00 -
37,99,958.00 32,03,090.00
STESRTYT I (SAfaarfee)

31 OTe, 2023 31 T, 2022
2,65,222.00 2,38,086.00
1,99,554.00 3,26,060.00

4,64,776.00 5,64,146.00
5,51,995.00 -18,64,650.00

10,16,771.00 -13,00,504 .00
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faitar faautt ot 3per (V)
16.0 3T T-qAW TTad
IS gt o fu =R <
- & 3T 3R A I T IR

- [T 3TN 37X Y 3TN ok ST 3T TR T STl

T .

T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
3,43,670.05 1,62,974.90
3,43,670.05 1,62,974.90

31.03.23 T Y&, Y 3 T e (THUHURE) o1 < YT R ShiE TSt o SaTell et €
31 19, 2023 3R 31 W, 2022 T T TU 70 & AT SR 37 AT FR07 ST SY IR @

faawor A St e fafer @ frefafea safuat & foe e
YT | 1 FHT | 1-299 | 2-399| 399 W R
THUHTHE T ST
3 3,33,132.71 | 3,911.52 | 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
HA - 3,33,132.71 | 3,911.52 | 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
faawor T okt e fafer @ frafafaa safuat o foag aemmn
TR | 1o dwT | 1-299 | 2-399 |39 W fuem et
THUHTHE T ST
3 1,54,818.03 | 2,750.78 - 5,406.09 | 1,62,974.90
HA - | 1,54,818.03 | 2,750.78 - 5,406.09 | 1,62,974.90
17.0 fa<i dgamd WA Y. T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
ERbiE)
e .
SO LI SO Tordl I %07
IR TR o A ¥ (SIEHT) 14.1t0 14.9 8,86,678.05 8,84,545.93
gferfe ST ue wfqemor afer 17.1 2,79,960.87 2,18,742.74
11,66,638.92 11,03,288.67

17.1 ST gRT ek TE Wiyl ST 3R ferReT AfeT T 3 eifded Stafy g € IR S S &1 St € | ek T UHT ey e
3T TfTfeT STHT BT A U TR-aea H a7 qoi 09 31 dE & Uk (1) T o ick A1 3G a1 39 N i o <Al
37l 3 B T G % YeeH 3 3FIHA h SR W R A 2 |

18.0 7= fawite a=amd
T .
ST ey 3
7 o fu <Fa
Hifqferen sehmr
STHT ST 1T
SI3TEHIT T R Afdasdr e

19.0 3T 3T
STFEH AT W AT

SIA .

14.5

STA .

Tl 31, 2023 Tl 31, 2022
6,616.14 6,517.17
153.97 7,878.00
39,677.66 24,645 .40
7,454.72 3,735.60
51,687.94 51,687.94
1,05,590.42 94,464.11
T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
8,074.70 1,284.33
8,074.70 1,284.33




FIf¥ss @ 2022-23

fa=iter faawutt ut ggeT (S

20.0 I T WA Y. T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
9T 937 1w 41.30 241.90
TRGT TR T A
Hifaferer orar gdem 237.42 166.65
AR oRaT gde 300.00 305.00
T oIl T 12.00 12.00
HA 590.72 725.55

TES 21.1 : RSN o1 &I WA Y. T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
I T 3T A% 1,07,319.01 1,05,504.79
ufgey fafer o fiear o1 3fveH 1,196.78 1,362.44
FHHET ST 2,805.88 1,474 .54

1,11,321.67 1,08,341.77

* feier 01.04.21 ¥ 31.03.22 T 90 37N 3777 o9 %.2203 .83 TSIV FSTGH TAHTYT S IHA & 37T T 9EH . 4527.96
TR ST Y1 & Hafergr/afafrge o=l & gafed € |

A 21.2 : AT WA Y. T 31, 2023 T 31, 2022
PHICIECRCIuG

R Rt Teeh 19,060.30 17,838.44

EEaeD 764.96 1,030.89

A U9 Tg-TEd 1,086.78 1,627.20

RIEIRCICIEE] 3,073.09 1,192 35

WU T 190.95 2.50

et Yeeh 11,205.98 7,007 .25

IEEKIRED 1,957.41 1,946 .65

TR o 27.97 219 .64

WY U @A e 37,556.60 1,153.17

fafay =17 10,074.10 5,428.33

EEURCEEN BN 1,223.41 785.20

TR A TR TS 120.47 21.40

FAE $I a0T Ik 1,018.34 1,444.30

1T QT 71 67,952.67 1,80,305 .32

1,55,313.04 2,20,002.64
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82

foxitar foerol W sPeT (SR

22.

shuAT srfufEm, 2013 St SITEET 11 R e ifafta faframmes g

STl HUfe & e faerE ot faaur shu=t o T aT T8 2|

LGERER:T
TG {TTeh A8
g

Huf< <kt
T AT
Taawur

el a5
eI

@i faera
T AT

T e faera
ek THIET,
freyrer T UHEy
Ry & fivaer
o1 yey/ e
F i

Tt fra T
A g

SHU o ST &t
I RT ST

uf, g4 ud

[N

1,97,396.52

T

fa=ig a9 2012-
13 ¥ 3yl T

ST A fH T 30 AW
@1 2l & fau e
W AR | ST g
9 9 T USiichd
H S A H T |

uf, ¥4 ud

ot =it
et +gfH

75,480.57

i af 2008-
09 T 34 Jh

1488 T WY fHy T
L ENE R ERID R
1733 7 WX fy o7
mj‘%ﬁ?@ﬁ%&ﬁfﬁ
HHe R & 3t
AT T | R
& FateT e §
wguadr ge (fafae)
36172/2013 & ST
SIECEA

uf, ¥4 U9

46,741.73

[RAKINCHEE]

foeirr o 2008-
09 ¥
%.24,250.83
foei af 2013-
149

%.22,490.90

Y hT S
FUHARHITA
AR T fehar T
o i T 39 J9T
T T T 57 5T
WHR 39 IRASH #
Te fe@er o
RS 8 B
HIR W 2 31 gufe
I AL IAT FT
TR T fear
S | S5 ¢ & AT
Yo, YT & Wi,
e ofe & fau
AT TESA M |

o)
M

)

ST o =1 Y SR e A 3 o B e farer T TE € | AeTaR, T T & Sfeniq Sfa Tena e o T B € |
ST T =1 o 3R el A 3 SR ST W, o 3N SUHIOT BT YR el A 2
ST J T, FRwTeRt, ShuAy ST Hefud wfEar (S fa s stfufm, 2013 o ded aftifie faar T ®) 6y -

YT AT G T T 311 A o Gy F01 T kT § I 0T AT AT AL A €, S W W A7 a0 SR e

& SR el o oTt a1 genrct &t S7afe wh A foru o g A €| JegER, 59 R o STl Smfa TeRdieRto
T AR |
A-GSTA-2hT (HSe3ET) JUHT ST/ qoie ST

%)



arfie or@r 2022-23 KMRC

foreitar fomo W xEea (STRY)
. A-YSIN- T o oI, QT ST 31.03.2023 T T4 1 E €
U i o fog dreegengat o Tfyr I
Higsgamgar
° Teh a9 U T 1-2 98 2-3 94 3 99 ¥ 1T

IRASHT T W2 | 50,03,676,77 6,29,587.38 77,15,177.03 6,72,10,510.40 | 8,05,58,951,58

RS 3Tt

w9 Y froifad

T, Uon-shE -l o o, fgeRt QU ST SR 7 A ST o JIeiT T ol ¥ ST A I 31 81 T €, 31.03.2022
Tk I o T S T A TR

Teh raf o fore Wiseegamgdt % TivT A
I Tk a8 A& 1-2 99 2-39¢ 3 9 | wmer
TSI e | 39,06,444.33 56,11,848.77 | 1,18,43,262.83 | 541,93,718.88 | 7,5555,274.81
RS ST
Y 4 frcfad

1) m%wg@ﬁaﬂ?m—@fa&% 37T T feRTg o Siad g ST Gufd FEl 7 | TeguR, 39 IR & Sfaiq Smfrd Yerd oo
AN AR B € 1

D) A ad R et T % SR S G e e sfufTe, 1988 3R IFe SiaHid ST M T % Siaeid o off
WTF‘T?T@%{%W%‘HI%@ﬂl%ﬁ%‘dﬁlﬁqlﬁlﬁgmd@d T T | TEIAR, 3T I o A STfead TeRdTehoT
GG |

W) S = SR e A & SR e IREufE S GRAT & STER W et A e Tt ¥ 18 3uR T o € 1 deqan,
T TR % A SMfEF Fehd 1901 oI T B ¢ |

&) HT A A SR T a o <R R ot dok A1 e G A 1 FOTerAT gRI ST oY fEwice? A T e
T 2 | AR, 39 T o STt Sifeqd Wehd IeRoT o] Tt B e |

%) ST A SR e 9 o R T I, 2013 ST URT 248 A1 ST YU, 1956 S RT 560 o dEd &¢ i
TE ST o I G S TE AT € | TETAR, 3 ORI o STeRI) STHTE TR [T AT E I € |

T) e 3y % S1E U TR & IR TSR o U 1S Yok A1 §qf e TeT § | deT9R, 39 I 3 3favid sfd
TR A TRA0T A &1 BT € |

3) e SR et 9 o R SO T I TR Sl 96 € o deqdR st sl 2013 S R 2 % TS (87)
ST ST (TR ST T TR i) T, 2017 % G 9fad WAt ST G T STIeH on] Tel ¢ |
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FISHI 1 Hofl) TET 1 T § | AETER, 3 I S A ST T 10T &l T B € |

)

forefta feremoti W xgea (SY)
T) favcmoes s
U == A a | adH ety | feet s | o uftadw | 25% W stfue g OT
Ufad T sIuT

AT I | IAHH URTUf | IeEE <A 3.08 4.97 -38.16% | 9T ®9 ¥ T & 3id H
Fenforer et # g ok
ek T & o HRIT

FogeRd | FA ® O IRRERERT &l 1.29 1.21 6.91% -

ST gferadt

351 e ater | 0 e 3 | o e SIS ST ]

I A T

SRS ST W | % 91E 96 | SPRURH &1 0.00 09 0.00% -

ClRR] oy g sfaadt

T TR | W AE Y | sfed e AR R @ At A e

S Sl

(Grafrsiie)

SR | v e | ste ER ey | LT Y et Y R

FRAEAR 3T

SR 2 FRAR | 9 Sfee @0 | shaq amm ag | LT EWEH] T T AT T

ST

¥ O FRAER | v FRITe st A T A Tt A TE & et

ST

I A S | Y % 91 I | TS e GWEH] @ T I

(%) Ik

T I T | =T 3R 3 | Frehfoa st 0.02% 0.00% 0.00% -

AT (%) TE T FHE

EENEN Y F A YE | 3 RERe 0.02% 0.00% 0.00% -

et (%) ™ o fafer

7)) A 99 3R el 9 % <R S AfUEE, 2013 S URT 230 F 237 % STTHR TeH MR gRT AT off awen @t

(@) AT A =T 99 3 SR AT deenelt (weedt) fed foRdt 3T A (3 A1 gwen (3T)ehy 21 =1 o7 A fafe

O (37 1 SN Al T2 SRITST A1 91 e 47 forddl 317 i 91 UehX o Tg) o 991 ] fopann & 31 fiee a9 29
e & 917 (A1 faflad =9 & 91 3r=ren <5 fdar T 7)) o g

ST (AT @reedt) SRT A 3Tt IR A fF ot a8 W UTH U S AfFGAr A7 Frened H yeget AT e
w0 Y IYR 7 397 & a1

(i)

(i)

Sifer arredf o1 A7 3! IR A IS TRAT, GRAT AT U AE I dle TRAT TeH &L




aIffss @ 2022-23

faita faaveit X g8 (SIRT)

)

)

E))

23.

(@) HT T e A 3R et 9 o SR R deenstt (ke W) wfed fRd off =#fe () A gren(si) ¥ K e
T T g © (< FeAfiad = & A7 aen o T T A) o e

() S (i Aredt) SRT AT 3Tent 2R ¥ fd o T¥E ¥ U U ST Afaqal A St § yeHey A7 S1eey
w0 Y YR 7 89 Y a1

(i) 3iferey arreff @Y 27 3T IR [ I MRS, TR AT T e T PIE TR TEH FY |

IR AT, 1961 F Ted Y (R0T 8 =1 9 37K fieet o & <R @it o1 J&dsh! § T a1 37 o &9 § Jehd
fopu MU @t # I e gt el fEA T e |

ST T SIUTTEH, 2013 T URT 135 o YTEM o SHR HuHR (FAfHd H1isies Sterfie) & qed fedr off @=
F o vaer et fora 7 | Fegun, WiegeR nfafafit & T ¥ aehd et on] e €.

mﬁg@aﬁ 3fi feret 9 o SR feFma) HaT o RegaTel o1 B R A1 faer et foper € o safer, | T geR iR
M TR

S TR el fAfey 7 g, fawia faawur oftt @rat o g & g+t iyt gsmit § 21

24, JTRATTA ST Ufataat (35)

25.

26.

27.

28.

AR T T o qed S AT SR SR T Tel Tidl ¢ | 39 el & Sael o Sefiia ot TREf i A 16 &
T2 & iifer FE G T W A o AT o Y A e fiehe Wiy # Suetsy 2 fges was § 3% age foRar o
AT |

gfr stferreur ¥ Hefua wifam T arae
O % faEE ek 31-03-2023 T 49 FHTH AW dfad 2, &aR0T 9 yehR 2 (Woft ot fafge vefa o )
HTHEAT Y T faaur B
1 oty aAfemrRon AR Tat= =]
13 g stfemeoT AT ShlAehRTdT 3= et
1 ff e HESIERIEIRISE]
1 T T T A, hetehTd]
1 EiRgl] A1 ShIcTehTel 3=e IR
25 fafarer A ShicTehTel 3= e
7 Y Faelt AT IRl 3= AT

qfy=1T ST THR = 9 LK 2015 &1 Ueh UF STRT &Y hUHSIRYIUA &bl A UTeh |, TIed ek | St ot T o fog <
T 38.5 U I % AU ST ol o U I[ee & 9 | 3368.79 FRAIS T I A &I 2 | YR JHT, A= e
TR 3R FUTIRIICA & 1 TCAIRT 27 SIS 2008 S T THAT & T 12.1 F TTER o1 GRT 3o I[oeh 37
Tt ® S 38T Wi § 5T e el T T

fg=T ST AR = 37 TF feAieh 13.02.2015 & AT T hIcTehTal 96T § WMT 3 AT ¥ amt o fy ST & fog
3 ot =Tt & foTU 889.69 IS TR Tl HIT &1 ot | T8 HIHl oh1 Telfed AT o ey IS 1 € A Al ah orell
2 o 50 e & Yow o7 TeI § SN 3HI g e Tt o e € 1 weifeh, fdeR & 4R W, ST 3 59T HE 33(g)
& YTHN 3V N HE < & w9 § femmn 2 |

femier 31 99 2023 o AT ff Tem, T R T SEH BT HIE o FeRTET AT 7 TG ¢ I A & e st 2013
3R TeH, T IR HeAq e faem Il @w, 2006 T €RT 22 o 370 fo off 371 9T 227 AT QAT A T ST
2| geH 3T 3R T ITW ok T T UF 3T BT FTR0T SO GRT S fefenciteTt oy 5 Hater 7 Ui 7 o1 o wrare 7 9
qfE T aenfia 7
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foreta feramoit w gEea (STRY)
29. HHENT SATH AT SHH=ET 1 yere fopu U fafir= sh=dy el &1 f9av0r 39 TN @
faehfta Frmem ST

ST 3 FHHANET T IAT BT A XA @ FoAe i T&iTth/Aargf o Foe oAt 8 Ui 1 i1 a1 Ol R &1 7 | I=aT
A S, 1972 % STER JaT % Teish Oof 9 o U 15 & & g1 309 o1 <X T T2 1 G foman S 2 1 3%
IS 3T G- TR SO 1 Siifehes i@ ¥ T e @ o e sifem, < Sifey o 39T Sifad |

TS 3R dwiferes qeaer § aRad T Iq=1 B ATl GAHIE o1 7R 10 o1 39 37ty # wrar & s ¢ o ¥
3 G MF H T T |

o1 URETE T AT Siwiferer qoaien 3R FeRa oy aifae o7 adu god 31 °1H, 2023 T ST R FAH, G
TS ST TAGFR FRI 521 71 o7 | Fefifi ey erfeges o7 o wea, iR eiferd aoam 34T @ o iarsT s
fed TEfd o7 U g Ff T Tl €, Tafa O ATe e o Hee § ANEH o i SavEehdr A6 ¢ |

Eacl

dHifchen Teieh o WIS o fIT STANT ST ST ATl T ER0T 89 TR off:

SitaTerTfeh Feaiant o TSI o fold Tad T €RvT 39 TahK o

T SR 31 W=, 2023 A& 31 WT=l, 2022 d&H
ERACT 7.17% 7.24%
afger o 3a9 3fg 6.00% 6.00%

3T 3feret T T (I HTHGHTST ) 10 T 129

T <X et MEUCATH 2012-2014 |  SAEUUCAUA 2012-2014
Tarfgfa &t 311 - & 60 ¥ 60 %
Tarfgfa &t 31 - Afgen 60 60 I

g A SR et (Foft FHRoT Tge) 0.100% 0.100%

3 45 T e 0.06% 0.06%

3] 29-45 & A= 0.03% 0.03%

Mg 29 9 &H 0.01% 0.01%
Wz Yot BRG] TS

31T ErehTieTeh el ore:

SYFRTYT 2SI Uk 3ifTm I FefiiRe oy 2l 2 < S, 90y, faerctmdr =1 Wiz arem I Jared eF W usged
A FEH T S 2 | A1 ST 37 (e 3R 0 ! o § 7@ gu) SR S STt 91 o SER W i e
S 3R eI o GO I R S 2 | AT feie o otef 2 fo STHaR W et 3R fadie aRermt sy wefaa
Y ATl SITEH 1 2 &1 SIS ©: I8 ASHT 310 dR T &0 ol difehes SREHT 3 STad sl © o FaeT Sifem,
eI S 37N 3o SfEw |

TS 3R Sifees Tarelt § uRad= ¥ 3o 21 dTet T oy SN w1 By 3T e 7 e <F e € o 3
I FAF AT H AT |

TIoHT TR BT T iR qedien 3R Fefifa e e w1 adue goF 31 9, 2023 S, AR, FA,
TS AT TTeshR §RT foa 727 o |

AT AT
FHifoher Heaiehd o TASHI o ol SWINT &1 ST el TE HRUT 39 UehTR ff:




aifi® @@ 2022-23
foxitar faerol | 387 (SRY)
T SRUTd 31 W=, 2023 d&H 31 HT=l, 2022 T
T BN 7.17% 7.24%
afgsT  9a7 3fg 6.00% 6.00%
3fR STfer Tt AT (I FHTHRTST SHa) 10 9 119
T <X AR 3TEUTATH 2012-2014 | SAEUTAUH 2012-2014
Tarafd &t 31 e 60 T 60 T
Tarafd &t 317 - Afear 60 ¥ 60 T
TET X 0.100% 0.100%
30. Ud 3rafer i Hgwayut sefeat

31.

32.

33.

T4 7afey T Heequl it Sl TEqd T8 1 % AU JAnTees 9T Bl A ek qdendt &9 F Jiek far S ¢
forgl =5 g¢ off | afe =iz weqa wRfier sl § ved g8 2, O weqd wRfyer svafy o fo afteufl, Seifar oie sfaad
3 YR U1 T 9 7k SeTel fRAT ST € S ek ok A Seaeliic 7 e, 39 fufd #, 7 cigich f 1 wrawiien yRfie

37IfY J N T J A A & AT oI STHHRT b1 TSI fofar ST 2 |

wfe o s
e PrET S T 2023 I WU | WTE 2022 ThY TATE
T o forg o forg
TfeT PRI T 37T (F79) 0.00 0.00
T 37 FI ForeR0T & IR AMfiiek A1 (%) 7272.04 792 .86

TfeT 91 T 3T % 329 W Tt SRt it e s e

3,75,86,20,000

2,81,63,72,000

IRfYeR SRR ISl - HE

3,75,86,20,000

1,40,30,00,000

THI PR Sl - HE

3,75,86,20,000

3,75,86,20,000

@7 GfHa, = S TR A fedie 06.11.2012 1 UF T3 ST fora o1 fSt 3eore foran

T o o UfeAn e TR $ -3 A HIRER G o fau f sifren & o 48 g T S e G 7 |
ST T AT BT TR H ofd g HUHSTRENTS ohY < ST Tl 48 il T T SN UfY=TH STel TR J A § iR
ST o T U e ReTE Suce AEl ¢ | WG T goie U GAT 37 off wifad 2

TS UUH 24 ok 3 HaATIT UaT ST Uehe [ehTuT
(a) AT UST T Wahe IehTUT

WG USLIeh 1o (oI ShT TH T St UGt
S g F G )

A dr. & . Fara TEeT fRyTE

St ST WER fcemes (fae) wd frevre (et wd &)
ToIe g ST 3TEEH v (i ig @)
ot e % BENED

T TR ARYR % [EENED

= i A ECNED

At g [EENED

AT HE AT e CREIRSIRES

A1 gftres g R
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fordftar feremott w xEs7 (STY)
(b) T/ Srafer o NI W@ W Shifth o GTeT e
feraaur ey fRyw SHTA
(TfeT ’000 &) | (T ‘000 )
STRIERY STTUFRI, 1961 &1 ¥R 17(1) | Hfed WaeH! & S8R aa7 18,607.39 4,215.79
[EREIR ) - -
9 o T oY - -
@ et & DT ek 35.00 205.00
el 18,642.39 4,420.79
?:;‘2022—23 & foTu feeTen &t T ek o1 e et 375 AR 1 e a1 S feAieh 10.07.2022 T @ed Fevm
|
(C) o ST U Heifere geff & e -3 o ST, Shl &b 3o Her, WA e & ey off o< 8, S frefefiaa
oM 7, Sfeh et ask e T2t 2
ToeistuT ot weRfer: - 7T fed W a1t YeRYReE
af & TRM oe:
Hafera uret st AT AT T Wehfar T (’000 FUX T)
I T g 9% AR 30,00,000.00
SI3TEHIT 07 o Tasl § 14,70,026.53
faeeft gar smTaToT

34.

35.

88

ST el gerat § -2 Rl 7 S 3okt I 31fim, feior o, uRvmEy, fafter @ ¥ SAR-Tg 1 SR
3T BT 7 | Ufee 37afd o SR ST gRT 21 o1 T e T Sl et AT ST TR @ :

faawor 31 |7, 2023 &1 | 31 HTd, 2022 ShT
AT 9 ok fer, | wmTe o o fere
SHART &t T
- N N
- s A gl
- A NS A
- W A RIARIA
faeTor ==
- 6,86,055.70 21,17,085.48
- SR 3,05,724.51 8,06,05,312.07
- TuEs 2,42,453 .40 23,63,119.85
- @ 11,618.26 46,800.61
3fae goa wig

forefrer ufufaat o7 2gTelt 1 3o o 39 NfeT & onfier foran ST € S ot aftgafe st 9= o fow w6 S

3R ISR TR o S Ueh HIferd OFe H 2T ohl TR s o ol ST f5ham S | 3faa g A1 w7 fefror
7 A TR 7 A7 ST BIAART T T O I STTURV W SR B 2



arfie @rar 2022-23 KMRC

forfter ool W gwe7 (SRY)
o TR 1 <Erl & fofu &7 aeiR & &
o  uftEuf A1 < & foTu Hedy arsve STSiR  fersll 7 aTs o 37ma H |
ST o AU H& A7 ey TS TSR o B A6 | R aREuft A1 SER &6 36 Hed 37 GRS T ST ek

HTOT ST @ ST AR Gfeanit aREaf 41 SRt o ged FHeRT SR T 3TE s, 9% I g fo aTeR afaunt s
FAE

Tt 3T e 3R 3qeh faiT Tremt BT kel i 7 370 Aty fuid T SUAT T € [RTeifen, Rt ot e
TFehien B Sfdfifed TN 21 ¢ 1 39, Tt i et & fou, weqd 3 g SAH SavEs ®9 F 39 T vt
T Foheleh TE1 ¢ Foe8 St Tafud fafert & STaR fag oFe B I =1 T R Gehdl ot | 39 TR, Fafud fdded
fafert & are faster Fremt o1 S go veieh av/ ety & oid # afee o 7 Uit & fr & Rt 7 |

36. faHieR 31T=l, 2023 Teh TeRTAT TaaTiad WAl ST Ud MR ahT faawur, THE T A&t feram T srerar faier o
A& STAT feRaT 71T, T faa T SH W 2 :

sfufEa T | JehTq el WeRfa | T ("000 T4 W) | 97 srafer faadr I WEt
T HaF & faarg wfaa @
fa afufam, 1994 TaT 1,854.94 | fami ¥ 2009-10 AT el Sger
to 2012-13 M (11), FEE IS Ik
YT YT, 1961 | BT W &Y Haldt 1450 |fadad2022-23 | U F IR FA IF
YPIHT AfIFEH, 1961 | BT T T At 732 |fa@ad2021-22 | 39 F FER FA TH

37. THH I3 WU Ufqae Tfafarer T 21
38. ShUHT oh UTH S0 Jaell Uigd ohig SrTafer Sgaer Tt o ek fore shig 3 Srgafae g1f 8l
39. 3TTeRfaTeR AATE ST GSiTa WivagaTd. (R e deh UaT T8t &t T8 )

feraur 31 AT, 2023 Ak 31 AT, 2022 Ak
(000 ¥) (000 ¥)

(W) ffafad o 9ag ¥

- fad & 2009-10 H 2012-13 TeF 3T & 7T JaT & & AT | 1,854.94 TIL 1,854.94 FIT

(@) ST o RGATE T & %0 % &9 § WK T8 fohar T 1,27,55,353.23 ¥1T 1,04,41,917.16 ¥TT

() grent Rav fast SR g1 fafi= @=t o o o < 13,301.36 ¥90 13,301.36 T

() AT YSit STael ot A AT (375 1) 3,24,706 .29 ¥90 1,73,59,200.00 ¥TU

(3) X 3T BfsT o Tast § e e 1,316.60 33,717.39 T

(TF) 38.5 Uehg 4fH o foTQ 3TTHA hesll I[eeh ( - 26 W) 3,36,87,942.75 ¥0U 3,36,87,942.75 &0

(STT) ufe=m SIe TR §RT A T 3 A4 Ik (39 - 27 <) 88,96,900.00 ¥7T 88,96,900.00 %UY

(S) d2 oM o foAQ ShictehTdl T =g § SAfdied 4 88,83,466 .54 FIT 88,83,466 .54 FIT

o 3T, WSHUHAT 3R FE7 39S ek (3THr-1) & FHaT a9 2009-10 F 2012-13 e a1 ¥ 37fiet afad § 1 sifaw
T 13.10.2017 1 €2 &Y 3 3T a1e o1fidd | e Wil 2T g2, SHAU @it § wrereln et & E 2

o  WiET T () FUH & g Yote R werwerar { Gaferd <t sl G o1 e AT 7, {9 3neft off arererd # Fuerr
ST e §, ST AR e SAaTREl & B9 T G frar T g |
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aifis ufaag 2022-23

foita foarolt W gwsa (SIRY)

o USRS g ford) U T Rt off Teonfiyet eareret gRT THfedd T 7 |

o T T aTet < forii At & SR 2 aTe ISt YT A § Weifrd 71 7 3o A & et ofifaw 3R e
T S YR W 527 T € | 57 o ST a7 Sl ¢ 37N 3T e foman S € o 2 6 o o S € | sufe, 3
YT R YT it Syarelt kT STAIfd 13T & = F fergrn A

40. fafay oert & 2fae/afer 9 OfF SR gurgm & o 2

41. TIHM a9 o TRI0T/ TR & SIET B o ol St off 3Taven 2, el au o afiche! ol . TR/ I e
feFa T R |

ToH-TF o IS 3T 2T 1 T 41 e o 1M b fAfera yaror fover w2 |

T 1 Y 41 Toh LR

el guR ufade o SIgER

Fd TTHAR ISR T HUT TievTes el & fog 9 S9al ik &

EECRGCIE

FH TSR E. © 3201663

Y 3. ISR qt. . gitarea YT TR

RIRICAE e feeTeh fraere (fam)

TEEAH. : 055208 2130 10207179 21320 09678873

T3 : 23055208BGWCEL4154

Tk g HE ST AT T
TE : PIAHT e o e ot gfa
feater : 3 e, 2023 T9: AMWPB7941H T AIEPG3324K
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